MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 31, 2024 - 2:00 P. M.

WELCOME TO THE MIRA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING. MIRA VALUES YOUR ATTENDANCE AND REQUESTS
THAT SPEAKERS APPEARING UNDER THE PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION OF THE AGENDA LIMIT THEIR COMMENTS
AND/OR PRESENTATION TO MATTERS UNDER THE BOARD’S JURISDICTION. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK TO ANY ITEM
ON THE AGENDA, PLEASE WAIT UNTIL THAT ITEM HAS BEEN CALLED. PERSONS ADDRESSING THE BOARD SHALL
HAVE FIVE MINUTES TO COMPLETE HIS/HER COMMENTS ON EACH AGENDA ITEM.

Welcome - Call Business Meeting to Order 2:00 P.M.
Pledge of Allegiance

Introductions | Announcements

Public Comments

. Meeting Minutes
A. Minutes of August 22, 2024, MIRA Board Meeting

L. A. Projects and Programs Updates and Status Report (Executive Director Verbal Report)

. Development Presentations
TBD

v. New Business
A. Merritt Park Place Grove Street Parking Lot Acquisition for Public Purposes

{24-36-35-32-K-1]| Parcel 24-36-32 | Tax Acct #2427087 | (Board Discussion)

V. Ongoing/0ld Business
A. Transit Stop Improvements (Simme Seating for Transit Stop Locations)
B. USDOT FHWA Safe Streets 4 All Grant Agreement (Draft)
C. 258 N. Grove Street | Merritt Island, FL 32953 (Tradewinds Builders (Fagcade Progress)
Report & Site Tour)
D. Discuss November/December 2024 Holidays Meeting Dates

VI. Board Reports and Presentations:
Marcus Herman, Chairman
Cynthia Wall, Vice Chairman
Andy Barber, Board Member
Corey Mecagni, Board Member
Nicole Morgan, Board Member
Jack Smink, Board Member
Jack Ratterman, Board Member
Larry Lallo, Executive Director
Lisa Nicholas, Community Redevelopment Manager
Justin Caron, Assistant County Attorney

Next Board Meeting (December 5th, 2024) 2:00 P.M.
Adjourn



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Board of Directors Meeting
October 31, 2024

ITEM I A.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Meeting Minutes

PROJECT: Minutes of August 22, 2024

Requested Action: Consideration for Approval

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: Copy of Minutes 2




MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Minutes August 22, 2024 - 2:00 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT

Marcus Herman, Chair

Nicole Morgan, Board Member

Corey Mecagni, Board Member

Jack Ratterman, Board Member

Cynthia Wall, Vice Chair

Jack Smink, Board Member

Andy Barber, Board Member Present via Phone

MEMBERS ABSENT

AGENCY STAFF

Larry Lallo, Executive Director

Justin Caron, Assistant County Attorney
Cheryl Hurren, Exe. Admin. Assistant/Clerk

GUESTS

Donn Weaver, Veterans Memorial Center

Don Pearsall, Brevard Veterans Council

Kika Golan, D2 Office

Susan Smith, D2 Office

Manuel E. Baten, 245 Leleune Dr. for Item III.C

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
The meeting was called to open at 2:00 P.M. Member Smink led the pledge.

PUBLIC COMMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Chairman Herman introduced Doug Green of 255 Manor Dr., who spoke to the Board regarding the
SJRWMD Grant. Mr. Green explained to the Board that he dba, as Cocoa Beach Plumbing, Inc., applied
for the St. John'’s River Water Management District (SJIRWMD) Cone Road Septic to Sewer Grant in
December 2019. During that time we were going through the Pandemic and the shutdown, he came
down with a life-threatening case of COVID-19 and almost died, leaving him with debilitating challenges.
The work was completed and substantiated by the Natural Resources Management Department’s Save
our Indian River Lagoon (SOIRL) paperwork. He received an inquiry about the status of his application
from Executive Director Lallo as to why it never completed final processing for the SIRWMD and FDEP
Grant reimbursement. Mr. Green said he attended the meeting today to see if he would be eligible for
payment. After the discussion, the board asked legal counsel to review the circumstances and the
paperwork to obtain a legal opinion regarding payment since the SJRWMD and FDEP grants have been
closed.

. Meeting Minutes
A. Approval of the July 25, 2024, meeting minutes.

1of4



Board Member Barber moved to approve the July 25, 2024, meeting minutes, seconded by Member
Morgan. The motion was unanimously approved.

II.  Projects and Programs Updates and Status Report: Director’s Verbal Report

e Director Lallo informed the Board that the Amphitheatre TDC existing grant extension and Grant
Request for the Restrooms/Concessions structure is going to the Board of County Commissioners on
August 27, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. Mr. Donn Weaver of the Veterans’ Memorial Center introduced Don
Pearsall, who is taking his place as President of the Brevard Veterans Council. He advised them they
would all attend the meeting to support the project. Member Ratterman shared that he visited Rep.
Tyler Sirois, and they spoke of the Amphitheatre project. Tim Lawry from the Facilities Dept. stated that
the quote received from lvey Construction will be held for 60 days from mid-July 2024.

e A competitor purchased the Aviara Boat Company, and its 38-acre facility on the Barge Canal is
now available as an industrial site. This is an outstanding manufacturing facility with water access. The
owners are in the process of selecting a broker. MIRA has posted the availability on our website, and
Executive Director Larry notified NBEDZ and the EDC of the site/facility availability.

e With Commissioner Goodson’s support, a sign acknowledging the project partners will be put
up at the Sea Ray Drive Bridge project, and MIRA’s name will be included. MIRA and BOCC
deferred $275,000 per year of our tax increment for ten years to assist the project in 2020. At
that time, the estimated cost was approximately $5.5 Million. The project is currently under a
construction contract for roughly $10 Million, with completion in 2026, and will include
adequate capacity to support our future river walk / Sea Ray Drive pedestrian and bike trail to
Kelly Park.

e Under the Brownfield grant, Stantec is working on our Commercial Core brownfield
redevelopment plan, focusing on the SR 520 Commercial Core and Mall area. Member Morgan said she
heard “Drift Zone” signed a 20-year lease for an interior go-cart facility of some kind in the mall. A
Community Workshop date will be set and forthcoming for October. Larry will reach out to confirm a
suitable date.

e Matt Culver from NRMO said Stantec presented a bid on the renovations at Ms. Apple’s, but he
needs another quote before moving forward.

e The Sutton Pool property acquisition for the county remains in jeopardy until there is a meeting
of the minds with Florida Communities Trust (Florida Forever Act), the Granting Agency, and the
property owners, Brevard County Natural Resources, and the Zoo, and this may involve some
level of MIRA facilitation or a funding commitment. The Zoo has committed for quite some time
to making a significant investment in the Sutton property to accommodate the Restore our
Shores operation as the prime tenancy. A letter of intent to sell the property for $1 Million must
come from the owner to keep the sale viable. The Florida Communities Trust (FCT) will remove
the $1 million grant if an agreement is not reached. The FCT must receive, review and approve a
letter of intent to sell for $1 Million, which coincides with their appraised value.

e The Florida Communities Trust (FCT) is a state-funded land acquisition program created by Chapter 380,
Florida Statutes. The grant programs administered by FCT were initially funded through bonds issued
under Preservation 2000 and currently throgigh the Florida Forever Act. FCT assists communities with

20f4



protecting natural resources, providing recreational opportunities and preserving Florida’s traditional
working waterfronts through the competitive criteria outlined in the Parks and Open Space and the Stan
Mayfield Working Waterfronts Florida Forever Grant Programs. FCT is governed by a five-member board
with the Secretary of DEP or their designee serving as the chair.

e Director Lallo reminded the Board that there is no meeting in November because of the holiday.
He inquired if the MIRA meeting on October 24 could be moved to Thursday, October 31, because the
Florida Redevelopment Association Conference conflicts with our meeting date.

Board Member Barber moved the October 24th meeting to October 31. Member Wall seconded the
motion, which was unanimously approved.

e Director Lallo was asked about the status of the vacant community redevelopment manager
position. Director Lallo said the Agency received 24 applications, and four had been selected for 2nd
interviews. Of the four top candidates. A candidate has been selected from among the top two
candidates. There remain negotiations and a process that needs to be followed. The HR Success
Factors process, policies, and negotiations are underway with the selected candidate.

[ll. Development Presentation
B. River Fly-In Condominiums- Zoning: The agent pulled the item.
C. Palmetto & LeJeune (at 245 Leleune Dr.) Zoning Change Request BU-1-11 to RU-2-8:

Board Member Smink moved to table the request for more information, which was seconded by
Member Morgan. The motion was unanimously approved.

A. Villas at River Palms; tax account 2438912-238918; 265 S. Banana River Dr. (South of SR 520).
Zoning Change Request BU-2 to RU 1-7:

Board Member Barber moved to table the request for more information and application to possibly
include a BDP (Binding Development Plan). Member Smink seconded the motion, which was
unanimously approved.

IV. New Business: None

V. Ongoing/0ld Business:

A. Transit Stop Improvements (Seating) discussion on the style of seats that will differ from the
original eight transit stope. Member Wall asks who collects the advertising rent from the 20/20 bus
stops. Member Barber pointed out the list of proposed future bus stops. Director Lallo will inquire to
SCAT.

Member Wall motioned to approve new bus stop seats and related equipment, up to $20,000,

without Big Belly Trash Cans and work with SCAT to complete the action. It was seconded by Member
Barber and unanimously approved.

30of4



Chairman Herman made a motion for Member Barber and Director Lallo to meet with SCAT to
determine the location of the proposed bus stops and return to the Board for confirmation. Seconded
by Member Ratterman. Passed 5 to 1 {(Member Morgan Nay).

Board Reports and Presentations:

Marcus Herman—The BoCC meeting for the Amphitheatre is on Tuesday, the 27th. Board members
may attend. However, it is best not to sit together in the interests of appearance with the Sunshine Law.

Cynthia Wall — CAMI is holding a Game Night Fundraiser for Merritt Island’s 2"¢ Annual Holiday
lllumination Celebration on Sept. 20™" at 6:30 p.m. There will be a “The Not so Newlywed Game” with 4
local couples. Member Wall asked after S. Courtenay Project. Director Lallo said they were working
through some utility requirements.

Andy Barber —no report.

Corey Mecagni— no report.

Nicole Morgan —no report.

Jack Smink — no report.

Jack Ratterman — Talked to Representative Tyler. Sirois about some other issues. Part of North
Merritt Island is situated within the Northern Brevard Economic Development Zone (NBEDZ), and it's
unclear how they want to use it; Mr. Sirois said he would check into it. The CFX wants to work the toll
road this way, and Merritt Islanders should be concerned about tolls being instituted on all the
causeways. He advised that there is a possibility that wetland permits are being held up until authorities
decide who is going to issue them.

Justin Caron, Assistant County Attorney — no report.

Director Lallo — no further report.

Board Member Ratterman moved to adjourn the meeting. Member Morgan seconded it. The motion
was unanimously approved.

The next meeting is on October 31, 2024, at 2:00 p.m.

4 of4



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Board of Directors Meeting
October 31, 2024

ITEMIIL. A.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Projects and Program Updates/Status Report

PROJECT: Verbal Report from Executive Director

Requested Action: Discussion

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: Copy of Supporting Documents 7




MERRITT ISLAND
REDTVELIRYENT AG63TY

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting

October 31, 2024
ITEM IIl. A.
AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Development Presentations
PROJECT: Place Holder
Requested Action None at this time.
Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: None




.

MERRITT ISLAND
mPLADITL2FVENT ARENCY -

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting

October 31, 2024
ITEM IV. A.
AGENDA REPORT ITEM: New Business
PROJECT: Merritt Park Place Grove Street Parking Lot Acquisition
Requested Action: Presentation, Discussion, and Authorization to Proceed with Acquisition

Request to Brevard County

Summary Explanation & Background:

The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency has been instrumental in the vision, design, and
redevelopment of Merritt Park Place since circa 1998, planning and funding several Infrastructure,
Parking, Streetscape, Beautification, and Irrigation Improvements to McLeod, Grove, Parnell,
Myrtice, Hibiscus, and Tangerine Streets, including entrance signage, streetlighting, medians,
landscaping, irrigation, and crosswalks.

The MIRA Redevelopment Plan cites Public Parking as an ongoing activity, and Chapters 6-10 state
that the lack of public parking has become a significant issue. This issue limits the attraction of quality
businesses, clients, and consumer activity that would add to Merritt Park Place's economic vibrancy,
customer base, community experience, safety, and business appeal. Unconventional lot sizes and
shapes limit the ability to assemble and redevelop sites and promising projects, sometimes conflict
with the Brevard County Code requirements given the unique character of Merritt Park Place.

The MIRA Board has identified significant issues in Merritt Park Place that remain to be addressed.
These issues limit the attraction of quality redevelopment projects. The primary problems are the lack
of neighborhood or regional stormwater retention systems and neighborhood public parking areas. An
opportunity has arisen to acquire a private parking lot, already improved, within a sirategic area of
Merritt Park Place for public parking purposes.

This agenda item is for the MIRA Board to discuss this opportunity and recommend proceeding
with the process leading to MIRA approval to request Brevard County's approval to enter into the
acquisition process, utilizing MIRA funding for this purpose, and enabling all necessary and
prudent budget changes required to accommodate the acquisition and associated costs.

Fiscal Impact: $190,000

Exhibits Attached: Supporting Information




Merritt Park Place Press

June, 1999

ﬂ/f ] R r‘:]:l
Update

| Letter from Outeoing President
e

Even though the
Governor cut MIRA’s
request for funding the
sewer installation for the
balance of Merritt Park
Place, the first phase of
the sewer installation,
Grove & Mcleod Streets,
is stll a “"go” project!
Construction should
begin on luly 6 for the
underground portion of
the  project. The
contractor will be onsite
for approximately ninety
(90) days, at which time
the Brevard County Public
Works and Road & Bridge
Departments will assume
construction

responsibility. They will
resurface  the  street,
allowing  for  angled
parking, etc.

The MSBU ballot will be
sent during the month of

| July, so that results can

| be

determined to
whether  paver  brick
sidewalks, decorative
lighting, benches and
landscaping  will be
installed on Grove &
Mcleod Streets.

as

Again, be aware that
construction commences
on Grove & Mcleod

| This has certainly been a busy year
| for Merritt Park. I've been so proud
| to represent our membership in the
| community. Thank you for this
opportunity you have given me to
work with you to benefit our
community and establish friendships
| that will remain long after this year
is over.
| The community outside the park Is
anxiously awaiting the
redevelopment of Merritt Park. |am
approached frequently by people
with questions and positive support
for the project. As you might expect
| the most asked question is, when
| will the redevelopment begin, and
| the most supportive statement is,
about time something like this
happens in Merritt Island, this will
really put us on the map. My
sentiments  exactly. S0 much
strategic planning over the past nine
years has gone into this worthwhile
project. lust in this past year, much
progress has been made. Most
important has been the funding
sources that have committee to the
underground portion of the project,
$752,538, all being funded by the
| EPA/SL. Johns River Water
Management District, Brevard
County Surface Water Management,
| Brevard County Road & Bridge, and
last but not least, Merritt Island
Redevelopment Agency (MIRA). Itis
time now for the plan to be put into
action. The end of July, 1999 is the
projected start date for the
underground portion of the project
(Phase 1), with a completion time of
three (3) months. Planning for the
second phase is almast at an end.
The Merritt Park Place Design
| Committee has been working with

Doug Robertson of MIRA on
above ground upgrades and on
lowering the original cost of
these upgrades. The cost began
around $700,000, and the
committee, without
compramising the quality of the
upgrades, has brought the cost
down by one-half. Some of the
credit to lowering the cost also is
due to a Community
Development Block Grant of
$18,000 and to $55,000 from the
Metropolitan Planning
Organization for the sidewalks.
The committee still has a meeting
scheduled with Doug & FPL to
work on the cost of the upgraded
lighting.  This is expected to
finalize the upgrade package. In
the meantime, Doug has been
meeting with property owners to
discuss sidewalk easements &
the Municipal Service Benefit
Unit (MSBU). The deadline for
the MSBU is quickly approaching.
It seems as though every thing is
in order and property owners are
in agreement - only a few more
need to be contacted. The MSBU
should be finalized and in effect
prior to completion of the first

phase.
Obviously, we didn’t do this
alone. On behalf of the Merritt

Park Group Association, | would
like to extend my thanks to
MIRA, our County
Commissioners, and countless
others, that helped us achieve
our goals this year. A very special
thanks to Doug Robertson for the
commitment and countless hours
he has devoted to this project,
Without Doug's professional

expertise, we would not be
this far along.

To Sandee Natowich, our
incoming  chairperson, my
thanks for your support and
counsel. Most  especially,
thank you for spearheading

the whole idea of Merritt
Park.

To the membership, my thank
you for your continuing
commitment to our
organization. | look forward
to seeing you at our

September meeting.

MPP(
FElections

The following is a iist of the
MPPG Board of Directors:

@  Sandee Natowich,
Chairman

@  Richard Champon,
Vice Chairman

@ Linda Coontz,
Treasurer

@  Dick Day,
Secretary

@  Debra McGirr,
Asst. Secretary

e  DanlJones

@ Linda Molica

@ Don Shannan
©  Linda Sewell

@& Ginny Lambkin
@  Ralph DeBlois
o Beth Kring

@  Susie Palmer

———————

MPPG Property of the Month: Lasco

Enterprises!

10



LB

| Parking Lot L AT R Y D W Y Legend
Write a description for your map. S MV ST N\ e o Feature 1
. | _ 3 Feature 2
©  Lostt Garden Tattoos

o " . Wl
% SAFT

T 2o

.\h.nzn m... H\: - ..\.\.__.w - ! \ P E 1 _ e . B A h . ) " . - k\-\HA
©.2442 mmr.uocu_w. > r d ; y / e ) . -

—




- b ——— =

- Grove looking North

. Write a description for your map.

.

.| Legend
: B Feature 1
Feature 2
“  Lostt Garden Tattoos

T b A i 205
G024 Coaela 7 S

4



Location, Tax, and Legal

Tax Account
2427087

County
Brevard

General County Location

Central

Elementary School
Mila

High School
Merrict istand

Tax Year

2023

Directions

Parcel Number
24-36-35-32-0000k.0-0001.00

MLS Area Major
251 - Central Merritt Island

Subdivision Name
Merritt Park Place

Middle Schaol
Jefferson

Tax Annual Amount
1,126.14

Tax Legal Description
MERRITT PARK PLACE LOTS 1,2 BLK K

From SR3 head weston Merritt 4ve. Then turn left on N. Grove St Praperty is on your right
i } b 5

13



0 N N. Grove X lose

Merritt Island, FL 32953
$190,000 #1015130 Active

Media Description Location Listing Details

More Information ~

General Property Information

Road Frontage Feet Lot Size Acres
105 0.3

Lot Size Square Feet CDD Fee YN
13,068 No

List Price/Acre

633,333,335

Remarks and Miscellaneous

Public Remarks

Merritt Park Place!! This double lot has 18 parking places, a concrete dumpster pad and room ta build
Utilities already i place including water meter, Power meter, sewer haok up. Electric panel, street
hghting and fully automatic sprinkler system.

Closing Company Details

Closing Company Name
Countywide Title

Current Use

Orher

Development Status

Completed

14



LISTING vetails

Contract Information

Current Price
$190,000

Property Sub Type
Unimproved Land

Location, Tax, and Legal

Tax Account
2427087

County
Brevard

General County Location

Central

Elementary School
Mila

High School
Merritt Island

Tax Year
2023

Directions

Original List Price
$200,000

Comp Sale YN
No

Parcel Number
24-36-35-32-0000k.0-0001.00

MLS Area Major
251 - Central Merritt Island

Subdivision Name
Merritt Park Place

Middte School
Jefferson

Tax Annual Amount
1,126.14

Tax Legal Description
MERRITT PARK PLACE LOTS 1,2 BLK K

From SR3 head west on Merritt Ave. Then turn left on N. Grove St. Property is on your right

More information

General Property Information

Road Frantage Feet
105

Lot Size Square Feet
13,068

List Price/Acre
633,333.33

Lot Size Acres
0.3

CDD Fee YN
No

15



Description
Memu Park Place!! This couble lot has 18 parking places, a concrete dumpster pad and room to build
Utilities already in place incluching water meter. Power meter, sewer haok up. Electric panel, street

hghtlng and fully automatic sprinkler system.

Location
. o
{1} SUNSET LAKES  THE SAVANNAHS
Pint & Pistol@
= : Port Canaveral
(328) Kelly Park East@ G- -
Brevard Museum : ; = SHOREMOSD
of History and Natural
COCOA NORTH () = %, Cape
: &P KN Canaveral
7
ADAMSON N EARLAKEOCOE) DIANA SHORES 3
S e VILLAGE
CATALINA (man)
ISLE CSTATES AVI)-I.\J o
e SIQOK ]égN THE SEA
Cocoa West g 520)- 520
COCOA VILLAGE N A
. 5 Lori Wilson
W f Park
g Rotary Park @
: £ Merritt Island
COCOA ISIES
&9 )
THABERS WEST , TH =
Rockledge Merritt Island  comatrciaL (Eocoa Bez
;heiter@ SENEES ; -+
; Banana River
Space Coast Iceplex Aquatic Al
: CHELSEA PARK Preserve (atn -
- Banana Rlver SNUG HARBOR -
cQraYTI

GROFQIAN keyboard shorteuts  Map data £2024 Google Terms  Repart a map error

Go gle

16



17



| 1MG_8917

= =

18



-,

@

MERRITT ISLAND

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting
October 31, 2024

ITEM V.A.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Ongoing/ Old Business

PROJECT: Transit Stop Improvements

Requested Action: Presentation on Locations and Equipment Options for Transit Stop
Expenditures

Summary Explanation & Background:

At the August 22, 2024, MIRA Board Meeting, the Board approved expending $20,000 of the
$50,000 in the FY 24 budget for transit stop seating improvements, subject to approval of the
locations. Space Coast Area Transit (SCAT) preliminarily recommended 16 locations on 520 and
North Courtenay Parkway that have high ridership and would benefit from some seating
opportunities for riders.

Space Coast Area Transit has recommended purchasing the Simme-Seat, a company out of
Oregon, to provide the new seats. A double seat with a center pole or a divider cost about $1000
per unit: one of the requirements for installing a new seat is access to at least a 5-foot-wide
sidewalk in the appropriate location. The beauty of the Simme-seat is there is no need for any
permits, engineering, or even approval of the adjoining properties because it all takes place in the
right of way. Of the 16 sites provided by SCAT, 4 of them do not have access to a 5-foot sidewalk in
the proper location.

The semi-seats have a built-in divider between the two seats, and it is possible to install an
approximate 8-foot pole, which could hold bus times or other information, and a solar light
through another vendor. Most bus locations are in lighted areas, so it needs to be determined
how many solar lights would be required, but we could investigate that. Also, it’s probably not
feasible to entertain covered seating because it would involve full-on engineering, permitting, etc.

Fiscal Impact: $20,000 - $50,000

Exhibits Attached: Supporting Documentation 19




Space Coast Area Transit Page 1 of |

Horne How Mewrs &n espanol

[ TripPlannet)’]

] speclallzed Senvices

ROUTE 3~ MERRITT ISLAND

All scheduled times ara approximate and depend on traffic and other conditions. To view the corresponding schedule for aach bus stop, click
the bus-stop number, and the schedule will appear directly under the map key at the top and also above the map key at the bottom.

CLICK HERE FOR PRINTABLE VERSION

1L
B o5 @
STARTING REFERENCE ROUTE BUS STOP TRANSFER : -
POINT ROADS  DIRECTION NUMBER  POINT  HOSPITAL SHOPPING AIRPORT LIBRARY COLLEGE
SR 528
FLORIDA BLVD. .. 7.
fr=n)
>
=
" z
75 |
o | z
= | =
w
&
S MUSTANG WAY
5]
Q
=z
SKYLARK AVE.
W AENLS &
=0l = &
%) Q-k-
RICHLAND AVE.™ VA
> &
. & o
| | X (] (=
A oo &5 I;._
> ..:t't' | ltxr.l
g 2y l‘| i >
fu . vel | &
[ . i =4
3 MERRITT AVE. | g
o | | z
| 2 B @
NS SR 520 ' =0l SR 520 z
= = N -
| 'I.I_'. ]. % o0 f
ety oo
' O i
o =t | }
B FORTENBERRY RD. et

r
L
I

i
'

it

e |
STARTING REFERENCE ROUTE BUS STOP TRANSFER éﬁ
POINT ROADS DIRECTION NUMBER POINT HOSPITAL SHOPPING AIRPORT LIBRARY COLLEGE

20
http://www.ridescat.com/maps/english/R03/index.php?id=00 9/17/2009



A
55ﬁZ§ ner

L (M

Potentlal Shelter Locations :"
Merritt island
Priority Location Ridership Current Sheiter Notes
=z 1 [Sr520/s Courtenay Pkwy Southside 1609 / Denny's 5fSes
S 2 |Sr 520/ N Tropical Trail @ 7-11 713 Bench - 741 75k
2 |3 |5r520/S Tropical Trail/ RoSE St 578 Westside Cars__ < “Srbcen ek
4 2 |N Courtenay Phwy/ Crockett 8hvd [SW Corner) 235 BnnctF' B vl L r gl
- | S  [sr520/ S Grove 5t S Side 657 “Church TGl
2| & sr520/ N Courtenay Pkwy Northside @ Dennys (20 i LE 1182 Bench 7 O Sty | hp S/
/ 7 |N Courtenay Pkwy/ Diana Blvd (SE Corner) 179 | Bench | Goodwill 1 M) Suu
2. & |5r520/ N Grove St (NE Corner) 465 | |, Popeyes |75
/ 9 [N Courtenay Pkwy @ McDonalds 190 | Bench ] MOBANDS |5 3}‘*—"
2 10 |Sr 520/ N. Banana River Dr (NW Corner) 386 | Bench v/ | dap il ¥ 55 v
7|11 sr520 @ Office Depot 319 | Bench o | tflle XX 2] | < ( S0
/ 12 |Sr 520/ S Banana River Dr (SE Corner) 172 | Bench - | JE | 6
/ [ 13 [Sr520Between N Banana River Dr (SW Corner) 201 | Bench | Bnn\face 515 ,;,_;
2| 18 |skylark Ave @ Courtenay Palms 323 1[0 BN hS] gpj
/ [ 15 |5r 520 Between Milford Point (NW Corner) 170 Bench v/ | J]f ,n,m
[ 35 [5r520 @ Jimmy Vickars Car Dealer 167 C&{ﬂ Lo S

/ﬂb Np 5 PcuAUE /juﬂ"%/cﬁf herds HMELP ;/

21



/9T Jajeaq J4ed) SUMPIA Awwif @ 02S 4S| 9t

ysuoag 0LT (4oU10) MN) 3Ulod PIOJIN UDIMIDY 0ZS S| ST

€T¢ swied Aeusuno) @ aAy yJejlAs| v

Jejluog youag 10T (49uu0D MS) 4@ 49A1Y BURUEG N UDDMIBY 0TS 4S| €T

11-L youag LT (4ou10) 3S) 4Q JaAIY eUBURY S /0TS US| T

youag 6T¢E 10daQ 2240 @ 025 4S| 1T

youag 98¢ (42u10D MIN) 4@ JaA1Y eUBURY N /0TS 4S| OT

youag 061 sp|euo@aIN @ Amdd Aeusuno) N 6

saAadod S9t (J9U10) IN) 1S BA0ID N /0TS US| 8

[[IMpo0oD youag 6/T (4ouw10) 3S) pAlg euelq /Amdd Aeuauno) N L

youag {811 sAuuaQg @ apIsyHON Amid Aeusnod N /0ZS 4S| 9

yainyo yosuag LS9 3pPIS S 1S 309 S /0TS4S S

youag GET (1au107 MS) pAIg 1192040 /Amyd Aeuanuno) N ¥

SJg) 9pISIsOM 8.9 15 350y /|1ed] [eaidoat S /0TS IS €

TT-L yauag e1L 11-L © |1ed] |ealdoJ] N /0TS IS [4

s, Auuag 6091 apisyinos Amyd Aeusuinod s /0zS 4S T
S910N 133}|9ys uaiin) diysiapiy uoijedol|Ayuond

pue|s| BN

SUOI1EJ07 493|2YS [B1IU310d

22



23



O iy ., : Ses)
Sleptil ) =k BdS
punogIsam punoqjses
_ 619 a8ed
'usls dols snq e ppy :SuUOlEpUSWIWIOIRY
—— — —]
[le1dy :siojelaueD diig
—
TUOND3UUO) 3)GISSIINY (sayduy) gind woyy asueisiq _
103u) Jteyd|aayan ‘UoRIpUaY) S BYS ON :13313Ys |
@3epng dwey qin) :adojs dwey qin) |
:dwey qin) 1e uolisuel) yoows oN :dwey gand *
:3unuep sjqePNeq bz YIPIM ([N 2|qea3aq |
‘uo1lipuo) Sululep ajqerralag ‘Bulniep 31qeneq _ |
Hjjemssol) pardajosd ON |EMSSOIY palen * ooy (eyuawajddng punoqyinog punoqyuon
8 :(303)) yapIm yemopis
ON :uoleAa|a ut a8ueyd b/t S3A  iUORDBUUCH Ylemapls
SIB(IIRQ ON :SI3MIRg \IRG
uonINAISqo oN SUSRINNISYO Y'RE

| Z'0 ‘(%) adojs ssouy T°0 :(%) adojs Suluuny
S$13343p ON :uoiipuo) yi2g
SSA 124ES v'gd 2yi §|
9)3U5U0) s|ene vYigd
‘eale yigg e spuanasd jeym
S3A :BDIR yRG € 343Y) 5|

j 13}qISSIY 3|NPaYdS
1UORINIISqO uesyses | 19)q15$320Yy uedyses ]
v/N (uoponssqp ysuag V/N :3|qissadsy youag
SUON sanpiuawy

Jwasald 10u udis :9Feudis a 001‘2$ 150 |e10)
:Ap3anio) paaunopy usis 9-4 9dAL ydsH/edAL qen) ||

0LE Hjuey
LT :|elo} g diysapiy 0T 3503 1- :leuonesado ¢ Arajes S Aqissadoy :Sunoss

= 0 iunyJsad diysiapry adesany

SUDN spiezey
12905 JO  :uonlasIAu] 0} uopeas|ay

weldwos jou udis :saimjesy ueydwon-uoN _

BUE) NIYI-{3ARI B U] :UO[IEIOT SNg _ USIS MaN sswalf xi4 Yoy

(quno pasies e yym 392135 sy 0y 1us2eipe) 3jjemMapis ay1 UG uoneIT) dojg _ punogise3 tuopsang oN auendwo) yay SaA i oIND
s e e e e : . )

—’ qenw 96669°08- :apnyduoy LTSSE'RZ apmpe) XXV 18 AMMd AYNILYNOD HLNOS :uoj3esoq P08BST :ql |




_ 1D: 11017 Location: COURTENAY PKWY & TENNESSEE AVE

Latitude: 28.362264 Longitude: -80 700095

|
‘L

[ Quick Fix: No ADA Compliant: No
_ Quick Fix items:
_ Non-Compliant Features: Boarding and alighting area not compliant

Average Ridership per Run: 1
Scoring: Actessibility: 4 Safety 7
| Rank: 783  Total Cost: $15,700

Operational: 2 Cost: -20

Rideship:

Direction® Northbound

a Total: -3

=T |I|.|I| |
Stop Location: On the sidewalk (adjacent to the street with a raised curb)
Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane

Releation to Intersection: At street, on nearside of intersection

Hazards None

Curb Type/Height: Type F-6
Signage: Standard bus stop sign post

Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Northbound Southbound

Eastbound

Ciast

O 1 P ARET

Westbound

Supplemental Photo

Page 263

Amenities: Bus Schedule
Bench Accessible: N/A
Trashcan Accessible:

Bench Obstruction: N/A
Trashcan Obstruction:

Schedule Accessible: Yes

Is there a B&A area: No

What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Concrete

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: No defects
Running Slope (%): 0.3

B&A Obstructions: No obstruction
B&A Barriers: No barriers

Cross Slope (%): 3.5

Sidewalk Connection: Yes 1/4" Change in Elevation: No
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5

Marked Crosswalk: No
Detectable Warning: Yes
Detectable Full Width: Yes
Curb Ramp: Yes

Protected Crosswalk: Yes

Detectable Warning Condition: Excellent
24" Detectable Warning:  Yes

Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Slope: VYes

Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition:
Distance from Curb (inches): Accessible Connection:

Wheelchair into:

7 Trip Generators: Government, Office/Commercial, Residential, Retail

Recommendations: Move the stop 90" south. Resurface the BRA area to have a cross slope
<=2%.

25



BANO
Slepil

'sduier qind Agueat ay) o3 sBulusem sjqedalsp PRY :SUDRBPUSWIWIOIDY

11€19Y ‘|eRRUBPISaY ‘|e1DIBWWO) /3310 ‘qeyay/|eaIpalN S103e1BUBD dis) _

(sayaun} qun) woyy adueysig
oN 33eys

{UOIPAUUO) 3|GISSINIY

0| JIBYI[BIYM uonIpuo) 5BYBYS

SO\ 2depng dwey qin)

saA :dwey qIn) 1e uosisuel) YooLws
:uiurem sjqedarag o2

‘uolpuo) Buiuiep ajqeaiaq

ON j|emssol) pajrslodd

s3), :adojs duey qiny
s3A :dwey qiny

“HIPIM INd 3|qenaeq
ON  1Bulusem 3jqealag
SIA H|BMSSOID paIe]

S :{193)) BpIM Niemapls

ON :uoneA?|3 u) 38ueyy ,v/T S3A UORIBUUOG) NiEMIPIS
Si31)ieq ON :sJalleg vweg
UOIINI5qo ON SUORANAISO Y'8g
L0 (%) adojs Suluuny

$123J2p ON :uolpuo) YwEYg

S3j i3jes v'gg Ui s)

91213U0)D :S|elSIRN V'R

‘B3JE v'3g € SjusAdld Jeysn

80 :(%) edojs sson)

S3) 'BAJE 'RE B 313Y1 5]

SBA  t3|qIsS3IIY BNpaYIs
{U01INIISqQ UBIYSES ) 13{qI55320y URIYSRI|
Y/N uondnisqo youag V/N :9]qIssandy Youag

3npayas sng  sanusy

09Z 83ed

0310yd |eyuswWwaddng

LIRS TR

1Ses.
=
punogisam

punoqisey

{213 euondaup ‘ayyen) sudis saylo Yym paleys 1sod/stod up :28eud|s
SaA :Apaasio) pajunopy uss 9-4 adA1L :ySjaH/adAL gan)

auoN spiezeHq

USHI35JU| JO SPISIE3U UD 138115 3y :UD13935133U] 03 UOIIED(PY
3UE| NIY)-jARL] @ U] :uo[1EI0T Shg

{Quno pasies e yym 183335 ayy 0} uasefpe) yjjemapls 3yl UQ :uopeloT dois

T eroL g .diysepjy

pUNOQLUINOS  :uB{Ida4g

9E¥00L708 apnuduo]

EGELIE BT ‘apmre

008'T$ :150) |e10)
5 A1ajes

vE Hjuey
0T :AM|IgISsSa00Y (Suods |
T :uny sad diysiopiy adeiany _

ST 150D £ ileuopesado

sdujuieps 2]qe1913Q  saunyead Jueydwor-uoy
SRy X1 PInp |

ON ueydwo) yay ON X4 ¥oIND |

S3VAD JHNINACY 8 AINLYNGCD :uonedo] vTOTT :al |




£/7 a8ed

1 310U 335 £2I12 ¥'9g |2A3| |
pue pasiel e 3183J2 01 Q4N 9 PasIB B YUM qe|S ,8X,G (9AD| B 2ARA3. pue
2208 \3g 3UNsIX? 2Y) 1R JusWaned 3y} vAoWsg I58Mm 0f O3S 3UI SAOIA .SUDPIBPUSWIWOIRY

|IEISY ‘|BluapIsay ‘[BI2ISWWOD /30140 sJ0yelaudy diig

punogisam

IUORIDBLLIOY 3)qIS53IDY
103U Jieyd[33Ym

1UOINPUOD 433[3YS

:(sayoul) qun) woy sauesiq

ON J93aYs |

s :@3epng duey qun)
saA :dwey qin) je uonisuel) YIooWs

saA :ado|s dwey q.n)
53, dwey qn)y

s34 Sunuiepn s|gewanaq vz
WaPax3  uolipuo) Juniess 3|qeIsiag

SSA  WIPIAA JINd 3iqe331aq
SIA BUIUIBAN B)qRIIBIDQ |

535 I|EMS501) PaIdaloid SSA H|EMSS0L) padIEYY |

S :(1924) yipIM HIemapis

OGN :UuolRBA3(|3 ul dueyd /T S3A  1UORIBUUO) Y|EMBPIS
siallleq ON :s4314leg vigd
U0i1oNnsgo oN :suoj3tnIIsqo vizd
T°0 :(%) 2do|s Bujuuny

qJnd pasies ON .UORIPUO) ¥RY
S2A -24BS V'R 3Y1 S

91213U0) “S|EMBIB Y'RE

‘Bale yigd E sjuanaud 18Yypp

6'T :(%)odols sso1

S3) :E3IE YiRY B 343} 5|

13|G155392Y 3npayds

TUORINIISqO UeIyses | 13]|q15S832Y uesysed
V/N iuondnuisqo yosuag V/N :3]|qissainy yousg
SUON sanuawy _

A

150d udis doys sng pJepuels :afeusdis

S3A  1Ap28ai0) paunciy udis -Ajuo 13nino ydiaH/adAL qun

95204 oy

3uoN spiezey
UO[I33SJ31U] JO 3PISIBSU U 183135 1Y 1UOI1I35191U] OF LONES|BY
! p! | I

Jue| NiY1-|3AEs) B U| 1U0KREIOT SNg
(g4na pasiel e yym 19245 ay1 01 Jua2e(pe) 3[eMap!s ay3 uQ :uonelo] dois

punogisap  fuoisdg

“diysapry

0 350> £ {leuonedadp

g4nD pasiey ON Juel|dwrod Jou eate Bunysie pue Suipieog :saaMesd Jue]|dwo)-uoN

ON :juendwo) yay

006°L$ (150D |e1o) LT Huey
6 Mmjes v ANgIsseIoY Juliods
T uny Jad diyssapry adelsay

ISWay| Xi4 H3INPH
ON X4 ¥2InD

|
—_— —_—

781669'08- ‘apnuduo] T8C69E'8C -apmine

3SNOH HONVIN 8 3AY ANVTIHIIY :uorelro)

£201T :a _E




_ ID: 15803 Location: COURTENAY PALMS APARTMENTS & COURTENAY PKWY

Latitude: 28.370318 Longitude: -80.700165 Map

1
| Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No Direction: Northbound
_ Quick Fix Items: Relocate Bench

Non-Compliant Features: Bench not accessible

Average Ridership per Run; 0
Scoring: Accessibility: 11 Safety 8 Operational: 5 Cost: 5 Rideship: © Total: 23

Rank: 131 Total Cost: $4,900

Northbound Southboun Supplemental Phato

Page 618

Eastbound Westbound
PaC
waS

ZEP S T AP

|

| Stop Location: On the sidewalk (adjacent ta the street with a raised curb)

Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane
Releation to Intersection: At street, on far side of intersection
Hazards None

Curb Type/Height: Type F-6 Sign Mounted Correctly. Yes
Signage: Standard bus stop sign post
Amenities: Bench (3rd Party), Bus Schedule
Bench Accessible: o Bench Obstructron: No
| Trashcan Accessible: Trashcan Obstruction:

[ Scheduie Accessible: Yes

Is there 2 B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Concrete

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: No defects

Running Slope (%): 1.4 Cress Slope (%): 0.3

B&A Obstructions: No obstruction

B&A Barriers: No barriers

Sidewalk Connection. Yes 1/4" Change in Elevation: No
Sidewalk Width (feet); 5

Marked Crosswalk: Yes Protected Crosswalk: Yes

Detectable Warning: o Detectable Warning Condition:
Detectable Full Width: 24" Detectable Warning:

Curb Ramp: Yes Smocth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Slepe: Yes Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition: Wheelchair Into:
Distance from Curb {inches): Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators. Residential, Retail

Recommendations: Move the bus stop 280’ south. Move the pole with the bus schedule

adjacent to the pavement to make it accessible. Make sure the bus stop
sign is located on the far side of the B&A area, See note 5 Move the
bench so that it is flush with the edge of the sidewalk and outside of the
B&A area.

Tindale
i Oliver

28



| ID: 10999

Location: SKYLARK AVE & COURTENAY PALMS

Latitude: 28.371432

-80.699141

Longitude:

Quick Fix ltems:

Non-Compliant Features:

ADA Compliant: No

Average Ridership per Run: 3

Scoring: Accessibility: 2

Quick Fix: No
Rank: 224

Safety 6
Total Cost: $6,400

Operational: 4 Cost O

Rideship:

Direction: Eastbound

Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Schedule not accessible, No Raised Curb

12 Total: 24

_ Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane
| Releation to Intersection:
_ Hazards None

| Curb Type/Height: Guttel only-

| Sighage: Standard bus stop sign post

Northbound

Southbound

Supplemental Photo

Bus Schedule
N/A
Trashcan Accessible:

Amenities:

Bench Accessible:

Schedule Accessible: hio

| Stop Location: On the sidewalk (with no curb)

At street, on far side of intersection

Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Bench Obstruction. N/A

Trashcan Obstruction:

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area:
B&A Materials: Partially Paved
Is the B&A Safe. Yes

Running Slope (%): 0.1
B&A Obstructions: No obstruction
B&A Barrlers: No barriers
Sidewalk Connection: No
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant

Cross Slope (%): 0.1

1/4" Change in Elevation. No

29

Marked Crosswalk: e
Detectable Warning: %o
7 Detectable Full Width.
_ Curb Ramp: Yes
_ Curb Ramp Slope: Yes

Protected Crosswatk: Yes

Detectable Warning Con
24" Detectable Warning:
Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

| Shelter: No Shelter Conditio
_ Distance from Curb {Inches):

n: Wheelchair Into:
Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Residential

Recommendations: Pave a level 5°'x8’ slab with a raised 6” curb for the B&A area adjacent to
the existing paved path. See note 1. Move the bus stop sign to the far side
of the B&A area and make sure the bus schedule is accessible. See note 5.

Page 247

Tindale
2 Qliver




ID: 11008 Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & MCDONALDS

Latitude: 28.374256 Longitude: -80.700662 Map

Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No
Quick Fix ltems: Relocate Bench

Warnings, No Raised Curb

Average Ridership per Run: 2
Scoring: Accessibility: -2 Safety 3 Operatlonal: 2 Cost: 0 Rideship:

| T
Northbound _ Stop Location: On an unpaved shoulder of roadway

Non-Compliant Features: Bench obstruction, Bench nat accessible, Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Detectable

; Hazards None

Rank: 501 Total Cost: $6,100

Eastbound S\mmGOLJn
SPaK €
CmaSt

AT S AR

Bus Location: In a no parking portion of a street lane

Releation to Intersection: At street, on far side of intersection

Curb Type/Height: None Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes
7 Signage: Standard bus stop sign post
Amenlities: Bench (3rd Party)
Bench Accessible: o Bench Obstruction: Ves
Trashcan Accessible: Trashcan Obstruction:

Schedule Accessible:

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a BRA area:

B&A Materials: Dirt/Grass

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant

Running Slope (%): 0.1 Cross Slope (%) 0

B&A Obstructions: Moveable Street furniture (waste cans, benches, etc.)
B&A Barriers: No barriers
Sidewalk Connection: Yes
Sidewalk Width (feet): 5

1/4" Change in Elevation: No

| Marked Crosswalk: o
Detectable Warning: No Detectable Warning Condition:
Detectable Full Width: 24" Detectable Warning:

Curb Ramp: Yes Smooth Transstion at Curb Ramp: Yes

Protected Crosswalk: Yes

Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

m Curb Ramp Slope. Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition- Wheelchair Into:

Distance from Curb {inches): Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Medical/Rehab, Office/Commercial, Retail

Recommendations: Pave alevel 5'x8" slab with a raised 6” curb for the B&A area. See note 1.
Move the bench so that it is flush with the edge of the sidewalk and outside
of the B&A area. Add detectable warnings to the nearby curb ramps.

Tindale
2 Qliver

30



| ID: 10598 Location: COURTENAY PKWY & COUNTRY CLUB APTS

Latitude: 28.377716 Longitude: -80 70223 Map _

7 Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No
Quick Fix Items: Relocate Bench

accessible, No Raised Curb

Average Ridership per Run: 0

Scoring: Accessibility: -2 Safety 3 Operational: 2 Cost: -5 Rideship: 0

Rank: 766 Total Cost: $8,100

Direction

Non-Compliant Features: Bench obstruction, Bench not accessible, Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Schedule not

Southbound

T _
_ﬁ Stop Location. On an unpaved shoulder of roadway _
|

|| Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane

__ Releation to Intersection: At street, on nearside of intersection

| Hazards None

_ |l|:-I|-...|

Curb Type/Height: None
Signage: Standard bus stop sign post

Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Eastbound

SPa(
e

friz M 3

Westbound

Page 246

Amenities: Bench (3rd Party) Bus Schedule

Bench Accessible: o Bench Obstruction: ves

Trashcan Accessible: Trashcan Obstruction:

w Schedule Accessible: Nc

L

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Dirt/Grass

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant

Running Slope {%}: 0.1 Cross Slope {%): 3 2

| B&A Obstructions: Moveable Street furniture (waste cans, benches, etc.)

B&A Barriers: No barriers

| Sidewalk Connection. No 1/4" Change in Elevation: No
* Sidewalk Width {feet): 5

[ ._

_ Marked Crosswalk: 7o Protected Crosswalk: Yes

Detectable Warning: o
Detectable Full Width:
Curb Ramp. Yes

Detectable Warning Condition *
24" Detectable Warning:
Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes A

Curb Ramp Slope: Yes Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Shelter: No
Distance from Curb {inches):

Shelter Condition: Wheelchair into:

Accessible Connection: |
1

Trip Generators: Office/Commercial, Residential, Reta

Recommendations: Move the stop 530" north. Pave 3 level 5'x8’ slab with a raised 6” curb for
the BRA area. See note 1 Move the pole with the bus schedule adjacent to
the pavement to make 1t accessible,

Move the bench so that it 1s flush with the edge of the sidewalk and cutside
of the B&A atea

Tindale

2 Qliver

31



[ ID: 10997

| Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & DIANA BLVD

Latitude: 28.384536 Longitude: -80.702662

Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No
Quick Fix Items: Relocate Bench

Direction: Northbound

Non-Compliant Features: Bench not accessible, Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Schedule not accessible, No Raised
Curb

Average Ridership per Run: 0
Scoring: Accessibility: 2 Safety 6
Rank: 629  Total Cost: $8,600

Operational: 3 Cost: -5 Rideship: 0 Total: 6

|| Releation to Intersection:

Supplemental Photo

Westhound Page 245

Stop Location: On an unpaved shoulder of roadway
Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane

At street, on nearside of intersection

| Hazards None

Curb Type/Height:
Signage: Standard bus stop sign post

Amenlties: Bench (3rd Party), Bus Schedule
Bench Accessible; o

None Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Bench Obstruction No
Trashcan Obstruction:

Trashcan Accessible.
Schedule Accessible: o

Is there a B&A area: Yes _

What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Dirt/Grass

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable
Running Slope (%}: 0.2

B&A Obstructions: No obstruction
B&A Barriers: Located in drainage ditch

, or slip resistant
Cross Slope (%): 6.5

32

Sidewalk Connection: No
Sidewalk Width {feet): 5

1/4" Change in Elevation: No

Marked Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning: Yes
Detectable Full Width: Yes
Curb Ramp:; Yes

Protected Crosswalk: Yes

Detectable Warning Condition;
24" Detectable Warning: Yes
Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes

Good

Curb Ramp Slope: Yes

Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition: Wheelchair Into: ;

Distance from Curb (inches):

Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Retall

Recommendations: Move the stop 340" north. Pave a level 5'x8’ slab with a raised 6” curb for
the B&A area See note 1. Add a 13" path to connect the B&A to the
existing sidewalk Move the bench so that it is flush with the edge of the
sidewalk and outside of the B&A area. Move the pole with the bus
schedule adjacent to the pavement to make it accessible.

Tindale
i Oliver



ID: 11006 Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & CROCKETT BLVD

Lengitude:

Latitude: 28.384326

Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No Direction: Southbound
Quick Fix Items: Relocate Bench

Non-Compliant Features: Bench obstruction, Bench not accessible, Boarding and alighting area not compliant, Schedule not

accessible, No Raised Curb

Average Ridership per Run: 0
Scoring: Accessibility: 0

Rank: 559

Safety 6
Total Cost: $7,700

Operational: 3 Cost: O Rideship: 0 Total: 9

Northbound Supplemental Photo

S A ey

Eastbound Westbound Page 252

pPace o

CmdSt

S

_ Stop Lacation: On an unpaved shoulder of roadway
Bus Location: In a right turn only lane
Releatlon to Intersection: At street, on far side of intersection

Hazards None

Curb Type/Height: None
Signage: Standard bus stop sign post

Bench (3rd Party), Bus Schedule

Sign Mounted Correctly: Yes

Amenities:

Bench Accessible: N Bench Obstruction: Vs
Trashcan Accessible: Trashcan Obstruction:
Schedule Accessible: o

Is there a B&A area: Yes
What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Partiaily Paved
Is the B&A Safe: Yes
B&A Condition: Surface not firm, stable, or slip resistant

-80.702883 Map

Running Slope (%): 0.3 Cross Slope (%): 0.5 |
B&A Obstructions: Moveable Street furniture (waste cans, benches, etc.}

B&A Barriers: No barriers

Sidewalk Connection, Yes 1/4" Change In Elevation: No

Sidewalk Width (feet}: 5 _
Marked Crosswalk: Yes Protected Crosswalk: Yes _

Detectable Warning: Yes
Detectable Full Width: VYes
Curb Ramp: Yes

Detectable Warning Condition:
24" Detectable Warning:  Yes
Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

Excellent

Curb Ramp Slope. Yes

Shelter: No Shelter Condition:
Distance from Curb (inches):

Wheelchair Into:

Accessible Connection:

Trip Generators: Medical/Rehab, Office/Commercial, Residential, Retail

Recommendations: Move the bus stop ~170' north. Remove the pavement at the existing B&A

area and repave a Jevel 5'x8’ slab with a raised 6” curb to create a raised

and level B&A area. See note 1. Move the bench so that it 1s flush with the _
edge of the sidewalk and outside of the B&A area. Move the pole with the
bus schedule adjacent to the pavement to make it accessible.

Tindale
ZOliver

33



7 {D: 11003 Location: N COURTENAY PKWY & CENTRE OF MERRITT PUBLIX Latitude: 28.385052 Longitude; -80.701906 Map
7 Quick Fix: Yes ADA Compliant: No Direction: Northbound Stop Location: On the sidewalk (adjacent to the street with a raised curb)
| Quick Fix Items: New Sign Bus Location: In a travel-thru lane
Nan-Compliant Features: Sign not compliant Releation to Intersection: Off street
Hazards None
| Average Ridership per Run: 0 - B .h,.q
| Scorlng: Accessibility: B Safety 5 Operational: 0 Cost: 10 Rideship: 0O Yotal: 23

| Rank: 228

Total Cost: 52,100

e R Sl O
Southbound

2

& o O
7 _?..f.
AT A5

Eastbound

e
Nmm St

A4 PEAMGPY

Westbound

Supplemental Photo

Curb Type/Height: Type F-6
Signage: Sign not present
Bike Rack
Bench Accessible: N/A
Trashcan Accessible:

Sign Mounted Correctly:

Amenities:
Bench Obstruction: N/A
Trashean Obstruction:
Schedule Accessible:

Is there a B&A area: Yes

What prevents a B&A area:

B&A Materials: Concrete

Is the B&A Safe: Yes

B&A Condition: No defects
Running Slope {%): 0.1

B&A Obstructions: No abstruction
B&A Barriers: No barriers

Cross Slope (%): 1.3

| Sidewalk Connection: Yes 1/4" Change in Elevation: No
Sidewalk Width {feet): 9

34

Marked Crosswalk: Yes
Detectable Warning: no
Detectable Full Width:
Curb Ramp: Yes

Curb Ramp Slope: Yes

Protected Crosswalk: No
Detectable Warning Condition:

24" Detectable Warning:

Smooth Transition at Curb Ramp: Yes
Curb Ramp Surface: Yes

_ Shelter: No Shelter Condition:
| Distance from Curb (inches):

Wheelchair into:
Accessible Connection:

_ Trip Generators: Office/Commercial, Residential, Retail

Recommendations: Add a bus stop sign.

Tindale
= Oliver



35



RO
3(epulL

"%C=>}0 wao_m S$S0JD B 2AE| 0] B3R yigg 9U] 208JINS3Y :Suoljepuatuuioday

|le12Y ‘|R1UBPISIY ‘[BIZIBWWOD/3040 :S103esaudn du)

:(sayour) gan)y wouy asueisiq
ON :1)3ys

1U0I33ULOY) 3|qISSIIY
103U JIeY2R2YM :uonIpuc) I933YS

saA :2oepns dwey qun) s3, :adojs dwey qin)
saA :dwey gin)
‘YIPIM [IN4 9|ge1d2leq

soA :Juiusep 9)Gerdnlaqg

so) :dwey gin) 1e uorsuel] yloows
s3A  :Buluiep s|qe1LlLa k7 SOA
UB|[3IX3  :uo

1puo) Juiuiepn djqerrsiaqg

S3A  D{|EMSSOI) PR13310.d S3A DI|EMSSOID) PRI

S :(2934) y1ptAn Nemapis

ON :uonead|z ui auey)d .v/T S9A  :U0I12BUUO) Y|EeMaPplS
SJ31eq oN :sialueq y3d
uol1310NJ1SqO ON :SUOI1PNIISqO v'3d
1°T (%) 2dojs Suruuny

§123Jap ON :UOIHpUO) VY

SIA 948S vRE Yl S|

91240U0D :sjeldle Al V8 d

57 (%) ado|s sso1)

997 a3ed

0104d |eruawajddng

1eaJe y'gg e siuanaid 1eym

SO 1B Y'Rg € 3IBYL S|

S3A :3]qISSAIIY JNPIYIS
1UoIIINIISGO UBIYSEL |
v/N

:19]q1SS932y uedyses|
v/N
3|Npayas sng s

1UOIPNIISAO Yduag 13]q1sS320Y Yauag

auwry

150d ug|s dois snq paepueis :a8eugis
SaA :Aj199440) patunolp usis 9-4 3dA| :ySeH/adA) qun)

UOI1035J31U] 4O BPIS JBJ UO 193415 1Y 1UO}IBSIAU| 0} UOIIEI[DY
aue| NIYI-j3ARI] B U| 1UOIIRIO0] SN
(gand pasies e yum 199.41s 8y 03 JUBdE(pE) Ylemapis 3yl uQ :uonedro] dois

N

6v£50L°08- :3pnuduol 69£95€°8¢ :apnuie]

QUON spJezeHq

punogisam punogqise3

punoqyinos

8¢ el

punoqisey

uondalg

:dysapry

0T :1s0)

009°2Z$ 150D |eloL €S Hjuey
6 A9jes 9 :AunqIssaldy :Sulods
7 :uny Jad diysiapty adesany

S :jeuonesddo

juelidwod jou eale BunySie pue Suipieog  :sainieaj Jueydwo)-uoN _
BIUEMBAER kiliTe]

oN nwendwoe) vay ON :Xi4%9IND

15 3S0Y B 1IVYL IVIIdOHL S 0ZS ¥S :uoneson 0¢0TT :al |



ABAHO ™
SlepuilL

89¢ a5ed

*9%7=> 40 9dO|S S50.0 B IABY 0} BIJE Y199 S} 3DBLINSIY ISUOIIEPUSWILOIRY

jie1ay :siolesauag duy |

:U01193UU0Y) J|qISSIIIY :{sayaut) g4n) woiy sduelsiq [
:03U§ JIBYI|33YM 1UOIHPUO) J3}|BYS ON :J9y3Ys

saA :32epuns dwey gin) s34 :adojs dwey qin)
saj :dwey gin)
‘Ypim |Ind sjqerdaiaq

saA :Sujuiepn 31gernlag

saA :dwey gIn) 1e uosues| yloows
so)  :Suluwiem 3|qera1sq bz SBA

1U9|[30X3  :uolpuo) Suluiepn 9qeIINIBG

010yd |eruawajddng

SSA  IJ|BMSSOI) PaIdIRI0Ld SSA D|EMSSOI) pINIEI

S :(1934) YyIpIW NlemapIS
ON :uoneas|j ui aduey) ,v/T S9A  :UOI1I2UUOD) Y[emIpIS
sJ3liieq ON :sJalleg v'eq
UORINIISGO ON 1SUORINNSGO V'Y |
0 (%) adojs Suluuny |
1puoj vgg r =
S\ :9)es y3d ayl si
91240U0D :s|elIAIRIA VRY | ke
:eale yigg e spuanald 1eym |

60T :(%) adojs sso1)
S1J849p ON :uo

ON :e3Je yigg e 3Jayl s| |
]

:3|qISS3IVY ANPAYIS
1UOIIINIISqQ UBIYSEL | 13q1SS3I0Y UedYSe|
ON :uoINIISqO Youdg S9A

(Aved pig) youag

:9[qISSa22Y youag
SaUsWY

punoqisam punogise3

punogyLoN

150d u8is dois snq pJepueis :ageusdis

SoA :A|198440) pajunojp usis 9-1 8dA] :ySeH/adAL qun)

0¢ 1|10l 8 :diysapiy
JUON spaezeH |
UOI3235193U1 4O 3PIS Jej UD 193115 1Y :UOIIISIALU| 03 UOHIED)RY |
[ BUE| NJYI-|3ARI) B U| UOIIRIOT SN
(g4nd pasiel e yum 183115 3yl 01 Juade[pe) yjemapts 3yl uQ :uonero] dois | puUNOGISIA,  :uORIANG

6S045€°8C :apniie]

ETYS0L°08- :@pniduo)

€71 juey
8 Aupgissadoy :Junols

00%°9$ :3s0) |eloL

0 :350) S :jeuonesado 6 A1ajes

¢ :uny Jad diysiopry s3esany

1ueldwod jou ease Sunnysie pue Sujpieog  :sasnjeaq jueydwo)-uon
ISWIdY X140

ON 244 N0
|

0Tt “D_l_

HVYLTYIIdOYL N B 0TS ¥S :uonedo]




FETN o B
sjepulf,

punogisam

_ /G 93ed
‘BaJe YI9g 8y} Jo

[
[
| spisino pue yjemopis aua 4O 383 BU1 YUM UYSNL SI 1 1BY] 05 YDUSQ 3431 A0 :SUOHEPUIILIOITY |
|

[1e13y :si03esauap duy 7

1U01)23UL0) 3|qISSAIIY :(sayaul) gan) wouy 3dueISIq

101U] JIBY3SYM 1UOoINpUO) 13} 3YS ON :13)3y$s
$3A :92euns dwey qin) ssA :adojs dwey gin)y _
saA :dwey qin) 1e UolMsuel] Yloows s9A :dwey qin) |
595 :Suuiepn 3|qe1danaq , .ve S9A  IYIPIAA |INd 31qE1IN8Q TAeES ..w....
poon :uonipuo) Suluiepn Ijqerdslag s9A :Suluiepn 91ge11318d@ T s
SIA  Hj|EMSS0J) paIIBI0I] SDA HJRMSSOS) pINIRIA| ojoyd |ejuawalddng punoqyuoN
I— | 3
S :(1934) yipian yemapis
ON :uoneas|z uladuey) /1 SBA  :UOIIIBUUO) HY|EMIPIS Bl g NES e,
Sisliieq ON :sJalueg yed | : : :

uonaNI}sqo oN :suonanJIsqQO vi9g

€0 (%) adojs sso1) T°0 (%) adojs Suuuny
S12342p ON :Uu0lIpUO) VR _

S3A :9JeS V'RE AUl Si
919J0U0)) :S|eldleIN viRd |
:eaJe yigg e sjuanaud 1eym |

S3A ‘B3Je \'Rd B 343Y] S|

S3A  19[GISSIIIY INPaYIs

1u0119N1ISqO UBdYSeI] :9|qIS$327y uedysed|
ON :uo1dNIISqQ Youag ON  :9§qIS$320Y Ydouag
3INpay2s sng ‘(Aped pJg) yousg :sauswy

150d uSs dois snq plepueis :a8eudis o 008°T$ :350) [R10], 0z Hjuey

524 :Adanio) paunoly usis 9-32dAL :yB1eH/2dAL qiny G :jerol 2T :diysapiy ST 350D S :jeuonesadgQ 6 A1ayes €T :Aupqgissanny :Suuods

€ :uny Jad diysiaply a3esony

SUON spJezeH
UO0I108SJ)UL JO 3PS JBY UO '193J1S 1Y :UOI1IDSIBIU| O] UOIIBI|Y 3]Q155920€ 10U Youag :saJnjeaq jueldwo)-uon

QUE| NJY]-|3AEL]) B U| tuoned0] Sng ydouoag 91e20|3Y :Sswial] Xi4 }IIND

7 (guno pasiel e yum 19311S ay) 0} Juaselpe) yjemapls ay1 uQ :uoneao] dois

punogise3 :uoi3daIq oN :uedwo) yay S3A X143ND

_ aen 12120408~ :3pnuBuon €929S€°87 :apnIe] 3015 S LS IA0Y¥D § '8 0ZSHS uonedo TI0TT :al




suQnepuUIWWoley ON SUOIIRPUSWWIOIDY _

yoany) ‘[1e1ay ‘|enuapIsay  :s401esauadn diiy

1U0I3IBUUO) J|QISSIIDY :(sayaur) qan) woiy aduelsiq
103U| J1eYI|IIYM ‘uonIpuod J19YAYS ON :43)3ys

s9A :9depuns dwey qun) saj :adojs dwey g4n)
59, :dwey qin)
SOA  UIPIM JINd @]qe1I818Q

sap :Suluiepn 9jqe1astag

soA :dwey gin) 1e uoilsuel] yloows
s9p  :Swusepn 9iqe3L1aq , vz
WU3([30xX3  :uonipuo) Suiuiep) 3|qe1a1ad

ON j|emsso0J) pajdalod S3A JEMSSOI) PIEIN |

S :(1934) yIpIM NieMBPIS
ON :uoneaa|3 ul adueyd v/T S3A  IUOHIRUUO) Y|EMmBPIS
Sia4ieq oN :sialueg ygd
uolnodNIISqO ON :SUOIINIISqO VRY
£°0 (%) adojs Suluuny

$103J3pP ON :uUCIIPUO) V'8 g

SIA :9jeS v3d 2Yi 5|

212J0U0) :sjeu3leN v'3d

:ease yipg e sjusanald 1eym

SO :edJe ygg B 213yl S|

0 :(%) 2dojs sso1)

:9]qISSINY NPayYIS
1U01INIISGO UBIYSEeL |
v/N

:3|qISs3aI2Y UBRdYSEe. |

1uoIPNANSqO Yduag Y/N :9|qISsa22y Yyouag

SUON :Salnuawy
150d uSis dois snq pJepueis :afeudis |
9-4 2dAL :ySieH/adAL qun) |

saA :Aj399410) pajunoy usis

3UON splezeH _

UOI109593U1 JO 3PS JBJ UO “199J15 1Y :U01}D3SI21Uj 03 UOIIe3|aY
3ue| NIY1-jdARI) B U] 1UORIEIOT Shy

(g4nd pasies e ynm 133.1s 2yl 01 WddE[pE) Y|EemapIs 3Y3 UQ :uoned0] dois

E¥9T04°08- :apnyduoq CTT/SE'8T apmuie]

1G¢ 98ed

LT

punoqisam

punogyinos

TET {[e10L g :diysapry

punogIsap,  :uonIssQ

S :Jeuonesado 9 A1ojes

4

00T :1s0)

saA tuendwo) ygy

0$ 1507 |e10)

9 Hjuey
2T :AujIgissanny :Suuods
:uny 13d diysiapry adesany

:saunies ueljdwo)-uoN
SWRY X14 2N




65¢ 98ed

-doys SNQ 2Y31 104 SUOIIEPUIWILIOIZI ON :SuOoljepuswwiodsy

1eidy :si03esausan dug

:{sayaul) gun) wouy adueisiq

1U01193UUO) 3|qISSIIIY

103U} JIBYIIIIYM ;uoIPuUO) J3)2YS ON :I3Y3ys

s9A :adojs dwey qin)

s9A :@oepns dwey qin)
sa) :dwey qun) 1e uoilsuel] Yroows 5o :dwey qin) |
saA  :Juluiem 9|qeld8lsa , vz SSA IpIA [Ind 9qe13318Q

pooo  :uoiipuo) Suluiepn 3|qe1danad sap :Bujuiepn 3|gerde1ag

S3A  HI|EMSSOI) PII10I4 ON :)|eMSSOI) PaYIE |

oloyd |euawajddng

_

_ )

_ LT :(3934) YIPIM N[emapIS
ON :uoneadjz w sduey) .v/T SBA :UO0IIBUUOD) jj|emapls
|

sJ3liieq ON :SI3LUeq viRg
uo[IANJISqO ON :SUCINIISqO Vg ||
T (%) 2do|s ssou) 70 :(%) 2do|s Bujuuny _
5102J9p ON :UoIIpuo) V3d _
S3A :9JES Y3 Y1 S| _
| 913J0U0) :S|eudle Y'3d
:ease yipg e syusaaud jeym |
SIA :B3JE YRGB 2IDYL S| |

S3A  :3|qISS32IY 3NPaYIS
110112N41SqQ UedYsel | :9]qISsaI0Y ueIYSEed |
ON :uoINNSGO Ydoudg SSA  3]qISs30y youdg |

3[npayds sng ‘(Aued pig) youag :s;

luawy

1sod u8is dois snq pJepuels :afeulis

ssp :Aj128140) pajunojp usis 9-4 3dAL :ydiaH/adAL qun) 62T :[e10L

3UON spJezeH

UOI3035133U] JO 9PISIEAU UO 193415 1Y :UOIIIISIIIU| 0} UOIIE3[DY
3UE| NIY}-|9ARI} B U| :uolleIo] sng |

(gan2 pasies e yum 193.35 3yl 01 Juelpe) Jjlemapis syi uQ :uonedo] dois |

puUNogIsapy  :uonIANQg

den T1/869°08- :apmiduol €6TL5€°8¢ apnhHie]

punoqisam

punoqyuoN

. LS . - WA 8o
0$ 350D [ej01L [ Huey
00T :150) ¢ :Jeuonesadgo L Aisjes 71 :Anpqissasay :Buiiods |

7 :uny Jad diysiapry agesany

:sainjea4 Jueldwo)-uonN
1SWRY X134 }AND
soA uendwo) yay ON :XI4 ¥2IND

SANN3Q / AMMd AVNILYNOD N '8 0TS ¥S 1Uonedol €101T QI



FT g Tac
SfepulL

N|EMBIPIS BYY UL HOBID DY} SIBUNSIY '%T7=> JO

|
|
|
wao_m SS0JJ B 3ABY O] BaJe ¢igg 2yl 23BLINS3Y "1Sem G/7 dois SNQ 2Yi 2A0|A SUOIlEpUIWIWOIRY _

|le1oy  :si03esauag duj

:{sayour) q4n) wouy adueisiq |
ON :313ys _

:U0IIIBUUO) BYGISSIIY
03U JIRYIPIYM uorHpUO) I3} 3YS

$9, :32epns dwey qun) soA :adojs dwey qun) _

59 :dwey gin) 1€ UOIHSURI] Y100WS saj dwey qun) |
S3A IIPIM fINd 31919314 |
s3A :Suluiepn 2)qerdsiaq _
ON :}|BMSSOID) PIBW |

saA  :Sulwepn ajqe1dIniaq v

poon :u uo) Suiuiepn 3|qe3da3aq

S2A  D|eMSS0I) Pa31Idjold

8 :(1994) YIPIM demapis
S3A :uoneaa|y ul aSueyd ,b/T SOA  1UOIIIDULO)D HEMIPIS

Sisllieq ON :siduueg vigd
U011on115q0 ON :SU0IINIISqO v'39

£t (%) 2do|s ss0uD) £°0 :(%) ado|s Suluuny
pa1e101J318p B0LLINS PAAR] UOINIPUO) ¥iRd
SSA :34eS v'Rd Ayl s)

213J0U0) :s|elIRIB V'RY

:eaJe yipg e sjuaaaid 1By

— — —

SSA  13(qIS59I2Y NPaYdIS
1UoKINIISqO uelyses|
/N :uondnuisqQ ysuag v/N

:3|qISS8I0Y uedysel|
:9qISSAY Youag

JNPaYdS sNg  iSALHUIWY | -

150d udis dois sng piepuels :a8eudis _

saA :A[10a110) pajunoly usis 9-4 adA) :ySiaH/adA) qun) _
_

JUON spJezeH |
UOI1D95133U1 JO BPIS JB} UO 1931151y :UOJIIBSIDIU| O] UOIIES|DY |
SUB| NIYI-|3ARI]L € U] iUONEdOT Shg |

(gn2 pasies e yum 392435 2yl 03 uadelpe) y|emapls 9yl uQ :uonelo] dois |

9/869°08- :apnuduo]

L¥895€°8T :apnneq

GGz 938ed

oloyd |eauawsajddng

punoqisam

LT :|elol

punogises :uondaug

:diysapry

LLE HueY
7 :Anpqissandy :8unods

0019 :150) |e30)
L Aayes

0 :1%0) v :Jeuonesado

1 :uny ad diysiapiy adesany

wuendwod jou esle Sunydije pue Suipieog  :sainjeaq ueydiuo)-uon
SWay X14 YAND

ON :uendwo) vay ON X143}

AN AVNILHNOD S '8 075 ¥S :uonedlol

60017 Q1



87z 98ed

sdwed quna AgJeau syl 03 sSuluiem 3|geId91aP PPY ‘G 210U 39S 'edlE
V89 3Y1 JO 3pIs Jej 3y] uo pa1edo) st udis dois sng syl auns e 9|gIssd0e
U 33ew 01 Juawaned 3yl 01 JuAdE[pE BINPaYIs sNq 34l yUMm 3jod Yl 2A0|A SUOIIEPUIWILIOIDY

11239y ‘|BIDJIBWWOD /01O :5403e48UdD) dit]
|

S3A  1UOIIAUUOY 3[GISSIIY ¥8 :(seyoul) qin) wouy adueisig |

pO0D  :uoHIPUO) 1AYBYS sap :J313YS

SSA :03U| JIBYD|DDYM

S9A :9oeuns dwey g4n) soA :adojs dwey g4n)
sa :dwey qin) 1e uoiysuel] yioows soA :dwey qin)
Juiwiepn s|qeIdaraq vz *YIPIM |INd d1qenaieda

:uoipuo) Suiusepn 9jqerdsiaqg on  :Bujusepn vjgerre1ng

S3A j|EMSSOI) PRI

SIA  [EMSSOI) PR1IBI0Id 010yd |ewudwajddng

S :(1994) yIpIM Nemaprs | [
SIA  :UOIIIDUUO) Y|BMBPIS _

si31lieq op :sJauleg yig 7
UOIINIISCO ON :SUOIIINIISQO VRY

ON :uoneas|3 ui asueyd ,p/T

S0 :{%) ado|s ssos)
5109J9p ON :U0IPUO) V3E
SSA :3JES v'Rd 3yl S|
31310U0) :s|eudle vRg

‘eaJe yigg e syuaaald 1eypn |

SO\ leale yigg B 313yl 5| .

ON  :9|qISS920Y 3|NPaYIS

ON :uOIdNJISqQ Uedyses) SO\ 12]qISS3IIY URDYSEI ]

ON :uo1PNIISqQ Youag S84 :9|qISS3I2Y Yyouag
_ ue) ysed] ‘s|npayds sng ‘(|eniyyQ) youag :sapuswy
1s0d ugis dois snq paepuess :a8eudis

s3A :Apoauio) pajunoy usis 9-4 8dAL :yBreH/adAL quny 6€ 1e1olL v :diysapry

SUON spiezey

U0J123S131U!L JO 3pISIeau Uo ‘19918 1y :uoNDIsSIalU| 0] UOIe3|3y
SUE| NJyl-|oAel) B U| tuOlled0] sng

(gana pasies e yum 133435 3yl 03 Jude[pe) 3jeM3pIS 3yl UG :uoiieso] dois |

puUNogISaA  uoIIBNG

LY T€/€69°08- :@pnuguo]

S97/S€°8¢ apniie)

o1

punoqisam

150D ¢ :JeuoneisadQ

00S‘Z$ 150D |e10] St Hjuey
8 Avges vT A $5820Yy :Sul0dg
T :uny Jad diysiapy sSesony

s3ululepn 319e12913Q ‘9)qISSIVIE 10U BINPAYIS  :S3UNJed4 Jueldwo)-uoN
1SW X149 2INY
ON :Xi4 §2nD

S1O7DIE B 0ZS ¥S :uonelo]

ON :uendwo) yay

Z0OTT :al



‘sdwel qund Agdeau 3y} 01 sSuluiem 3]qeldal1ap ppy

'G 910U 995 “B3JE IR Y1 4O PIS Sy BY) UO Paleao) st udis dois snq Byl

21NS MEIAl "JSIBYS 3Y1 JO JUOL 3] 0 JDSOJD UBD YSel] 31eJ0[3Y "3|]IS5330e
1 @ew o) juswaaed a3y 03 JuadE[pe 3NPaYdS SNG 3y Yyum 3j0d Byl SAO SUOIIRPUIWIWIIDY |

Jie19Y ‘[R12J3WWo) /33O ‘qeysy/|edIpSIN  :stoletauso duap

vyT :(s8youl) qun) wouy aduelsiq
SDA 149)9YS

S9A  1UOIIDUUO) B|GISSIIIY

SOA 103U| JIBYI|IIYM pooO9 :uoIpUO) IBYIYS

SaA :9aepuns dwey gin) sa) :adojs dwey qun)
59, :dwey qun)
“YIpIm |14 3|qe1323aq

oN :Surmiepn 9|qeydalag

s9A :dwey qin) 1e uomsuel) Yyoows
:Buiutem ajqerdnlag .ve

‘uoiipuo) Sulusepn a|qersrag

SBA  jjemssolt) pa13310id SSA |EMSS0J) pasein

S :(1934) YIPIM NIEMIPIS |
ON :uoneaajj ui aduey) ,v/1 S3A 1UOIBUUOD) Y |emapIS
Sl9liieq ON :sisiueg yRg
uol}dNJisqo ON :suolldNIISqO Vg
€1 (%) adojs Sutuuny

512949p ON :UOINPUO) VRH

S3A 12§eS ¥'34 3Y3 S|

91310U0)) s|eldleAl VRg

:eaJe yigg e syuaaaud 1eym

8T :(%) adojs sso1)

SBA 1BAJE Y'Rg € 213y} S|

899 aded

0104d |eruswajddng

punoqisapm punogise3

punogyuoN

ON :UOIINJISqO UBIYSE]
ON :uo0nONIISqQo Youag

UBJ ysel] ‘3|npayas sng ‘(je

594 :AjI8ai10) pajunop udis

U011735J31U] JO 3PIS JB) UO 433435 1y

ON  :3]qISS320Y 3NPayYdIs
ON  :9[qISS3I0Y UBIYSes|
S9A  :9|qISSaY youag
10) youag
150d uis dois snq pJepuels :adeusis

9-43dAL :ySieH/adAL qun)

JUON spJezeH
1U01195131U] 0} UOnEI|AY
3UEJ NIY)-|aALI} B U] :U0I1eI07 Shg

(q4nd pastes e yum 193.3s ay) 03 usdelpe) yjemapis ayl uQ :uoneloq dois

mmhmmw.ow.“mv:u_m:o._

8S695€°87 :apniey

SanuRWY |

VRS YA
e} S A s ¢l

008°2s 150D |e10) 09 Hjuey
/€ :er0] 0 :diysapiy 0T :150) S :leuonesadp 8 Aajes 1 Aupgissendy :8unodg
0 :uny sad dysiapiy aSesany
SuIUIBA 2]QBID933Q ‘B[qISS3DE 10U JINPaYIS ‘Jueldwod JoU uedyses | :sainiead uendwo)-uon
ued) ysel| I1LI0[DY :SWIY X4 HIUND
punogise3 :uondainq

S9A :X143oND

ON :uendwo) yay

0ZS¥S B MY 38YNDS LLIYYIN :uoneso 09647 Q1



20
sepuil]

‘sdwies qund Agaesu ay3 03 sSululem 3|qeIdR13p PPy "JIMO| 3[NpPaYIs
SNQ SY1 JUNOWIY “%Z=> 10 9dO|S SS0JD € DAY 01 €3IR ¥R 33 30B4INSIY SUCHEPUSWIOIDY |

| 11219y |e12I2WWoD /0140 ‘qeysy/jedipan 1s103essuls du)

_ S9A  IUOIIBUUO) B|YISSIIIY 8% :(saysut) gin) wouy aduelsig _
| S9A :03U] JIEYIIIYM pPOOD  UORIPUO) JAYIYS S3A HaYRUS |

sa) :adojs dwey qun)

saA :92epns dwey gindy
soA :dwey qin) 18 UOIISURL| YIO0WS saA :dwey qun) |
:Bujuiem ajge1siaq , vz JIPIM [IN4 3[geRIRQ

:uoipuo) Juiuiepn 9jgealaa opn  :Suluiepn sjqerdsiag

SIA  Dj|BMSSOID) PaIBI0Ld

S3A DH|EMSSOI) pNIBIA |

1 A
7.0

punoqisam punoqise3j

2.7 93ed

010yd |[elusawa|ddng

S :(1994) YIPIM Mlemapis
ON :uoneas|z uj adueyd v/t S9A  :UOIIIBUUO) H|EMBPIS
siallleq ON :sialueg yRg

uol1oNIISHo ON 1SUOIPNIISAQ V3

£'S (%) adojs ssou) 50 :(%) adojs Suluuny

$10343p ON :U0lIpUO) VRY

SSA :94eS vgd Yl S|

918J0U0D :s|eldIBN ViBY

‘eaJe yigg e siuanaad ey

| SO B3JR Y'Rg B 313U S| |

ON  :9|qIsS323y I[NPaYIs |

s34 :App2a110) patunoi usls 9-43dAL :y8iaH/adAL quny vE :|er01 g :diysapiy 5 11503 S :[euonessdg 8 A19jes g :Aupqissedy :ulods

ON :uUOoI1INJISqQ UBDYSEeI] SSA  :9)gIsse3y uedysed) | [
ON :uonaINIusqQ Yyouag S9A  :9]qISS8IY youag
ued ysedj ‘@npayds sng ‘([eY40) yausg :saniudawy _ 4
1sod uBis dois snq paepueis :afeulis _ ———— - . OOA_\QW :350) [e10] r 44 U_:mx..
|

_||1. == ——— —— ¢ :uny Jad diysispiy sdesany

3UON spJezeH |
UONDDSIDIUI JO BPIS JBY UO 12235 1Y :UOIIIDSIDIU| O UONEI}IY |

sduluiepn 913123330 ‘91qISsaIe 10U 3|Npayds queldwod Jou ease SuiySije pue Suipseog  :sainiesq juedwo)-uon

3UE| NUY)-|9ABI} B U] :UOIIeIO0T Sng | :SWay| Xi4 YAND

oN nuendwo) vay ON 4 32IND

punogise3 :uonaaang

(gJnd pastes e yum 19341s 2y} 01 Juadelpe) 3jemapis ayi ug :uonedo dois |

1S VSOWNTd '8 0TS ¥S :uol3edon] STOTT Qi

den €9/169°08- :@pnusuoy 59695£°8¢ apnuie]




ABNO ™
slepuil]

‘sdwel qund Aqesu ay) o1 sSuiuiem a|qe1da1ap
PP "E94E y'9g 9y} 4O PISINO PUE 3|BMBPIS 3yl JO 9FPa 3yl YIM ysnj st )
1BY1 0S YoUDq 3} A0 "ABMBALIP SUMSIXd 3Y3 01 y'34 33 102uu0d 01 yied

\GE © PPV "BaJE Y739 8Y1 U0} OB[S 8X,G [9AD] B dARd '15E3 ,009 d01S 3U1 3ADIA :SUOHEPUSLIWIOIDY
_ Jle19y ‘[e1JBWWO0) /301y :sro1esduan duy |
1UOI1I3UUO) 3|QISSIIIY :(sayau1) qin) wouy adueisia [
101U JIBYD[3YM 1UOIIPUO) 13} 3YS ON :13YdYs
5394 :azepns dwey qin) saj :adojs dwey gin)
59, :dwiey g4n) 1e uollsuel| Hloows soA :dwey qin)
:Suiuiepn sijqe1d.=2q e TYIpIAA §Ind 3jgedaraq
:uolipuo) Suiusepn 3pqe1dalsag ON :Suruiepn 3|qerrsrag
SBA  1)|emssSol) palIaoid SIA |EMSSOL) PYJBIA
S :(193)) yIpIm Njemapis
ON :uoneas|3 uwi adueyd /T ON :UOI323UUO) Yem3pIs | |
sialueq oN :siallleg vRd
uoI1INIISO0 ON :SUoRINIISAQ V'3d
6 :(%) odojls sson) €0 :(%) adojs Suluuny
juelsisad dis Jo ‘a|qels ‘Wwlj 30U 95e4NS UOKIPUO) Y'RY
Sa) :24eS V'9E 2yl s|
ssesn/11q Ss|elaleiN viRg
:e3JE YRg B syuanatd Jeym
ON :BdJe ygd e 343y3 S|
[ ON :3]qISS320Y JNPayIs "
1U0112MNJ1SqO uedyses) :3]qISS822Y UBdYSeU ],
ON :uoIPNASqO Youag ON :9]qIss930y yduag
| 8iNpayas sng ‘(Aled pJg) Youag :satHudwy
1sod udis dojs snq psepuels :aSeulis
saA :A1o3u10) parunop usis 9-4adAp :ySieH/adAL qun)
UOpN spJezeH
U0[103519)Ul O IPISIESU UO 192151y :UOJIISIBIU| 0} UOIIRI|DY
3UB| NJYI-|9ABJ] B U| 1uoIledO] sng
[ {g4nd pasies e yum 19311s aY1 01 JUddE[pR) YjEMBPIS 3y UQ :uonelo] dois
delw

£56689°08- :apnuduo]

£6698E'87 :apnileq

05z 98ed

010yd |eludwajddng

punoqisam

punoqise3j

:diysapry

PTieioL 8

punogise3 :uonIslg

00L'0TS :1s0) [e1oL
g A1sjes 5 :Au
Z uny 1ad diysiapry sSesany

09t Hjuey

OT- 150D ¢ :leuonesadp 155920y :Sul103§

q4nD pasiey oN ‘sduiusepy

39[qe123313( ‘8]qIssad0e Jou 3|NPayds ‘Juel|dwod ou ease Suysije pue Suipleog ‘3)qiIsse0le 10U Youdg  :sain3eaq Juedwo)-uon

4ouDg 91BI0J3Y SWI) X4 R2AND
x4 YN0

SOA

Y3730 HVYD SEBIDIA AWWIT B 0TS §S  :uonelo

Y0011 :dl



ARy ™
siepil

“jlemapis Aqieau ay] 01 B3JE ¥R SY] 193UU0D 0}
| uyied 05 e aneq “eale ygg BY1 JO APISINO PUE H|BMSPIS 243 JO I8P 3yl YUm
| ysn| a1e A3yl 0s 3jNpayds pue yIuag Yl SAO|A "e3Je ¥3g 9y} 104 ge|S 8X,§
| |33 e 9ARd pue S211g BYY JO UDIDDS B 2A0WIY ISED ,0GE dOIS 3yl ANON

1SUOIEPUSWIWOIRY

Jie1ay ‘|eIDJaWIWO0)/22I40 :s10lelaudn duy

1U01}I3UU0) J|qISSAIY :(sayaui) gan) wiouy dueisig

| 101U) J1eydjaaym 1UoRIpUo) J3Y3YS ON :43)3ys
| saA :90epns dwey qind) sa, :adojs dwey qin)

|
| saj :dwey gin) 1e uonisuel] yloows saA :dwey qun)
_ saA  :Sulwiem 8jqe1danag ,ve S9A  :yIpIM |Ind4 3|ge1IRIag
_ 1U3[|30X]  :uoIMpuO) Sulusepn 31qe19912Q sap :Suusepn 31qerdeiag

S3A  DIEMSSOI) PalIRloid SIA |BMSSOID) paIBIAl _

v :(199y) yipian siiemapis |
1UOI1I2UN0) Y|emapIS

ON :uoneaa|3 ui adueyd /T SaA

(233 ‘sayduaq ‘suUeD 91SEM ‘SIXO( |04IUOD) BINUUING }93J1G POXIS iSISLIRY V'Rd
("012 ‘s3yauaq ‘sued BISEM) INIIULNS 19D11S B|qESAOIN SUOIINIISAO V'8F _
TT :(%) adojs sson) 50 :(%) adojs Sujuuny |
Juersisau dijs JO ‘3jqels ‘Wl JOU 30B4INS SUOIPUO) V'RE |

paned Ajjenied sjeualen vigd

S9A :BDIE Y'RG B 313U} 5|

S2A 9jeS Vi3d Ayl S} |

ON  :39]gISS223y 3|Np3yIs _
‘uonINIISqO uedyses) :13]q1$5922Y UedYSed |
S9A  1uoldNIISqO Yauag ON  :9]qISSaIIVY youag

3INpayas sng ‘(Aled pig) yousg :saiyuswy

1s0d ugis dois si

S9A :Aj1aaui0) parunoy usis 9-4 3dAL :ydisH/adAL qun)

UO(1235J91UL 4O DPIS Jey UO 193115 1Y  :UOIIIBSIBIU| O} UOREI|DY
3UE| NIY)-|9ARIY B U] :UOI1eI0] Shg

(quno pasies e yum 123.15 9Y) 01 Judde[pe) yjemapls @

ng pJepuels :a25eudig

3UON spJezey

yiuQ :uonezoldois

aen £87689°08- :9pnySuol

8EELSEBT apniie]

punogisam

699 23ed

010Yd |eiuawajddng

009°L$ :350D |BIO] LT Djuey
£7 :|elo] v :diysopry 0 150D S :leuonesadp 6 A1ojes g A 155323y :Suno0ds
T :unyJad diysiapry aSesany

2|gIssa0de
jou 2|Npayas queljdwod Jou eale 3unysije pue Suipieog ‘3|qISSaTIE JOU YIUSE ‘UOIIINIISYC YIUSg  :SIINJea4 wendwo)-uoN
youag 21e30j2Y :SWa}| Xi4 YIIND
ON :wendwo) yay SBA 34 }IIND

pUNOQISaM  uondaIIa

TIVA 3HYNDS LLIMYIIN B 0ZS YS :uoneso] 19647 Al



Sepulf,
_ _ 0/9 a8egd

‘sdwes qund AgJeau ay) 01 SJulUIEM 3)(RIIBIBP PPY |emapis AgJeau

3y3 01 E3.E Y13g BY] 193UUAD 0] Yled G7 B 3AB{ "EIJE Y9G AUl JOJ GB|S ,8X,§
_ |9A3] & 3ABd puE SY1q 3Y] JO UOIIAS B SAOWIY °1Se3 06 dOIS By} A0 SUOIIBPUBWIIOIDY
|

[[B13Y ‘|eIDIBWWOD /3014 :S101LIBURD a_ﬁg

1U01123UU0) 3[qISSIIIY :(saydur) qan) wouy dueisiqg |
101U JIBYI|3I3YM IUOINPUO) 13} 3YS ON :J2Y3ys

|
|
|

sa :adojs dwey gin)

saA :9oeung dwey gin)

saA :dwey qnd 18 UoIISUBL] Y1o0WS so) :dwey qind
:Burusep 3jged™eq , vz JYIPIW (14 BIqe19818Q
:uompuo) Suluem ajqe1ds1ag ON :Bulusep 91qe19919a
SOA  DJ|EMSSOI) PINIRI0Id S3A |EMSSOLD PIYIEIN | o10yd [eluaws|ddng

S :(1994) Yipin NiemapIS
ON :uoneaa|3 ut adueyd ,v/1 ON :UOIII3UUO) H|emapIs _

"

SJallleq ON :siauleg ygg |
U0[1oNJ35qO ON :SUONIMIISqO VRd
80 (%) adojs sson) v'0 :(%) adojs Suluuny
Jue)sisas dijs 40 ‘9|Ge1S ‘Wdi) 10U BIBLNS 1UONIPUO) V'RY
SO\ 13JeS Vg ayl i

paned Ajlerued sieualely vigg _ —

:eaJe ygg e siuanaid 1eypp n.rla ‘.x.n. A

:9|qISS3I0Y JNPpayYIs

1uOo112NJISQ UBdYSe | :9]qISSaI0Y uedYyses)

V/N :uonanisqQ youag Y/N :9]|qiss82ay yauag

3UON :Saluawy

| 150d ugis dois snq piepuess :a8eusis

| saA :Apdamo) pajunopy udis 9-4 3dAL :3ySieH/adAL qun) 12 :e101

SUON spJezey 7
UOND35I31UI JO OIS JEJ UO 133J1S 1Y 1UONIDSIAU| 0} UOIEI|SY
3UE| NUYl-|9ALLL B U| :u0eI0] Sng
(qund pasies e yam 1991s 343 03 Jude[pe) 3 |eMapIs 34l UQ :uoieo] doig 7 puUNoGISEAY uoIIBIQ

CEN €95¥89°08- :apnusuo] 89€/5E'8C 3pnne)

¥

:diysapry 0 150D

saulule 3|qe1dsiag ‘tueldwod Jou ease SunySije pue Suipieog

S :jeuonesadp 8 A9jes
T

oN :wendwo) yay

AN HIFYD SINAS B 0TS ¥S :uonedsol

i~

1 000°Z$ 1S0) [EI0L 98T Hjuey

v :An
:uny iad diysiapry afesany

155320y :Julodg

:sainyes4 ueydwo)-uoN

ISWId}| X14 ¥2ND
ON :Xi432InD

79647 QI



ABAOT
S{epulL

_ sdwel qind AgJeau ayj 0} sSuluiem 3|qe1da3p ppy

"B3JE Y139 Y3 JO DPISINC PUR }[EMIPIS 34} JO 38pa

| 343 LM ysnyy s1 3118y} 0S YOUSG B3 BAOIA "3]qiSSEI08 1 el O} juawaaed

9y) 01 Ud2e[pe JNPayYIs SN 3Y3 Yum 3jod ay} SAOI "UOI}I3SIALUI

AgJeau 3y} 01 BALE Y199 Y3 WO H|EMIPIS 05 B PPY ‘T 910U 335 'B3lE yi9g
3Y1 40} qInD 9 PISIEI B YHM QB[S ,8X,§ [9A3| B DR "YHou 08 d03S Y1 9ADIA] :SUOIIEPUBLILIOIDY

7 jie19y ‘[eJawwWol/a010 isiojessuan dug

:{sayoul) gin) wouy asueisiq
BEHEINN

1U0I1IaUU0) B|qISSAINIY
103U] JIBYD|3BYM 1UOI}IPUOY) 19} BYS oN

s, :adojs dwiey qun) |

$9A :9epns dwey qin)
soA :dwey qin)
[ :Buluiem ajqe1alea , ve YIPIAA {INd 3|qe1ds1sg

|
_ :uonipuo) Sutuiepn 3|geddsa ON :Buiuiepn djqerdniag |

s34 :duey gin) je uonisuel] yjoows

SBA  H||BMSSOI) PRIV SIA H|BMSSOI) PRI

:(3934) YIpIWn NeMmapIS
:U0I123UUO) Y |EMB3PIS

ON :uoneasij ui aduey) v/t

sialleq ON :siauleq ygg

| U0JIdNJISqO ON :SUONINNSGO V'Rd
25 (%) adojs sso1) €0 :(%) ado|s Suruuny

uelsisas dijs 10 ‘S1gels ‘Wly 10U 3IBJNS :UoIIPUO) VRY

59 :9)Jes ¥R A1 5}

Ssel9 /11 s|eudlen vV'Re

:eale ygg e syuanaad 1eym

53, :B2IE Y'3g B 243Y) S|

ON  :3]gISS220Y 3[NPaYds
1UONINIISqO URIYSEed]
ON :uoINAsqO Yyouag ON
3INpayaIs sng ‘(Aued pJE) youag :sarpudwy

:9]qISS30Yy uedYySeI|
:9]qISSIIIY YyIuag

150d u8is dois snq piepuels :a8eusis _|

S9A :A|128140) parunop usis BUoN :ydidH/adAL qun)

SUON spJezeH

UO11D3SJ31U1 JO 3PIS JB4 UO ‘138415 1Y 1UOI1D3SI3IU| O} UORED|3Y _
BuB| NIYI-|9ABI B U| UONEIOT SNg

Aempeou jo 13p|noys pasedun ue ug :uonelo dois

TLE89'08- :@pnuduoy

€£59S€°87 :apniie]

pUNOqISam punogise3

19¢ 98eq

010yd [P1uswa|ddng

punoqyinos punoqyiioN

009'6$ :350) |ej0]L
S A3ges T- Ay
¢ :uny Jad diysispiy aSesany

~ L6Y Djuey
1SS922Yy :8ul0I§

71 :evoL g :diysapy S 1350) S :jeuopesadQ

§4nD pasiey ON ‘S3ujuIBpf
9(qe12919Q ‘3|qIssa3e 10U 3|NPaYIS ‘wuel|dwod Jou ease Sunysife pue Suipieog ‘9|gISS02L JOU Youag  :SaINIEa4 Juerdwo)-uoN
Youag 91e30[3Y :SWY X1 YAND
ON :uendwo) yay S9A 14 AND

punogyInNos :uonlaig

AMSD ANVISI LLIYYIN 378 AMMd HIFTYD SINAS S :uoneso

ST0TT Qi



ABANO T
BePuUlf,

‘sdwes qind Agseau 3y} 03 sBulusem 3|qelda1ap

ppY S 210U 295 "BaJE y'gg By} 4O BPIS J8) DY) UO pa3ledo)

s1 u8is dois snq

2} 3UNSs B "431|2ys 01 J3S0|2 pue yied 3o1q 3y} woly Aeme uSIs AN (SUOIIEPUBWLIONIDY

j1e1sy ‘|

SSA  :UO0I3IBULO) 3|qISSIIIY
pooo

YN UTPILIRIEETITTY
saA :@epns dwey qin)
saA :dwiey qin) le uollsuel] Yloows
:Buluiepn 9jge11919Q@ , T
:uonpuo) Juiurepn o|qeldarag
S3A  Dj|EMSSOI) pPalIalold

ON :uonead[3z ui adueyy ,p/1

T°0 :(%) a2do|s ssou)

1UOHIPUO) JAYY3YS

IDIBWIWO)/3IYO :s101e43U3D du]

09 :(saydul) qin) wouy ddUEISIq
SIA IBHIYS

saA dwey qund

YIPIM [IN4 31qe133130

oN  :Suluaepn 3)qeldsIaq
SIA Djemssol) paieiN

S :(3994) yIpIM dfiemapls
S9A  :UO0[IBUUO) fjemaplS
Sialiieq oN :siarleg y'9g
uol10nJ1sqo ON :SuoiINIISqO V39

soA :adojs dwey qundy

1°0 :{%) adojs Sutuuny |

S17942p ON :UOIIPUO) V'8 g
S3A :9JBS V'3Q 9Y3 S|
21940U0) :S|ELBIBIN V'RE
:eale yiggd e sjuanasd 1eym
S9A B3I Y1RE B 313y} S|

ON :U01INIISqO UBdYSel]
V/N :U0IdNIsSqO ydusg

S9A :A]192410) pajunop usis

U01123531U] JO 3PIS JB UO 133135 1y

ON  :3]qISS222Y 3Npayds
S9A  :9qISSIIY ueIYSEI]
v/N
ued ysel] ‘@|npayas sng
150d ugis dois snq piepuels :adeudis
9-4 3dAL :ySiay/adAL qun)

13]qISSa2IY Youag

RETMIENTY

SUON spJezeH
:U0II3SIAIU| O} UOKIEd| Y
SUB| NJYI-|IABJY B U] :UOIIRIOT Shg

AempeoJ Jo i3pnoys pasedun ue uQ :uone’oq dois

116289°08- :9pnuduol

Y0LSE°8T Bpmne]

047 23ed

0310yd |ejuawalddng

15e=0)

punoqisam punogjse3

e ——

punogyinos

B B o SR D R S R R Sl

punogisey

LE:|e10] 8

:uondaag

:diysapry

SNIFYOTVYM B AMMd MIFHD SIHAS S 0TS ¥S :uoneloy

g5 vjuey

155220y :Junods

00S°TS 150D |e10L

S :jeuonesado S Aajes 6 A

0T :150)
¢ :uny iad diysiapiy aSesany

s3utule 819e30319Q ‘9qISS9I0E 10U 3|NPaYdS  :saunlead juendwo)-uoN
1SWIa)| X141 32InD

ON :ueqdwo) vav ON X134 32IND

72011 Al



_ "sdwies qino Agueau 3yl 01 S3UlUIEM 3]qe1ID18P PPY ‘B3JE ¥igd 2Yl JO
3PISINO PUE X[EMBPIS DY) 4O 3P 9YI UM US|} ST 1t JBY] OS YdUg 3yl 3A0IN
“8[qISs809€ SI 1l 0S JudWaARd ay] 03 Ju3dE[pe PBIRDIO| S| BINPAYIS SNQ 3y}

Y1 193Uu0d 03 yled

.5 © ppY "E3Je Y13g 9yl 40J GE|S 8X,G [9A3] E 9AR "1SE3 ,0/7 d01S 3yl AN SUOIIEPUIWIUIOIDY

7 yum ajod ay1 ains el d|emapls Suilsixa 3yl 03 vgg @

— 248D ARQ/|00YIS TUBWUISA0D

5103242099 diag

HOUTPFIIRIEETTY

1uolIpUO) IBNAYS

1U013I3UU0) J|qISSIIY :(saydu1) gun) woly duelsiq

ON :19)3Yys

53 :92epns dwey qin)

s3, :dwey gin) 1e uonisuel) yioows
:Sujusepn 9|qe1da1=q vz

:uopuo) Sujusepn s|qe1daqg

SIA  Dj[eMSS0I) pR1Ia8)old

sajp :odojs dwey qin)y
sa) :dwey g4n)

‘YIPIM [INd 3jqe13313Q
oN  :Suluiepp ajgeldansqg

SBA |EMSSO0I) PANIBN

ON :uoneaajj uiasueyd ,v/T

g°¢T :(%) adojs ssox)

9 :(1934) u1pIM diemapIS
ON :UOII3ULD) Jj[EMapIS
sialieq ON :siauueg vy
ISUOIAINIISGO V'3d
70 (%) adofs uluuny

uoI39NJISqO ON

Juelsisad dijs 10 ‘S|elS ‘Wl 30U 20B4INS UOINPUO) V3]

uonaniisqo uedysed|

ON :uonINASqQO Yyauag

a|npayas sng ‘(Aued pJg) ysuag

S9N :Aoa1I0) pajunop usdis

UQ1129S433UI JO 3PIS Jey u

SBA 12JBS veg Ul S|

SSEID /UG :S|eudleAl v3d
:eale yigg e syuaaaud 1eym
Ol :edde yRg B 2131 S|

ON  :9]qISSa2IY IINPIAYIS |

:91GISS3IY uedyses|
ON  :9[gIS$930Y Youag
:SaHUSWY

150d u8is dois snq piepueis :a8eudis
9-4 8dAL :ydeH/adAL qun)

SUON spJezeH

01834151y  :UO1295191U| O] UOIIEd|Y

BUB| NUYI-{SABJ} B U| 1UON1RIOT SNg

| Aempeo) Jo sapjnoys pasedun ue uQ :uopeso dois

§£88/9'08- :9pnuuo]

ECYLSEBT aphile]

¥4z 93ed

0joyd [eluawajddng punoqyuoN

H
_ puUnogisspy tuondzsaig

001'6S 150D [e30)L 609 Hjuey
s hajes 7 Anpqissaddy :3uuods

/ :|e10], 0 g :jeuonesado

0 :uny Jad diysiapry asesany

s8uluiepn
9|9e129319Q ‘2|qISS33IE 10U 3INPIyYdS ‘tueldwod jou eale Sullysije pue Suipieog ‘3)GIS$3IdL 10U YdUdg  :$34n3ed4 Jueljdwo)-uoN

youag 31e2019y :SwdY Xi4 HIUND
oN :uendwo) yay S3A XI4}IND

ANYISI SINVMVYN B 0CS ¥S  :uonedo

TE0TT Al




sdwes qind Aqieau ay3 01 SSUIUIEM D|qeIIR12p PPy ‘BIIE ¥RY

243 JO SPISINO PUEB X|EMBPIS By} JO 98P3 243 YU Ysn|} S 1 1YL 05 yduaq

3Y3 A0 'S[qISS3IE ) Sxew 0} JusWwaAed 3y} 0} Ju32e(pe 3Npayds snq

9yl yum 3jod 3Y1 3AOIA |emapis Sullsixa 3y} 03 y'gg Syl 103uu0d 03 yied
|G € PpY "E3JE YIE 23} S04 QB|S ,8X,5 |IAD| B IABJ “}Sam 07 d0IS SYI SAOIAl SUOHEPUSWWINIDY

JUBWUIDA0D :sI0}esaudn) dii)

:(ssyow) gqan) wouy sduelsia
ON :J31I3Ys

1U011I3UU0) J|qISSAIIY

:01u| JIeYI[IBYM :UoIHpUO) J13Y3YS

sa) :adojs dwey gin) .

S, :92epns dwey qun)
$3A :dwey gun)

YIPIM (Ind 9)qe1Isiaqg
ON :Buluiepn 31qe1ds1aq

sa, :dwey gin) Je uojsuel) yioows
:Sulusepn 3|qe1918Q , 1T

ruompuo) Sujuiepn s|qeldslaq

SSA  DI|EMSS0I) Pa1da10id S3A H|emssol) payIeN

S :(3934) YIPIM Yjemapls
ON :uoneag|3 ui 98ueyd .v/1 S3A :UOIIIBUUO) Yjem3pIS
sialiieq oN :sisuueg yRg |
(019 “sayouaq ‘sued 91SEM) BUNIIUINY 19311S BIJRIAOIA SUOINIISGO V2D
€T :(%) adojs ssosy 50 :(%) adojs Suiuuny
uelsisad dijs 4o ‘a|qels ‘wuiy 10U 32eLINS tUoIIpUO) vRd
SOA :9jes y3g 2yl S|
SSEJD/UIQ iS|eudleW viBg
:eale yigg e syuanaud ey
ON :eaJe yigg B 319y} S|

ON :3|qISSI2Y JNPaYIS _
1uo1INIISqQ Uedyses|
SOA

:9[qISS9IOY uedYser]
1uonINIISqO Youag ON
3npayas sng ‘(Aued pig) yousg

150d uis dois snq piepueis :a8eusis
9-4 2dAL :ySieH/edAL qund

:9)qI5S920Y Yduag
:S9UUBWY

saA :Ajano) pawnoy uss

SUON spJezey
U0[}095433U1 4O SPISIE3U UO 132151y :UOI]1ISI3)U} 0} UOIED|DY
BUe| NUYI-j3ABI) B U] :UoIeI0T Sng

{(M|emapis e INOYUM) N pasiel e uQ :uopero] dois

8T£8/9°08- :9pnuduoq

660LS€°8C :apnuie]

punoqiIsam
597 93ed s

010yd |eauawajddng punoqylion

009°LS 150D |ejo}
g A9jes ¢ Al
Z :uny Jad diysiapiy sdesany

89z Muey

ssa20y :Suuods

¢ :jeuonesado

zz oy g :diysapry 0 150D

g4n) pasiey oN ‘S3uluiepn 2|ge1931aQ ‘2|gIssadde
10u 3|npayds ‘querdwod Jou eale Bunysie pue Sulpieog ‘3|gIsSa0e 10U YIUBY ‘UOIIINIISAO YoUSg  :SaINJead wendwo)-uon
youag 31820}3Y :SWI] X14 AN

punogises ;uendwo) yay SIA XI4HHUND

ruonAIqg ON

3QIS HLNOS ANVYTSI SINYMYN R 075 ¥S  :uoelo

6T01T :A)



ABANC
S[EpL]

‘B3lE ¥RY

33 JO 3PISINO pUE 3|EMIPIS 3Y1 JO 3FPa DY yum ysnjy a1e Adyl 0S d|Npayds

pue yauag ayl anopy ‘sdwes qind Agiesu syl 03 SBuluIEM 3)e1IR13P

ppY "|emapis Sunsixa ayl 0} yigg ayl 30auuod ol yied 0T B ppy ‘T 210U

955 "BAJE YIgF DY) 104 0N G PISIEL B YUM O[S 8X,§ |[9A3| € dABd ‘% T=>
jo mao_w SS0.3 B BABY 0] B3le g 9yl 8JBHNS3Y '1S8aM 007 QOum 9yl DADIA] SUOllEpURWIWIOIRY

|[219Y ‘|e1DIaWw0) /921140

:si01esauan) dug

1U01123UU0) J)ISSIINIY
UOIMpUO) 13}3YS

:{sayout) qun) wouy 32uelsiq |
ON :49}3ys |

:0)u[ J1BYOIIRIYM

$9) :23epns dwey qun) soA :odojs dwiey qun)
soA :dwey gin)
“UIPLAN 1IN4 B1E19218Q |

OoN :Bujusepn 9jqerdrsiag _

sa) :dwey gin) je uonlisuel] Yyioows
:Sujusepn 9jqe1dnleq vz

:uonpuo) Sutuiepn 9|qednlaa

S9A  H|emssor) pallalold SIA D|EMSS0I] PIYIEA

S :(1934) YIpIM demapis

ON

sialiieq ON :si3uueg vgg
:SU0INNSqO V39
2L (%) odojs sso1) £'0 :(%) @dojs Suluuny
Juessisas dijs 10 ‘91¢e1s ‘Wilj 10U BIBLING :UOIIPUO) VY
SOA 19JBS vRd 8yl s|

SSEID /1 S|edlRA viRE
reale ygg e syuaaaud Jeym

ON :uoneas|3 uiafueyd /T 1U013I3UN0) Y|EMaPIS

U0I2NIISqO ON

SI) ‘BaJe yigg e 219yl S|

ON  :3|qISSAdY JNPAYIS

1UonINJISqO Uedyses|
ON

:9|qISsa20y uedysed] |
ON
3|npayas sng ‘(Alled pig) youag :sapudwy

uondnasqO Yyauag 19|qISS220Y ouag
1s0d ugis dois snq piepueis :afeudis

S3A :Aj133110) pajunop usis SUON :ydiaH/adAL qun)

3UON spJezeyq
UOIII35I33U] JO SPIS JEJ UO 199415 1Y :UOIIIBSI31U| 0} UOIeI|Y
DUB| NJY}-|SABIL B U| :UOIIEIOT SNg

Aempeou Jo 1apnoys paned e ug :uoneso] dois |

S0T899°08- :apnuduol 80¢LSE'8C spnmine]

punogisam

6/ 28ed

ojoyd jeruawajddng

punoqyLioN
T

punogise3

006'8$ :1s0) |e10L

11210l v :diysepry G- 110D S :Jeuonesado S Aioges 7 Au

6T Hjuey

155320y :Sul0dg

T :unyad diysiapry aSesony

qin) pasiey oN ‘sBuluiepn

3|0e12919( ‘3|qissane Jou 9jnpayds el dwod Jou eale JulySije pue Suipseog ‘3|qISS3IJE 10U YUY  :53JNJEI4 Jueyduwio)-uoN

youag 21e20|3Y :SWAY| XI4 YAND

punogisey :uoidang oN :ueldwo) vay

Y0 YOBYVH ONNOAM3IN B 0TS YS :uoned’on

S3A 342D

08¢TT :al



FET Vo Be
3jepull

" - —_—e punoqisapm punoqise3

79¢ 98ed

‘do1s SNg ayl JOJ SUOI1EpUSWIWIOID) ON SUOIIBPUIWLLOIIY

o . o |
_ 1IE19Y  :SI01RJSUID) diI]
:UOI1I3UU0) 3|qISSIIIY :{sayaur) giny wouy sduelsiq |
101u] JIBYI|33YM 1UORIpUO) JAY3YS ON :I2)ays |
S9A :93euns dwey qin) saA :adojs dwey qun)
S3A :dwey gn) e uoIlsueI| Ylo0wWws sa, :dwey qin)y
s9A  :Bulurep 3jqe1dniag , e SSA  UIPIM |INd Bige1daleq |
[ pooo  :uolpuo) Suuiep 3jqerdnlaq s9A Bulusepn 3jqerdalsg

ON  1)j|EMSSOJ] Pa323l0ad SIA H|BMSSOI) PNJIBIAl

ST :(1994) YIpIMW lemapis

ON :uoneas|3 ui afuey) /1T SIA  :UOIIITUUOY) N|BMIpIS

Sialileq ON :si19ueg g

UoI1INI1SQO ON :SUONINIISAO V'8

¥'0 (%) 2dojs ssou) 20 :(%) ado|s Suiuuny

$103)3p ON UOGIHPUO) ¥RY

SIA :9JES V'8E SY1 S|

313JOU0) :S|PURIBIA V'RY

‘eaJte yigg e syuanasd 1eym
S3) :edJe yvigg B 213y) S| _

yieLen

SSA 13|qQISSIIY JNP3YdS

"

1U0112NJISqO UBIYSeI] 19]qIS5920y uedysed|
V/N :uonaniisqo youag V/N :9|q1Ssaddy youag
2Npayds sng :serjuawy ||
jsod ugis dois snq paepueis :afeusis |00 . . . o o ..gﬂh |.1H..H .U_cm_
| SOA :Aj128410) pajunop usis 9-q adAj yaisH/edA)Y qun) v1T :|e1oL 0 :diysopiy 00T :150) T :Jeuonesado ¢ Alajes 6 :Amiqissaddy :Buuiodg
———— — = 4_ 0 :uny sad diysiapry a9elany

2UON spJezeH |

193115 4O  :UO13I3SIANU| 0} UOIIEI)BY | :$91n1ea4 jJuetjdwo)-uon
3Ue| NIYI-|SARI) B U] 1UOIIBIO] SN _ 1SW3Y| X14 2ND

Aempeod jo 1apinoys paned e ug :uonelo] dois | ON :Xi4¥21nD

puUNOGISEM  :uoiIIBNg saA :juendwo) vav

LIVIN-TVM 8 4ILN3D H3dNS LYVIN-TYM  :uolzedo 9T01T Q!

dew 989899°08- :3pnysuoy

v8065€°87 apmine



‘sdwes qnd Aguesu ay) 03 sSuiuiem 9|qeds1sp PPy Bale g 3yl 4o

3PISINO pue 3|EM3IPIS 3} JO 33P3 BYI UM 4SN|} SI 31 1BYI 05 Youdq 3yl 3A0N

*3|QI55220k 1 9w 01 Juawaaed ay} 03 Juadelpe 3jnpayds sng syl yum ajod

91 9AO “UOIIISSIIIUI AGJeau BY) 03 BAJR Y19 BY) WO 4|EMBPIS ,0F € PPY
T 910U 335 "B3JE \13@ Y1 J0J NI g PIS[EI B YUM B[S ,8X,§ [9AJ] B dAB] :SUOIIEPUSLIWIOIDY

_ :03U[ J1Ieyd|d3ym 1UOIYPUO) JBYBYS ON :13)3Ys
_ S9A :92epns dwey qin) s9, :2dojs dwey qin)
sa) :dwey qinj e u uel] yloows sa) :dwey qin)

:Sujusepn 31qe1aaq e TYIPIM [IN4 9)ge1dsiag

:uonipuo) Suluien ajgeldaraq ON :Suiuiepn sjqe1danag

S9A  Dj|emssol) paldalold S\ Dj[EMSSOI) PAYIBIN

S :(3934) yipIw yjemapis

ON :uoneasj3 ui adueyd v/t ON :U0I123UU0) Y|emapis
S13144eq ON :sid1Mieg g

U0130NJISqO ON :SUoNPNIISqO ¥Rd

S0 (%) adojs sso1) £'0 :(%) adojs Suuuny

1ue)s|sas diis Jo ‘s|qels ‘WJly 10U BDBLINS :UOIPUOD) Y'Rg

SSA l8jes ygd 2yl S|

55e45/110 :S|eldle vigd

:eaJe yipg e sjusaauad 1eym

S3A :B3JE yiRg B 3J3Yl S|

ON  19]qI$5320Y NPIYIS
1u011INIISqO Uedysel] :9)qIss3I0y UBdYsel )

S2A 1U0RINIISGO Yyauag N :3]qISSaNY youag
3INpayds sng ‘{Aued pag) youag :saipuay

150d ugis dois snq piepueis :afeusdis

S9A :Af129010) pajunop usig auoN ySisH/adAL qun)

3UON spJezey
U011335131U1 JO SPISIEDU UO ‘183115 1Y (UOIIIBSIIIU| 0] UOIIE|DY
3Ue| NIY}-|3ALI) B U| :uOl1eIO0] SNg

Aempeos Jo Jspnoys paned e up :uonesol dois

EEY T11599°08- :3apnusuol TECLSE 8T dpnuie]

|1B19Y |EIDIBWWOD/3NYQ :SM03esauas duy

;UO0I3IBUUC) B|qISSIIIY :{sayoul) qun) wouy saueysiqg

punoqiIsam punogqise3j
¥9¢ 23ed

01044 |Pluswa|ddng punoqylion

0018 :150) |B10] 80T Hjuey
1€ :|elol gz  diysepiy G- 1150) ¢ :Jeuonesado g Aajes 0 :Aupqissazny :Juuods
/ :uny Jad diysiapry aSerany

g4n?) pasiey oN ‘sSululepn 8)gqeda1aqg ‘@|qIssadde
30U 3Npayas queljdwod Jou ease Juirysije pue SuipJeog ‘9]qISSEIE 10U Youag ‘UONINIISGO Ydusg  :534n1edd 1uendwo)-uopn
Uouag a1e20[8y :SWal Xi4 JIIND

punogisej :uolraag OoN :uendwo) yavy SBA IXI42IND

40 YIAIY YNVYNYA N B 07S ¥S :uolieao 810TT :ai



[ *9]q1s5300€ 1 djew 01 Juawared ay) 03 u3de(pe
2|NPaYIs Snq 3y Yum 3jod ay) A0 “BIE YIRg SY] JO BPISING pUR 3|EM3PIS
93 Jo 38Pa Y1 Y1M ysn[4 St 1 1eY1 OS yaUdq dY3 SAON “|emapis Funsixa
3Y1 01 ¥9g 2Y1 103UU05 01 yied Oz B PpY ‘T 910U 33§ "EdJe g ayl

104 QNI g Pasies B YIM gejs 8X,5 [2A3] & aAed "ISe ,0€T d03s 3yl SADIA SUOIIBPUBWIWOIDY

:s1031809u39 dia|
|

1UOIIIBULO) 3|GISSIIIY :(saydur) gan) wouy asuesiq |
uoIIpUO) I33YS ON BYaYS _

TN

103U} JIBYIRIYM

saA :9deung dwey qun) saA :adojs dwey qin)y a
soA :dwey qun) _
YIpIm 1In4 3)qe1da3aq

sap :Sululepn 3jqerdniag

| sa)\ :dwey qin) 1e UoIHSURL] Yl00WS
_ s3A  :Suiwepn 3jqeranaq .ve
1U3(|20X3

Ssp : _

:uonipuo) Suiuiepn 3|qealaq
SIA  Df|EMSSOU) PR1338104d SDA DIEMSSOI) PIIBIA

| |

S :{193}) YIPIM dllEMDIPIS
ON :uO0I}I3UUO) }|emapIs
54211eq ON :S48iBg V'RG
:SUORINASGO Vg |
:{%) @doj|s Sutuuny

ON :uoneas|g wadveyd ,v/1
uondNJIsqo ON

8'T :(%) adojs ssos) 0
1uelsisal dijs 1o ‘3|gels ‘Wl 10U 39BLINS :UOINPUO) V'Rg

S9A 13JeS ¥'3g Ayl S|

| 55215 /110 isjerslein v'Re
:edJe yigg e syuaaaid jeym

S9A (eAIR Y9g B 313Y] S|

O :3]qISS22Y Npayds

1UoIINISqQ uedYsed | 19]qissa20y uedyses) |
ON :uondnisqQ Yyauag oN
3[nNpayos sng ‘(Aled pJg) yousg :sanuaWY

1s0d uBis dois snq piepueis :a8eusis

:3)qissa20y youag

S3A :Aj13a.010) pajunow usis SuoN :ydisH/adAL qind

dUON SpJezeH _
UONID3SI3IU] JO 3PIS JBy UO 133115 1Y :UOIIDSIBIU| O UOIIES|SY
aue| NIY1-|3ALIL B U| :UO11BI0] Shg

Aempeou Jo Jap|noys pasedun ue ug :uoped’o] dois

depy

8LS9L5E°8T apnije]

[¥5599°08- :3pnnduo

punoqisam

0/t 38eq

010yd |eruawajddng

691 Hjuey
155920y :SU1100§

00L°LS 150D |e30)
9 A1oges z A
0 :uny Jad diysiapiy s8esany

qan3
pasiey ON ‘3|qIss320e Jou 3|npayds ‘Jueldwod 1ou eate Sunysie pue Sulpieog ‘9|qISSaIde 10U Youag  :sainjead Jueldwo)-uon

€T 118101 0 :diysepry 0 150D S :jeuonesado

youag 21e30|3Y SWSY| Xi4 YAND _
oN :juendwo) vay SOA D4 AND |

pUNOGISaA,  :uondaANQg

40 HIAIE YNYNYE N B 075 ¥S :uonedol 69¢T1T Al 7




ABAND ™
Sjepul}

£9¢ 98ed

*9]q1s5992€ 5111 0S uaWaAed 3y3 01 Juddelpe paledo| s| 8|Npayds

sNg 2y3 yum ojod 2yl aINns SxeIA "BIIR YR Y3 JO BPISINO PUB Y|EMIPIS

3y1 40 38p3 Y1 UM ysn}4 SI 1 1BY1 OS YdUD] 3} DAOIN "%Z=> Jo adols

S50.2 B 9ABY 0} BAJE Y'9g DY} 9IBUNSIY ‘sdwed qind AgJeau sy} 03 sButuiem

3|0B10919P PPY “}|EMBPIS SUIISIXS dY3 03 ¥19g BY} 193UU0I 01 yled G & ppy
*] 910U 935 "BaJR iR 34} 10} QUND g PIsIes B UM (B[S 8X,§ [SA3] B 9ABJ :SUOIIBPUIWIWOIY

:s101e48U30) dir)

jre1ay

IU0IIBUUOY) JJqISSANY
:03U[ IBYI|SIYM

:uonIpuo) Ja33YS

sgA :93epns dwey qin)
s9A :dwey qin) 1e uonISuel] Yloows
Buiuiem 9jqe1dsiad vz

:uonipuo) Sujuiepy 3jgeralaq

SIA  HJ|EMSSOL) PalIDI0Ad

:(saydui) gan) wouy aduelsiq
ON :49)|3ys

sa) :adojs dwey qin)
59, :dwey qun)
SIPIM [Ind 3)qe13831aq
oN :Suluiepn 9)ge123313g

STA H|BMSSOI) PAYIRAl 0104d |ejuawajddng

juelsisas di|s JO ‘3]Ge1S ‘Wily 10U 30BLING :UOINPUO) Y'3d

3|npayas sng ‘(ALed pig) youag

| ON :uoneaaj|j ui aduey) ,v/T
9'9 :(%) ado|s ssox)

{UOIINIISqO UedYSeI}

ON :UOIINJIISqO Yduag

saA :Apdau10) paruno udis

U0K135J31UL JO BPIS JB) UO

Aempeou jo Japjnoys panredun ue uQ :uonelo] dois

£26199°08-

:apnu8uoq

1981151y

S (3934} YIpIM Yjemapls
ON :IUOI1I3UUO) )j|emapls
sJaliieq ON :siauleg yigg
uoI1INIISqo ON ISUOIIINIISGO V39
€0 (%) ado|s Suiuuny

SOA 19jeS v'Rd 3yl s|

SSBID /LI S|BUIIRN V'Y
:eale ygg e syuandud leym
59\ :e3JE Y'3g B 319y} S|

:3)qISS320y JINPIyds |

ON
13]qISS30Y UBIYSed ]
ON  :3|qIssaday yauag

HETIENTY

punoqissp punogqise3

punoqyiioN

150d ugis dois snq paepueis :a8eudis

auoN :ydivy/adAL qin)

g:eiol v diysepry

BUON spJezeyq
1UOI1235421U| O} UOIIE3|3Y
SUB| NIYl-{3ABIL B U| :UONEIoT shng

punoqise3 :uomiaJIq

697/5¢°8¢ apnmie]

00v0TS 150D 101 pE9 Hjuey
5 A1syes 7 AUpqIssandy :Suliods

S :leuonesadQ

0T- 150D
T :uny s3d diysiopiy afeiany

qin) pasiey oN ‘sululepn

3|ge1812( ‘9|q!s$822€ 10U 3INPAYDS ‘Jueldwod you eale Sullysije pue Suipleog ‘9|qISS0OR 10U Youdg  :saanieaq Juenduwo)-uoN

4ouag 91e30[3Y SWIY XI4 RAND
oN :uendwo) yay SOA XI42AND

40 43IAIY YNVYNYE 578 075 4S :uonedo

TZOTT :al



ABAINO

a[epu

“a[qIssa00e |
2Je Ay 0s Juawaned ayl 0} Juddelpe PaledIo] e YIUIY pue SNpayIs
snq ay3 yum ajod ay1 auns aye(y ‘dwel ay3 03 SSurulem 3)qe3da1ap ppy
"15€3 3Y1 01 }[EMBPIS DY) 0] BIIR y'gq 3] 1D3ULOD 0} 3|EMIPIS 0/ B dAB(

‘I 910U 935 “BaJE Y9G Y1 0} QUND ,9 PISIES B YUM GB|S 8X,5 [IA3| B 9ABJ :SUOIIRPUDWILLIOIDY

|23y ‘[BIDIDWWOD /0O S103esaulg di|

:U0I123UU0) B|qISSIIIY
_ :03U] JIeyd|33YM u

_ saA :90epng dwey gin)

saA :dwey qun) 1e uoIsueI | YI00ws

7 :Suiuaepn 8|qe19318q v
:uopuo) Suluiepn 3|qe3dasaq

SOA  DI[eMSS01) PalIalnid

ON :uoneaa|3 wiafueyd /T

S0 :(%) ado|s ssos)

1U0IINIISqO Uedyses |
ON :[uolINIISqO Youag

3Npayas sng ‘(Alied pIg) yousg :sarpuudwy

:A323110) pajunoly usis

U011235191U1 JO BPIS IR} UO ‘193135 1Y

:{sayoui) gun) wouy asuelsiqg
uo) 4339Ys ON :a)3ys

594 :adojs dwey qin)
sa) :dwey gin)
HAPIM [INd 3]qe139333

oN  :Suiuiepn Bjqealaq |

S3A yjemssol) payie

S :(193) yipim Nemapis
ON :uO0I133UuU0) d|emapIis
SJallleq ON :siaiulieg veg
1SU0IPNAISqO V'R e
€0 :(%) ado|s Buuuny

uo[3IN13Sqo ON

1jeydsy :sjeuale vegd
‘ease yigg e syudaaad Jeymn
SIA IBBIE \'Rg B 2433 S|

ON  :3|qISS3I0Y INPayds
:9|qISSIIIY UBDYSEI]

ON  :9]gISS929Y YIuag

150d udis dois snq pJepueis :aSeudis
SUON :ySiaH/edAL qun) |

3UON spiezeH
:UOI}235191U| O} UOIIEI|Y

QUB| NIY}-|3ARIY B U] :UOI3R0] Shy

Aempeoy Jo Japjnoys pased e ug :uonesol dois

67,299°08- :@pmusuol

punogisam
8G¢ 93ed

punoqyinos

00t'8S 150D |e10) 68€ Hjuey
s Aiajes g Au

:diysopry

L1 ‘|ejo1 12 G- 1150) S :leuonesado 155320y :Sul102§

T :uny 1ad diysiapry aSeiany

qunD pasiey ON ‘s8UIUIBA 3[¢BIIIDQ ‘3]qISSIIR 10U 3NPIYIS ‘I|qISS0IL J0U Youdg  :sainiea4 juendwor-uon
youag 218I0[2Y :SWBY X1 YAAND
ON :uendwo) yay S3A I NIAND

pUNOQISBM  tuonRILG

LNIOd GHOSTIN 8 0TS 4SS uonelo

CI0TT :dl



£G¢ 98ed

'3|QISS9008 5111 05 JuswWaARd BY] 0} Wadelpe pa1edo| sl 9|Npayds

sng 33 yum 3jod ay3 auns ey “sduwed gina Agseau ayi 03 sduiuiem

9)qe10219p PPY “fjemapis Sullsixa syl 03 y'gd Y3 193uu0d 0} yied G e ppy
T 9J0U 895 "eaJe Y1g BY) JOJ QUND 9 PISIES B LM (BIS 8X,§ [9A3] B 3AEJ :SUOIIEPUSULIOIDY

j1e13Y ‘jenuspisay  :s1oiesausn dugp
:U011I3UUO) 3]qISSINY :(saydur) qIn) wouy duelsig
:03U| JIBY2RIYM :uoIpu0) JaYaYs ON :133j3ys
S3A :92epns dwey qin) soA :adojs dwey gin)
saA :dwey qInJ 1 UOKISUE.] Y100WS sa) :dwey qin)
:Sujuiepn 9|qe19913Q , T :YIPIM N4 91qe3dR1ag
:uonIpuo) Sujuiepy a|qenlng oN  :Sutuiep sjqe1dsIag
S3A  DJ|EMSSOLD) Pa1dR10Id ON }|EMSSO1) PRJEA 0j0yd Jejudwa|ddng punoquinos PunoqyoN

S :(3199) yIpIAn djemapis i
ON :uoneasjs ui aduey) .v/1 S3A  1UOIIBUUO)D YIeMBPIS |
si3l1ieq ON :siaLueqd vigd 7
uoIIINIISqO ON :SUONINIISqO V3
58 :(%) adojs ssou) 10 :(%) adojs Suiuuny _
juesisad dijs Jo ‘a|ge1s ‘Wil 10U 3I.4INS :UCINPUO) v'gg
SBA :94BS Y'Rd 9y S|
SSeJD/1iq :s|eualeN Vg
:eale yigg e sjuanaid 1eym

Of\ :eale y7gg e 313yl S|
ON  :3]qISSad0Y NPayYaIs
UOI1INIISqQ UeySeaL :9]q1SS9I2Y UBIYSEI]
ON :uonINIISqGO Youog S9A  19)qISSIIY Youag
?Npayds sng ‘(Alied pJg) youag saudawy | I
3s0d uSis dois snq psepuess :afeuss || o . . - B 00t’'8$ 1150 _muow_.u 91§ “w_:mm .
$3A :Apaasio) pajunowy usis 2uoN nysieH/2dAL qin) 1T :je10L g :diysapiy S- 1150) v :Jeuonessdo ¢ Aajes T :ANpgISS923Y :Sunods

= — —_— e —————— 7 :uny Jad diysiapry a8esany
SUON splezeH |

\ . q4nd
UOLIDSISIUL JO BPIS 1B} UO 3930351V (UORIISISIV| 0L UONEIIBY || pagiey opy ‘sTuUILIEM 3|qe123319( '8]qISs322E 10U BINPayds ‘Juendwod Jou eale SuiaySie pue Suipieog  :sainiesd juendwo)-uoN
SUB| NIYI-|3ABI] B U| UONEIOT SN :sWaY| X4 ¥AAND
Aempeou Jo Jap|noys pasedun ue uQ :uonesoq dois puUNOgQUINOS  :uondalq oN :ueydwo) yay ON :XI40IND
Z0E09€°87 :opniie] S1dVY dO-0D 8 4Q Y3IAIY YNYNVE N :uonedoy L0011 :at

L Tr6799°08- :apnusuot



Sjepuy,

"U011295J21U1 DY}
| o do1s 3Y) 122UU0D 01 Y|EMIPIS JO 09 IABRJ T 9J0U 33S "BIJE Y13g 3} IO}
qna 9 pastel e ylm ge(s 8X,S |9A3| B AR "UOIIINJISUOD Japun dols sNg :SUOIIBpPUSWIWO0IdY

[e12J2WWO0D /3210  :s103e4auan duy

:{sayour) gun) wouy dueisiqg
ON :43)3ys

1U0II3ULO) J|qISSAIIY
:03u| JIEYD|3YM 1UOIpUO) 13)3YS

:aoepng dwey qin) :adojs dwey qin)
op dwey qin)
SYIpIm (N4 S|qe1391aq
:Buiuiepn sjqe1delRg

ON {|emSSOI) PI}IBIAI

:dwey qun) 1e uolisuel] yyoows
:3uluiem 3|qe1dRiea , v
uo) Suiusepp 21qerdanag

Dj|emssol) palaanodd

:(1934) yiptn jemapis |
1UOI1IBUUO) H|BMIPIS

ON :uoneas|3 uiafueyd /T
SJ3luIBq ON :Si3LURg V'Rg

UoI19MNJ3SO ON :SUOIINIISAO VRY

€7 :(%) adojs sson) Z'0 :{%) ado|s Suiuuny

jue)sisal difs JO ‘9|GeIS ‘Wl JOU 3IBHNG :UOINPUO) V'RE
SIA 34es ¥Rg 3yl s|

SSBID/1IC S|eUIBIN V'R

:ease yigg e syuanald Jeym

S9A 1BDIE i9d B 343yl S|

19|qISS222Y 3NPaYds

uonanilsqp uedysed
Y/N :uonInisqo yauag Y/N  :3|qIss320y Youag |
SUON :SIHUBWY |

19]qISS922Y uedyses |

150d uBIs dois snq paepuess :afeudis

SaA :A[128110) pawunow usis UON :3ySioH/adAL qin)

SUON spdezeH
UOI302SI91UL 4O 3PIS Jej U0 ‘183115 1Y :UOIIIISIIU| 0] LUoNEa[dY
3UE| NIYI-|3ARI) B U| :UOIIBIOT Sng

Aempeoud jo sapnoys pasedun ue ug :uoizes’o doig

T4Z7T69'08- :apnusuoi

VELESE'8T apnine]

9G¢ 9ded

010yd |euawajddng

punogisam

punoqisey

punogyinos

punoqyiioN

59

punoqise3

g je30]

0 1s0)

¥ :Jeucnesadpo

00898 150D [e30)
0 A19ges

LS Huey
- :Aupqissadoy :Buods
7 :uny iad diysiaply afessay m

g4nD pasiey oN ‘sdutuleay 31qe3dsiaqg ‘weldwod jou ease Suilysije pue Suipieog  :saanjesd jueydwo)-uoN

uonaag

1S VSONNTd S 8 04 AYYIENILYOS :uonedrol

1SWay x14 yAND

oN fueydwo) yay ON 14 ¥2IND

0T0TT QI



ie
MERRITT ISLAND

MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
October 31, 2024

ITEM V.B

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Ongoing/Old Business

PROJECT: Federal Safe Streets for All Grant Opportunity

Requested Action: Board Update

Summary Explanation & Background:

Project Name: SS4A Merritt Island Action Plan
Grant Type: Planning and Demonstration
SS4A Grant Funding Amount: $ 280,000.00
Estimated Total Project Costs: S 350,000.00

Project Description: This award will be used by the Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency to
develop a comprehensive safety action plan; conduct supplemental planning activities such as a
vulnerable road users study, a lighting study, and an ITS study; and pilot demonstration activities
using quick build strategies to reallocate space for pedestrians and bicyclists, pilot programs related
to rideshare and safety behaviors, and trial changes to test how EMS respond to crashes.

The Agency received the grant award and is in the process of working with staff members of USFDOT and the
FHWA on the Action Plan for grant implementation. The most recent draft, which was submitted to the Agency
earlier in October, is provided for Board review.

Fiscal Impact: $70,000

Exhibits Attached: SS4A most recent draft of Action Plan

60




10.

12

14.

[Federal Award No|

Alward Tol
Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency

2575 N Courtenay Pkwy, Suite 214
Merritt Island, FL 32953-4126

Unique Entity Id.: JANXMVB9KS68
TIN No.:59-6000523

Period of Performance
Effective Date of Award — 30
months

Type of Agreement
Grant

Procurement Request No.
HSA240378PR

Submit Payment Requests To
See Article 5

iDescription of the Project]

11.

13.

Effective Date 3. Assistance
See No. 16 Below Listings No.
20939

Sponsoring Office
U.S. Department of Transportation

Federal Highway Administration
Office of Safety

1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
HSSA-1, Mail Drop E71-117
Washington, DC 20590

Total Amount|

Federal Share: $280,000
Recipient Share: $70,000
Other Federal Funds $0

Other Funds: $0

Total: $350,000

Authority

Section 24112 of the Infrastructure Investment
and Jobs Act (Pub L. 117-58, November 15,
2021; also referred to as the “Bipartisan
Infrastructure Law” or “BIL”)

[Federal Funds Obligated|

Base Phase - (Pre-NEPA): $120,000

|Accounting and Appropriations Datal
[insert Data]

This award will be used by the Merritt [sland Redevelopment Agency to develop a
comprehensive safety action plan; conduct supplemental planning activities such as a vulnerable
road users study, a lighting study, and an [TS study; and pilot demonstration activities using
quick build strategies to reallocate space for pedestrians and bicyclists, pilot programs related to
rideshare and safety behaviors, and trial changes to test how EMS respond to crashes. This will
be a phased agreement.

1of27

61

I

Commented [NX({7]: This would only show the funds being
obligated at the time of execution, which is the base phase

[c ed [LN8R7]: Und

d Thank you

I

Commented [jgri0]: Drafting Instruction: To be completed
by the FHWA Office of Acquisition and Grants M:

J'
]
]




RECIPIENT
15. fSignature of Person Authorized to Sign|

Signature Date
Name: Larry Lallo, MBA, CEcD
Title: MIRA Executive Director

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
16. Signature of Agreement Officer

Signature Date
Name:
Title: Agreement Officer

2 0f 27

62



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

GRANT AGREEMENT UNDER THE
FISCAL YEAR 2023 SAFE STREETS AND ROADS FOR ALL GRANT PROGRAM

This agreement is between the United States Department of Transportation’s (the “USDOT™) Federal Highway
Administration (the “FHWA”) and the Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (the “Recipient”).

This agreement reflects the selection of the Recipient to receive a Safe Streets and Roads for All (“SS4A”) Grant for
the SS4A Merritt Island Action Plan,

The parties therefore agree to the following:

ARTICLE. 1
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.1 General Terms and Conditions.

(a) In this agreement, “General Terms and Conditions™” means the content of the document titled “General
Terms and Conditions Under the Fiscal Year 2023 Safe Streets and Roads for All (“SS4A™) Grant Program,”,

which is available at https:/www.transportation.gov/grants/ssda/grant-agreements under “Fiscal Year 2023.”
Articles 7-30 are in the General Terms and Conditions. The General Terms and Conditions are part of this

agreement

(b) The Recipient acknowledges that it has knowledge of the General Terms and Conditions. Recipient also states
that it is required to comply with all applicable Federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR
part 200); National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) (42 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.); and Build America, Buy
America Act (BIL, div. G §§ 70901-27).

(c) The Recipient acknowledges that the General Terms and Conditions impose obligations on the Recipient and
that the Recipient’s non-compliance with the General Terms and Conditions may result in remedial action,
termination of the SS4A Grant, disallowing costs incurred for the Project, requiring the Recipient to refund to
the FHWA the SS4A Grant, and reporting the non-compliance in the Federal-government-wide integrity and

performance system.

3 of27

63



ARTICLE 2
APPLICATION, PROJECT, AND AWARD
2.1  Application.
Application Title: SS4A Merritt Island Action Plan
Application Date: 07/06/2023
22  Award Amount.
SS4A Grant Amount] $280,000
23  |Federal Obligation Information.

Federal Obligation Type: Multiple f

lobligation Condition Tablé
Phase the Project |Allocation of Obligation Condition
the SS4A Grand
Base Phase: |
$1420:600 48.900
Pre NEPA]
4 of 27

64



[Obligation Condition Tabld

Phase the Project lAlIocation of Obligation Condition
the SS4A Grand
Option Phase [: 1$76.000,71.100 | The Recipient shall not expend any funds (Federal

Design of
Demonstration
Activities (Post-
NEPA)

or non-Federal) for, seck reimbursement of
eligible costs, or otherwise begin any part of the
final design and construction of an
[mplementation Project unless and until:

(1) The requirements of the National
Environmental Policy Act (42 US.C. § 4321
et seq.) (“NEPA”), Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. § 470f)
(“NHPA™), and any other applicable
environmental laws and regulations have been
met; and

(2) FHWA, or a State with applicable NEPA
Assignment authority, has approved the NEPA
document for the Project and provided the
Recipient with a written notice that the
environmental review process is complete; and

(3) FHWA has obligated additional funds for this
phase and notified the Recipient in writing that
the Recipient may proceed to the next activity
after NEPA approval, and the Recipient has
acknowledged receipt in writing of FHWA'’s
notification. Recipient shall not proceed with
any such advance activities until (2) and (3) as
described in this section are met. Costs that are
incurred before (2) and (3) as described in this
section are met are not allowable costs under
this agreement.

Extent of activities that are permissible before
NEPA is complete are those activities constituting
“preliminary design” as specified in FHWA Order
6640.1A.,

Commented [NX(21]: Per new HQ guidance, design efforts for
demonstration activities must be a separate phase Plcase revisit the
allocation of SS4A grant

50f27

65



\'Ohligation Condition Tablel

Phase the Project |Allocation of Obligation Condition

the SS4A Gran
Option Phase II: I $160,000 The Recipient shall not expend any funds (Federal
Construction of or non-Federal) for, seek reimbursement of
Demonstration eligible costs, or otherwise begin any part of the
Activities construction or final design and construction of an

Implementation Project unless and until:

@)) The requirements of the National
Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. § 4321 et
seq.) (“NEPA™), Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. § 470f)
(“NHPA”), and any other applicable
environmental laws and regulations have been
met; and

(2) FHWA, or a State with applicable NEPA
Assignment authority, has approved the NEPA
document for the Project and provided the
Recipient with a written notice that the
environmental review process is complete; and

(3) FHWA has obligated additional funds for this
phase and notified the Recipient in writing that
the Recipient may proceed to the next activity
after NEPA approval, and the Recipient has
acknowledged receipt in writing of FHWA’s
notification. Recipient shall not proceed with
any such activities until (2) and (3) as
described in this section are met. Costs that are
incurred before (2) and (3) as described in this
section are met are not allowable costs under
this agreement.

Extent of activities that are permissible before
NEPA is complete are those activitics constituting
“preliminary design” as specified in FHWA Order
6640.1A.

24  Budget Period.
Base Phase Budget Period: Effective date of award — 30 months
Option Phase [ Budget Period: [reserved]

Option Phase I Budget Period: [reserved]

2.5  Grant Designation.

Designation: Planning and Demonstration

6 of 27

66



ARTICLE 3
SUMMARY PROJECT INFORMATION

3.1 Summary of Project’s Statement of Work.

[The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency will use this award to develop a comprehensive safety action plan;
conduct supplemental planning activities such as a vulnerable road users  study, a lighting study, and an ITS
study; and pilot demonstration activities using quick build strategies to reallocate space for pedestrians and
bicyclists, pilot programs related to rideshare and safety behaviors, and trial changes to test how EMS respond
to crashes,

The project will be completed in three phases as follows:
Base Phase: Pre-NEPA

Development of an action plan

A study to identify vulnerable road users within our areas
A lighting study

Safety focused intelligent transportation system

Progress reporting

Completing NEPA for Demonstration activities

Option Phase I: Design of Demonstration Activities (Post-NEPA) Commented [NX(28]: New guidance fiom FHWA HQ requires
separation of design activitics into its own phase We can discuss
further if needed

diev ise methods that will eulize gquick=budd strateses for reallocation 4 Formatted: Bulleted + Level: L + Aligned at: 0.75" + Indent
' . at 1

Lhscuss with Emereency Medical Service M3 personnel e cur

determine 1t alternatives are viable and establish trials and tesls

Option Phase II: Construction of Demonstration Activities (Post-NEPA)

o Feastbihitv shiudhesusingConstruction of quick-build strategies to reallocate space for pedestrians and
bicyclists =
o Pilot program for behavioral and operational activity Commented [NX(33]: This may happen sooner The draft CE
5 . . submitted is under review by the Divisions' Environmental
e Pilot testing rideshare or other programs Specialist |
e Trial changes to test how emergency medical services respond to crashes Commented [NX(34]: Demonstration activitics must inform the |
action plan. The evaluation period cnd date is currently projected to
. N . | d be pleted bey ond the pletion of the draft plan. The draft plan
32 Pro.lec': s Estimated Schedule. completion should occur after the cvaluation period end date ]

. Commented [NX(35]: Same¢ comment as above
Action Plan Schedule

| Milestone Schedule Date
| Planned NEPA C_ompm&: 1°03/31/2025,
Planned Draft Plan Completion Date ..
Planned Final Plan Comp_leaonme_ - L0/3 1
]' Planned Final Plan Adoption Date [
| Planned SS4A Final Report Date 101/31/2027

7 of 27

67



Demonstration Activity Scheduld

Milestone o | Schedule Date
Planned NEPA Completion Date 09/30/2025
Planned Construction Start Date 03/31/2026
Planned Evaluation Period End Date 09/30/2026
Planned SS4A Final Report Date 01/31/2027

Supplemental Planning Schedulé

Milestone Schedule Date

Planned NEPA Completion Date 03/31/2025

Planned Draft Plan Completion Date 063020272026
Planned Final Plan Completion Date 10/31/2026

Planned Final Plan Adoption Date | 113012026

Planned SS4A Final Report Date | 01/31/2027

3.3 Project’s Estimated Costsjl.}

(a) Eligible Project Costs

Eligible Project Costs

SS4A Grant Amount: $280,000
[Other Federal Funds; $0
State Funds: $0
Local Funds: $70,000
In-Kind Match: $0
Other Funds: 30
Total Eligible Project Cost: $350,000

(b) Cost Classification Table — Planning and Demonstration Grants with demonstration activities and
[mplementation Grants Only

Non-SS4A
: Total Previously
!Cosd_CrlgsrsiﬁcrartViqqmr Costs | Incurred Costs |  Eligible Costs
Administrative and legal expenses $25,000 $0 $25,000
Architectural and engineering fees $150,000 $0 $150,000
Other architectural and engineering fees $130,000 $0 $130,000
Marketing-outreach—advertising—and | $25,000 $0 $25,000
pubhie-engagement-meetings Construction
Contingency $20,000 $0 $20,000
Project Total $350,000 $0 $350,000

8 of 27

68

Commented [NX(42]: Samc comment as above for NEPA
completion date

]

Commented [NX(49]: Tablc was updated based on revised
information provided with the most recent draft grant agreement
shared by Merritt Island However, the total costs must be revisited
to cqual the same amount as the total project cost ($350,000) and the
next two columns should be revisited as necessary [f there are no
costs associated with the second column then $0 should be noted

{ Commer_lted [TH50R49]: Tablc has been revised accordingly

.| Commented [NX(51R49]: Please provide clarificarion on the

cost classification that applies to e demonstration activates. Also,
please provide information on the tvpe of activities that would fall
under miscellancous.

"| Commented [NX({52R49]: Plcase provide clarification on the !

cost classification that applics to the demonstration activates




(c) Indirect Costs

Indirect costs are allowable under this Agreement in accordance with 2 CFR part 200 and the Recipient’s
approved Budget Application. In the event the Recipient’s indirect cost rate changes, the Recipient will notify
FHWA of the planned adjustment and provide supporting documentation for such adjustment. This Indirect
Cost provision does not operate to waive the limitations on Federal funding provided in this document, The
Recipient’s indirect costs are allowable only insofar as they do not cause the Recipient to exceed the total
obligated funding,.

ARTICLE 4

RECIPIENT INFORMATION

4.1 Recipient Contact(s).

Larry Lallo, Executive Director
Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency
2575 N Courtenay Pkwy, Suite 214
Merritt island, FL 32953-4126

(321) 454-6610

Larry. Lallo@brevardfl.gov

Lisa Nicholas, Community Redevelopment Manager
Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency

2575 N Courtenay Pkwy, Suite 214

Merritt Island, FL 32953-4126

(321) 454-6610

lisa.nicholas@brevardfl.gov

4.2  Recipient Key Personnel.

Name Title or Position
Larry Lallo Executive Director
Lisa Nicholas Community Redevelopment Manager

4.3 USDOT Project Contact(s).

Safe Streets and Roads for All Program Manager
Federal Highway Administration

Office of Safety

HSSA-1, Mail Stop: E71-117

1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E.

Washington, DC 20590

202-366-2822

SS4A FHWA@dot.gov

and

90f27

69



Agreement Officer (AO)

Federal Highway Administration

Office of Acquisition and Grants Management
HCFA-33, Mail Stop E62-310

1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E.

Washington, DC 20590

202-493-2402

HCFASS4A@dot.gov

and

Division Administrator — Florida
Agreement Officer’s Representative (AOR)
Tallahassee, FL 32312
850-553-2229

florida. fhwa@dot.gov

Kevin Burgess

Florida Division Office Lead Point of Contact
Safety Engineer

3500 Financial Plaza, Suite 400

Tallahassee, FL 32312

850-553-2229

Kevin.Burgess@dot.gov

ARTICLE 5
USDOT ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

5.1 Office for Subaward and Contract Authorization.

USDOT Office for Subaward and Contract Authorization: FHWA Office of Acquisition and Grants
Management

SUBAWARDS AND CONTRACTS APPROVAL

Note: See 2 CFR § 200.331, Subrecipient and contractor determinations, for definitions of subrecipient (who is
awarded a subaward) versus contractor (who is awarded a contract)

Note: Recipients with a procurement system deemed approved and accepted by the Government or by the
Agreement Officer (the “A0”) are exempt from the requirements of this clause. See 2 CFR 200.317 through
200.327. Note: This clause is only applicable to grants that do not include construction.

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.308(c)(6), unless described in the application and funded in the approved award,
the Recipient must obtain prior written approval from the AO for the subaward, transfer, or contracting out of
any work under this award above the Simplified Acquisition Threshold. This provision does not apply to the
acquisition of supplies, material, equipment, or general support services. Approval will be issued through
written notification from the AO or a formal amendment to the Agreement.

10 of 27

70

[ Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Text 1 )

(_Formatted: Font color: Text 1, English (United State_s) _‘i



The following subawards and contracts are currently approved under the Agreement by the AO. This list does
not include supplies, material, equipment, or general support services which are exempt from the pre-approval
requirements of this clause.

5.2  Reimbursement Requests

(a) The Recipient may request reimbursement of costs incurred within the budget period of this agreement if
those costs do not exceed the amount of funds obligated and are allowable under the applicable cost
provisions of 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E. The Recipient shall not request reimbursement more frequently
than monthly.

(b) The Recipient shall use the DELPHI iSupplier System to submit requests for reimbursement to the payment
office. When requesting reimbursement of costs incurred or credit for cost share incurred, the Recipient
shall electronically submit supporting cost detail with the SF-270 (Request for Advance or Reimbursement)
or SF-271 (Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for Construction Programs) to clearly document
all costs incurred.

(c) The Recipient’s supporting cost detail shall include a detailed breakout of all costs incurred, including direct
labor, indirect costs, other direct costs, travel, etc., and the Recipient shall identify the Federal share and the
Recipient’s share of costs. I the Recipient does not provide sufficient detail in a request for reimbutsement,
the Agreement Officer’s Representative (the “AOR”™) may withhold processing that request until the
Recipient provides suffictent detail.

(d) The USDOT shall not reimburse costs unless the AOR reviews and approves the costs to ensure that progress
on this agreement is sufficient to substantiate payment.

(e) In the rare instance the Recipient is unable to receive electronic funds transfers (EFT), payment by EFT
would impose a hardship on the Recipient because of their inability to manage an account at a financial
institution, and/or the Recipient is unable to use the DELPHI iSupplier System to submit their requests for
disbursement, the FHWA may waive the requirement that the Recipient use the DELPHI iSupplier System.
The Recipient shall contact the Division Office Lead Point of Contact for instructions on and requirements
related to pursuing a waiver

(f) The requirements set forth in these terms and conditions supersede previous financial invoicing
requirements for Recipients.

ARTICLE 6
SPECIAL GRANT TERMS|

6.1  SS4A funds must be expended within five years after the grant agreement is executed and DOT
obligates the funds, which is the budget period end date in section 10.3 of the Terms and Conditions
and section 2.4 in this agreement.

6.2. The Recipient demonstrates compliance with civil rights obligations and nondiscrimination faws,
including Titles VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and accompanying regulations. Recipients of Federal transportation funding
will also be required to comply fully with regulations and guidance for the ADA, Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and all other civil rights requirements.

6.3  SS4A Funds will be allocated to the Recipient and made available to the Recipient in accordance with
FHWA procedures.

11 of 27

71



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

fThe Recipient of a Planning and Demonstration Grant acknowledges that the Action Plan and
Supplemental Planning Deliverable(s) will be made publicly available and agrees that it will publish the
final Action Plan and Supplemental Planning Deliverable(s) on a publicly available website,|

fThe Recipient of a Planning and Demonstration Grant that involves a demonstration activity agrees to
provide an assessment of each demonstration activity and update the existing Action Plan, which will
incorporate the information gathered in the Action Plan’s list of projects or strategies and/or inform
another part of the existing Action Plan. The Recipient also agrees that demonstration activities are
temporary in nature and must be removed and/or ended following the conclusion of the project if the
assessment of the demonstration activities does not affirm that the activities provide safety benefits)

[The Recipient acknowledges that it is required to conduct certain environmental analyses and to prepare
and submit to FHWA, or State with applicable NEPA Assignment authority, documents required under
NEPA, and other applicable environmental statutes and regulations before the Government will obligate
funds for Option Phase | under this agreement and provide the Recipient with a written notice to proceed
with Option Phase |

The Government's execution of this agreement does not in any way constitute pre-approval or waiver
of any of the regulations imposed upon Recipient under the applicable Federal rules, regulations and
laws regarding SS4A projects undertaken in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement
The Recipient shall comply with all applicable Federal requirements before incurring any costs under
this agreement. |

IThere are no other special grant requirements |

12 of 27

712

! Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Space After: 1

4pt



13 of 27

73



ATTACHMENT A

IPERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT INFORMATION|

Study Area: Merritt Island Redevelopment Area

[Baseline [Report|Date: 02/29/2026

Table 1: Performance Measure !Tabld

Measure

Category and Description

Measurement
Frequency and
Reporting
Deadline

Safety Performance

Fatalities: Total annual fatatities in the
project location(s)

Annually and
within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Safety Performance

Serious Injuries: Total annual serious
injuries in the project location(s) [if

Annually and
within 120 days

Safety Performance

Equity

annual crashes in the project location(s)
broken out by types of roadway users
involved (e.g., pedestrians, bicyclists,
motorcyclist, passenger vehicle occupant,
commercial vehicle occupant)

Percent of Funds to Underserved
Communities; Funding amount (of total
project amount) benefitting underserved

communities, as defined by USDOT

available] after the end of the
period of
performance
Crashes by Road User Category: Total R Bt

within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Costs

Project Costs: Quantification of the cost
of each eligible project carried out using
the grant

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

14 of 27

74

Commented [NX{66]: Enter a datc instcad of using thc months
format

Commented [TH67R66]: Spccific date cntered

[Commented [NX(68R66]: Includc a day in this scction

| Formatted: Left

)



Measure

Category and Description

Measurement
Frequency and
Reporting
Deadline

Outcomes and Benefits

Outcomes and Benefits

Quantitative Project Benefits:
Quantification of evidence-based projects
or strategies implemented (e.g., miles of
sidewalks installed, number of pedestrian
crossings upgraded, etc.)

Qualitative Project Benefits: Qualitative

description of evidence-based projects or
strategies implemented (e.g., narrative
descriptions, testimonials, high-quality
before and after photos, etc.)

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Outcomes and Benefits

Project Location(s): GIS/geo coordinate
information identifying specific project
location(s)

Within 120 days
alter the end of the
period of
performance

Lessons Leamed and
Recommendations

Lessons Leamed and Recommendations:
Description of lessons learned and any
recommendations relating to future
projects or strategies to prevent death and
serious injury on roads and streets.

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

15 0f 27

75



ATTACHMENT B
CHANGES FROM APPLICATION

Describe all material differences between the scope, schedule, and budget described in the application and the scope,
schedule, and budget described in Article 3. The purpose of Attachment B is to clearly and accurately document any
differences in scope, schedule, and budget to establish the parties’ knowledge and acceptance of those differences.
See Article 11 for the Statement of Work, Schedule, and Budget Changes. If there are no changes, please insert
“N/A™ in Section 3.3 of the table.

Scope: N/A
Schedule: N/A

Budget: Redistribution of funds within the activities awarded (Action Plan, Supplemental Planning, and
Demonstration Activities) as follows:

Activities Original Federal Revised Federal Original Match | Revised Match
Funds Funds

Action Plan $168,000 $48,900 $42,000 | $12,300

Supplemental Planning | $52,800 $71,100 $13,200 | $17,700

Demonstration Activities | $59,200 $160,000 $14,800 | $40,000

Total - 'l$280,000 ] $280,000 $70,000 | $70,000

The table below provides a summary comparison of the project budget.

Application Section 3.3
Fund Source 3 % $ %

Previously Incurred Costs
(Non-Eligible Project Costs)

~ Federal Funds N/A N/A
Non-Federal Funds N/A N/A
Total Previougly_lncurred Costs il i 1

Future Eligible Project Costs

SS4AFunds N/A N/A
Other Federal Funds N/A N/A
Non-Federal Funds Bl N/A N/A
Total Future Eligible Project
Costs N/A N/A
Total Project Costs N/A N/A
16 of 27

76




1.

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER HAS ADOPTED AN EQUITY AND INCLUSION PROGRAM/PLAN OR HAS
OTHERWISE INSTITUTED EQUITY-FOCUSED POLICIES RELATED TO PROJECT PROCUREMENT, MATERIAL

Efforts to Improve Racial Equity and Reduce Barriers to Opportunity.

The Recipient states that rows marked with “X” in the following table align with the application}|

A racial equity impact analysis has been completed for the Project. (Identify a
report on that analysis or, if no report was produced, describe the analysis and
its results in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner has adopted an equity and inclusion
program/plan or has otherwise instituted equity-focused policies related to
project procurement, material sourcing, construction, inspection, hiring, or
other activities designed to ensure racial equity in the overall delivery and
implementation of the Project. (Identify the relevant programs, plans, or
policies in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes physical-barrier-mitigating land bridges, caps, lids, linear
parks, and multimodal mobility investments that either redress past barriers to
opportunity or that proactively create new connections and opportunities for
underserved communities that are underserved by transportation. (Identify the
relevant investments in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes new or improved walking, biking, and rolling access for
individuals with disabilities, especially access that reverses the disproportional
impacts of crashes on people of color and mitigates neighborhood bifurcation,
(Identify the new or improved access in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes new or improved freight access to underserved
communities to increase access to goods and job opportunities for those
underserved communities. (/dentify the new or improved access in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient has taken other actions related to the Proj;.ct to improve racial
equity and reduce barriers to opportunity, as described in the supporting
narrative below

The Recipient has not yet taken actions related to the Project to improve racial
equity and reduce barriers to opportunity but intends to take relevant actions
described in the supporting narrative below]

The Recipient has not taken actions related to the Project to improve racial
equity and reduce barriers to opportunity and will not take those actions under
this award,

Supporting Narrative.

SOURCING, ETC., DESIGNED TO ENSURE RACIAL EQUITY

a.

Brevard County Title VI Nondiserimination Policy & Plan

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on race, color, or national origin in
programs and activitics receiving Federal financial assistance. Specifically, Title VI provides that "no person
in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from

17 of 27

77

l

Commented [NX(74]: Text for Attachment C. D. and E were

brought over from draft shared by Merritt Island

,




participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance" (42 U.S.C. § 2000d).

to comply with all County directives, one of which is the Brevard County Board of County Commissioners
(BOCC) Title V'l Nondiscrimination Policy and Plan. The overarching goal of this policy is to value diversity
and welcome input from all interested parties, regardless of cultural identity, race, background, or income
level. Moreover, the County believes that the greatest public policy and most effective governmental services
result from careful consideration of the needs of all of its communities, and the County employs its best
efforts to include and involve those communities in the public policy and governmental services decision-
making process. Furthermore, Brevard County does not tolerate discrimination in any of its programs,
services, or activities.

BOCC’s Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy and Plan set forth a variety of actions to ensure that diversity and
inclusion initiatives are implemented to their fullest extent. Certain examples include:

o Complaint Procedures
The County has established a discrimination complaint procedure and will take prompt and reasonable
action to investigate and eliminate discrimination when discovered. Any person who believes that he or
she has been subjected to discrimination based upon race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability,
religion, income, or family status in any of the County's programs, services or activities is urged to file a
complaint with the County's Title VI/Nondiscrimination Coordinator.

o Americans with Disabilities Act/504 Statement
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,
and associated federal and state laws and regulations forbid discrimination against those who have
disabilities, Government entities receiving federal funds are required to take affirmative steps to
reasonably accommodate the disabled and ensure that their needs are equitably represented in County
programs, service, and activities. This responsibility is taken very seriously, and the County makes every

effort to ensure that its facilities, programs, services, and activities are accessible to those with disabilities.

The County urges the public to report any facility, program, service, or activity that appears inaccessible
to the disabled, and the County will provide reasonable accommodation to disabled individuals who wish
to participate in public events, meetings, hearings, or activities.

18 of 27

78

|

C d [SC(79]: Ts ‘dependent special’ a tenn of art? Or
docs this mean an arm. unit. or office of Brevard County”

J

Commented [LN8OR79]: It is an am of Brevard County
{dependent = the agency could not function without the County). the
creation of which is provided for in Flornda Statute

I




b

o Limited English Proficiency Guidance
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and other directives from federal agencies require federal aid
recipients to take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to programs, services, and activities by
those who do not speak English proficiently. Because the County believes that the services that it provides
are of critical importance to all citizens of Brevard County, the County has a variety of documents for
each department translated into Spanish, and its policies regarding this matter are posted in Spanish and
English on its website so that every member of the public is aware of its nondiscrimination and public
involvement polices.

o Data Collection for Transportation Programs
The Federal Highway Administration (FHIWA) requires federal aid recipients to collect racial, ethnic, and
other similar demographic data on individuals affected by transportation programs, services, and activities.
The County accomplishes this by using census data, American Community Survey (ACS) reports, and
other methods, Information gathered assists the County with improving outreach and measures
effectiveness of regional transportation programs and their impact on disadvantaged individuals. Self-
identification of personal data is always voluntary and remains anonymous.

Inclusionary Housing — Article XVII, Brevard County Land Development Regulations

Article XVII (Affordable and Workforce Housing Incentives) of the Brevard County Land Development
Regulations (Sec. 62-6300, et seq.) provides for incentives for the voluntary provision of affordable and
workforce housing. At least 30 percent of units are set aside for households at or below 120 percent of area
median income (AMTI), with minimum required percentages for very low-, low-, and moderate-income
houscholds; it defines work force housing developments (WHDs) as those in which at least |5 percent of units
are available to houscholds at or below 140 percent of AMI. Incentives include technical assistance with
permitting, fee rebates, housing trust fund grants, and density bonuses. The language also provides for transfer
of development rights (TDRs) to affordable developments, with some units being eligible for additional
alternative and flexible design requirements and criteria

Brevard County Policy and Administrative Orders Concerning Nondiscrimination

The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (MIRA) is a component unit of Brevard County, Florida, and is
required to adhere to all Florida Statutes and Brevard County ordinances. [n Brevard County, discriminatory
harassment based on disability, impairment, or any other characteristic set forth in the Americans with
Disabilities Act, including race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identitly, and national origin is
prohibited and will not be tolerated. [f an accommodation for a physical or emotional condition is requested
by an employee, the request is evaluated, and the accommodation is granted when deemed necessary
Moreover, Brevard County mandates training on this topic, as well as training for recognizing sexual
harassment and anger management in the workplace for new employees and has adopted four Administrative
Orders (AO-02, AO-{1, AO-15, and AO-50) to ensure compliance with the policy.

FloridaStaues-Addressing Nondiseriminition-in-Provurement-and-Purchasing
h-Florda—aswelbustn-Brevard County—the-practice ofnon-discrimination extends-well-bevond-the
emplovecsand pﬂ%bﬁffﬂl—ﬁt&-l%%f%&—ﬂfd—%mmh—_ﬁkk SbPubhe Busthess)Chapter 287
Procurement-of-RPersonal- Propertv-and-Servie statites—s-the-pertor-ofHortdatav-that pertains—to
precurementandpurchasingThe %H{H{Hbﬁph&%&hﬁcwmd-lﬁmaﬂdamgﬂw hirtrg-efminert—wormen
ovhed—and-disadvantancd bustesses-whenever passible-and-snch-references-are-nfused-thronghoutthe lav-
Farthermore-under-the-provessnsof Seeton287-055 the Consullamts - Competiive N
CENA-ths-provision-esdendsdo-commetors-thatare-rmgsubsoiraciors-to-assiston-a-particilar projeet:

19 of 27

79

Cc ed [SC(81]: Rec | removing this section t's |
covered in attachment E. \ubwllm |

Commented [LN82R81] 1 F\.l[ un( It was rdu antin bo[h
places and fortified the State’s commitment to its procurement
policics and procedures [will remove if destred



Seetrnt 28700 o the Aet-estitbhshed-the-ldamda Advivorn-Connctbon-Stath-and-Shnoriv-Busisess

s—Research-and review the-role-oFsmall-and minoriv businesses—tnthe sttt sceononny-
Anahyze-emerzing-topies-related-to-simathand-minor - business-economie development:
S—Stpdbv-thesbibe o naneibmarkots-amdmstiabons toacetsmalb busmesseredibnecdsand-dotesmine
the-impact-obaovemment-demands on-credit-torsimal-biistiesses:
s—Asdess-theopgomsriplenentiton-ol-Secton-HT 20 H2 bowhich-requires-a-state ceonomi
development comprehiensive phurrelaltive to-smath and minority businesses.
Evaluate the elfectiveness-ofactivities-by-stale-neenciesto-assist minorin-business-enterprises:
Athrise-the Governor-and-the- Legishiture-onmatters-relating to-smak-ard-minority-busiitess- development

whHw—&Fe—e%—mweﬁm%%&ys{m{e@epmmmwa&H—%

Managenmient Servees that provdes pedotase-buamessrmsactod e the Conne b durme thevosasoselas
ain—recoeidations-to-the seeretan— specticallve those thatseelctopiprece-busmess-oppotiiaities tor smalt

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER HAS TAKEN OTHER ACTIONS RELATED TO THE PROJECT TO IMPROVE
Raciar EQUITY AND REDUCE BARRIERS TO OPPORTUNITY

Transportation Disadvantaged |ocal Coordinaung Board (TDLCB)

Spearheaded by the local mass-transit authority, Space Coast Area Transit (SCAT), and authorized by Florida
Statutes Chapter 427 (Special Transportation and Communications Services), the Space Coast Transportation
Planning Organization (SCTPO) participates in the Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board

(TDLCB). The primary function of the TDLCB is to ensure that transportation opportunities are available for
all residents, regardless of age, race, ability, or economic status. The Board also provides direction and advice
to SCAT concerning the provision of transportation services

The TDLCB conducts periodic meetings and is responsible for documenting a Transportation Disadvantaged
Service Plan. The Local Coordinating Board (LCB) for Transportation Disadvantaged Services meets
quarterly to oversee the Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) program at a local level, by providing input on
various issues, plans, and programs. The essential focus is directed to the needs of the transportation
disadvantaged population, specifically older adults, persons with disabilities, persons of low income, children
at risk, and those without convenient access Lo mass transit services. The TDLCB reviews price and service
levels, safety concems, eligibility, and other pertinent issues.

Furthermore, within Chapter 427, Florida Statutes, Section 427.012 established the Commission for the
Transportation Disadvantaged, a seven-member Board appointed by the Governor to review and offer
recommendations on numerous functions associated with the transportation disadvantaged, including but not
limited to:

o Establishing statewide objectives for providing transportation services for the transportation
disadvantaged.

o Developing policies and procedures for the coordination of local government, federal, and state funding
for the transportation disadvantaged.

o ldentifying barriers prohibiting the coordination and accessibility of transportation services to the
transportation disadvantaged and aggressively pursuing the elimination of these barriers.

o Serving as a clearinghouse for information about transportation disadvantaged services, training,
funding sources, innovations, and coordination efforts

20 of 27

80



o Assisting communities in developing transportation systems designed to serve the transportation
disadvantaged.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

“Equity — According to the USDOT Equitable Transportation Community (ETC) Explorer tool, 25% of the
24,600 residents within the MIRA jurisdiction are disadvantaged. Annualized Disaster Losses are 83%
compared to 74% for Florida, High Volume Road Proximity is 70% compared to 52% for Florida, Uninsured
is 74% compared to 66% for Florida, 65 and older is 73% compared to 60% for Florida and those with a
disability is 67% compared to 54% for Florida. Transportation Safety is 66% compared to 56% for Florida.”
(Grant Narrative)

“The supplemental activities selected will be used to inform and enhance the Action Plan. The demonstration
activities will be used to inform future permanent development projects, The scope of work will include an
investigation into which road users are the most vulnerable. Merritt Island has a significant elderly population,
but daily drivers include those travelling to work at the Kennedy Space Center, tourists bound for the KSC
Visitors Complex space museum, the largest cruise port in the world at Cape Canaveral, and Cocoa Beach, as
well as students and parents traveling to schools. Understanding exactly who is the most vulnerable will help
us guide our efforts towards projects that maximize opportunities for safety improvements.” (Budget
Narrative).

The Supplemental Planning and Demonstration Activities will include an equity screening/analysis and
provide safety countermeasures/solutions to reduce barriers and provide safer facilities for vulnerable
populations.

21 of 27

81



JATTACHMENT D
ICLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACTS|

Consideration of Climate Change and Environmental Justice Impacts.

The Recipient states that rows marked with “X” in the following table align with the application

The Project directly supports a Local/Regional/State Climate Action Plan that
results in lower greenhouse gas emissions. (Identify the plan in the supporting
narrative below.)

The Project directly suppor?s a Local/Regional/State Equitable Development
Plan that results in lower greenhouse gas emissions. (Identify the plan in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Project directly sﬁpports a Local/Regional/State Energy Baseline Study
that results in lower greenhouse gas emissions. (/dentify the plan in the
supporting narrative below.)

| The Recipient or a project partner used environmental justi::e tools, such as the
EJScreen, to minimize adverse impacts of the Project on environmental justice
communities. (Identify the tool(s) in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project supports a modal shift in freight or passenger movement to reduce
emissions ot reduce induced travel demand. (Describe that shift in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Project utilizes demand management strategies to reduce congestion,
induced travel demand, and greenhouse gas emissions. (Describe those
Strategies in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project incorporates electrification infrastructure, zero-emission vehicle
infrastructure, or both. (Describe the incorporated infrastructure in the
supporting narrative below.)

X | The Project supports the installation of electric vehicle charging stations,
(Describe that support in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project promotes energy efficiency. (Describe how in the supporting
narrative below.)

The Project serves the renewable energy supply chain, (Describe how in the
supporling narrative below.)

X The Project improves disaster preparedness and rgsimcy (Describe how in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Project avoids adverse environmental impacts to air or water quality,
wetlands, and endangered species, such as through reduction in Clean Air Act
criteria pollutants and greenhouse gases, improved stormwater management, or
improved habitat connectivity. (Describe how in the supporting narrative
below.)

The Project repairs existing dilapidated or idle infrastructure that is currently
causing environmental harm. (Describe that infrastructure in the supporting
narrative below.)

The Project supports or incorporates the construction of energy- and location-
cfficient buildings. (Describe how in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes recycling-of materials, use of materials known to reduce
or reverse carbon emissions, or both. (Describe the materials in the supporting
narrative below.)

22 of 27

82



The Recipient has taken otlier actions to consider climate change and
environmental justice impacts of the Project, as described in the supporting
narrative below.

The Recipient has not yet taken actions to consider climate change and
environmental justice impacts of the Project but will take relevant actions
described in the supporting narrative below |

“The Recipientfas not taken actions to consider climate change and o
environmental justice impacts of the Project and will not take those actions
under this award.

Supporting Narrative.

The USDOT Equitable Transportation Community Explorer and the Climate and Economic Justice Screening
Tool were used for application data and will be used for program analysis.

THE PROJECT IMPROVES DISASTER PREPAREDNESS AND RESILIENCY

In collaboration with the Space Coast Transportation Planning Organization (SCTPO), the Merritt [stand
Redevelopment Agency (MIRA) is participating in activities to enhance preparedness for disasters, as well as
resiliency efforts throughout MIRA's service area. As set forth in the SCTPO’s Advance 2050: Public
Engagement Plan, interaction with the public regarding preparation for disasters is critical; and, in an effort to
bolster heightened engagement, the SCTPO and MIRA will focus on outreach to underserved communities, the
utilization of technology and innovation whenever possible, and a convenient and accessible schedule for
meetings and other activities,

MIRA has ensured its inclusion and representation in the wide-ranging database of SCTPO stakeholders, which
includes, but is not limited to, Brevard County and its municipalities, Brevard Public Schools and area institutions
of higher learning, human-services organizations and coalitions, businesses and regional chambers of commerce,
and environmental agencies,

Realizing the importance of equitable communication, MIRA will assist the SCTPO with its outreach efforts on
disaster preparedness education by focusing on available demographic and socioeconomic data, This approach
will assist in reaching residents throughout Merritt [sland, including those in underserved portions of the service
area,

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER USED ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE TOOLS, SUCH AS THE EJSCREEN

In various areas of Brevard County that include Titusville, Cocoa, Merritt [sland, Melbourne, and Palm Bay, there
are 30 census tracts that are identified as being disadvantaged, The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s
(EPA) Environmental Justice Screen (EJScreen) Environmental Justice and Mapping Tool is consistent with the
Biden Administration’s Justice40 Executive Order. For MIRA, the EJScreen has already proven to be a valuable
screening tool for identifying opportunities for equitable and impartial engagement throughout the public
participation process. In addition, the EJScreen has also been beneficial in identifying properties within MIRA’s
service area that may contain contaminates, which could lead to their remediation using other grant opportunities.

THE PROJECT SUPPORTS THE INSTALLATION OF ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS

In accordance with the National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (NEVI) program, which is a component of the
[nfrastructure [nvestment and Jobs Act (IIJA), the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) established the
FDOT Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Program. As part of this effort, two funding sources were created
—a formula program with $5 billion, along with a discretionary program containing $2.5 billion. FDOT’s EV
Charging Infrastructure Program contains key principles that align with the NEV[ Program and set forth the
following criteria regarding electric vehicle charging stations and infrastructure:

23 of 27

83



Must be public or authorized for commercial motor vehicle operators from more than one company.
Must be located along a designated alternative fuel corridor (AFC).

Must prioritize placement along the Interstate Highway System.

Should be spaced at a maximum of 50 miles apart.

Must meet certain power capabilities.

Should give preference to rural, underserved, and disadvantaged communities.

Should consider locations with publicly available restrooms, appropriate lighting, and sheltered seating
areas.

00O O0OO0O0OO0O0

The FDOT program will be implemented in phases, with the first phase emphasizing interstates in alignment with
the national NEVT program priorities.

24 of 27

84



ATTACHMENT E |
LABOR AND WORK[FORCE

Efforts to Support Good-Paying Jobs and Strong Labor Standards

The Recipient states that rows marked with “X” in the following table align with the applicatior|

The Recipient demonstrate, to the full extent possible consistent with the law, an
effort to create good-paying jobs with the free and fair choice to join a union and
incorporation of high labor standards. (Identify the relevant agreements and

describe the scope of activities they cover in the supporting narrative below.)

| The Recipient or a project partner has adopte? the usc of local and economic
hiring preferences in the overall delivery and implementation of the Project.
(Describe the relevant provisions in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner has adopted the use of registered
apprenticeships in the overall delivery and implementation of the Project.
(Describe the use of registered apprenticeship in the supporting narrative
below.)

The Recipient or a project partner will provide training and placement
programs for underrepresented workers in the overall delivery and
implementation of the Project. (Describe the training programs in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner will support free and fair choice to join a
union in the overall delivery and implementation of the Project by investing in
workforce development services offered by labor-management training
partnerships or setting expectations for contractors to develop labor-management
training programs. (Describe the workforce development services offered by
labor-management training partnerships in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner will provide supportive services and cash
assistance to address systemic barricrs to employment to be able to participate
and thrive in training and employment, including childcare, emergency cash
assistance for items such as tools, work clothing, application fees and other
costs of apprenticeship or required pre-employment training, transportation and
travel to training and work sites, and services aimed at helping to retain
underrepresented groups like mentoring, support groups, and peer networking,
(Describe the supportive services and/or cash assistance provided to trainees
and employees in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner has documented agreements or ordinances in
place to hire from certain workforce programs that serve underrepresented
groups. (Identify the relevant agreements and describe the scope of activities
they cover in the supporting narrative below.)

25 of 27

85



X|

The Recipient or a project partner participates in a State/Regional/Local
comprehensive plan to promote equal opportunity, including removing barriers
to hire and preventing harassment on work sites, and that plan demonstrates
action to create an inclusive environment with a commitment to equal
opportunity, including:

a, affirmative efforts to remove barriers to equal employment
opportunity above and beyond complying with Federal law;

b. proactive partnerships with the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office
of Federal Contract Compliance Programs to promote compliance
with EO 11246 Equal Employment Opportunity requirements and
meet the requirements as outlined in the Notice of Funding
Opportunity to make good faith efforts to meet the goals of 6.9
percent of construction project hours being performed by women
and goals that vary based on geography for construction work hours
and for work being performed by people of color;

¢. no discriminatory use of criminal background screens and
affirmative steps to recruit and include those with former justice
involvement, in accordance with the Fair Chance Act and equal
opportunity requirements;

d. efforts to prevent harassment based on race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, and national origin;

¢. training on anti-harassment and third-party reporting procedures
covering employees and contractors; and

£ maintaining robust anti-retaliation measures covering employees
and contractors,

(Describe the equal opportunity plan in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient has taken other actions related to the Project to create good-
paying jobs with the free and fair choice to join a union and incorporate strong
labor standards. (Describe those actions in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient has not yet taken actions related to the Project to create good-
paying jobs with the free and fair choice to join a union and incorporate strong
labor standards but, before beginning construction of the project, will take
relevant actions described in the supporting narrative below |

The Recipient has not taken actions related to the PToject_ to_improving good- '

paying jobs and strong labor standards and will not take those actions under

this award.

Supporting Narrative.

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER PARTICIPATES IN A STATE/REGIONAL/LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

70 PROMOTE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (MIRA) is a component unit of Brevard County, Florida, and is
required to adhere to all Florida Statutes and Brevard County ordinances. [n Brevard County, discriminatory
harassment based on disability, impairment, or any other characteristic set forth in the Ameticans with
Disabilities Act, including race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, and national origin is
prohibited and will not be tolerated. If an accommodation for a physical or emotional condition is requested
by an employee, the request is evaluated, and the accommodation is granted when deemed necessary.
Morcover, Brevard County mandates training on this topic, as well as training for recognizing sexual
harassment and anger management in the workplace, for new employees and has adopted four Administrative

Orders (AO-02, AO-11, AO-15, and AQ-50) to ensure compliance with the policy.

26 of 27

86

{Commented [NX(94]: Should this selcction be removed'.’_

Commented [SC(95R94]: No strong feclings cither way [t
docsn't add much valuc, given that most of these bullets are

q of federal
restatement of commitment to EEQ

But it does servc asa

'Eommented [THI8]: Lamy to help wrile supporting narrative

based on selection in table above

i



Still, the practice of non-discrimination extends well beyond the employees and potential hires for Brevard
County. Title XIX (Public Business), Chapter 287 (Procurement of Personal Property and Services), Florida
Statutes, is the portion of Florida law that pertains to procurement and purchasing, The statute is explicit with
regard to mandating the hiring of minority, women-owned, and disadvantaged businesses whenever possible,
and such references are infused throughout the law. Furthermore, under the provisions of Section 287.055, the
Consultants” Competitive Negotiation Act, or CCNA, this provision extends to contractors that are hiring
subcontractots to assist on a particular project.

Section 287.0947 of the Act established the Florida Advisory Council on Small and Minority Business
Development in an effort to:

o Research and review the role of small and minority businesses in the state’s economy.

Analyze emerging topics related to small and minority business economic development.

o Study the ability of financial markets and institutions to meet small business credit needs and determine
the impact of government demands on credit for small businesses.

o Assess the ongoing implementation of Section 187.201(21), which requires a state economic
development comprehensive plan relative to small and minority businesses,

o Evaluate the effectiveness of activities by state agencies to assist minority business entetprises.

o Advise the Governor and the Legislature on matters relating to small and minority business
development which are of importance to strategic planning activities.

o}

On or before January 1 of each year, the council is required to present an annual report to the Secretary of
Management Services that provides in detail the business transacted by the Council during the year, as well as
any recommendations to the secretary, specifically those that seek to improve business opportunities for small
and minority business enterprises.

In addition, MIRA will adhere to the requirements of 2 CFR 200.321when contracting with small businesses,
minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, veteran-owned businesses, and labor surplus area firms, if
applicable. While federal law prohibits establishing goals or contracting preferences, MIRA will:

e Include these businesses on solicitation lists;
® Ensure these businesses are solicited whenever they are deemed eligible as potential sources;

¢ Divide procurement transactions into separate procurements to permit maximum participation by these
business types;

e Establish performance schedules that encourage participation by these business types;

¢ Engage small and minority business development agencies to assist with locating and soliciting
participation by these business types;

e Require its consultants to apply these requirements to all subcontracts, if any

. F_ormatted: Font: Not Bold,_Font color: Auto .

':__Formatted: Normal

. Formatted: Norr;al, Tab stops: 3.28", Left

27 of 27

87



1.

10.

12.

14.

[Federal Award No.|

Ajward To|
Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency

2575 N Courtenay Pkwy, Suite 214
Merritt [sland, FL 32953-4126

Unique Entity Id.; JANXMVB9K568
TIN No.:59-6000523|

Period of Performance
Effective Date of Award — 30
months

Type of Agreement
Grant

Procurement Request No.
HSA240378PR

Submit Payment Requests To
See Article 5

(Description of the Project]

11

Effective Date
See No. 16 Below

3. Assistance
Listings No.
20.939

Sponsoring Office

U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Highway Administration
Office of Safety

1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE
HSSA-1, Mail Drop E71-117
Washington, DC 20590

Total Amound

Federal Share: $280,000
Recipient Share: $70,000
Other Federal Funds: $0

Other Funds: $0

Total: $350,000

Authority

Section 24112 of the Infrastructure Investment
and Jobs Act (Pub. L. 117-58, November 15,
2021; also referred to as the “Bipartisan
Infrastructure Law” or “BIL”)

[Federal Funds Obligated|

Base Phase - (Pre-NEPA): $120,000;

13. %Accounting and Appropriations Data[

[insert Data]

This award will be used by the Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency to develop a
comprehensive safety action plan; conduct supplemental planning activities such as a vulnerable
road users study, a lighting study, and an [TS study; and pilot demonstration activities using
quick build strategies to reallocate space for pedestrians and bicyclists, pilot programs related to
rideshare and safety behaviors, and trial changes to test how EMS respond to crashes. This will
be a phased agreement.

1 of 27

88

| commented [NX(71: This would only show the funds being
| obligated at the time of cxecution, which is the basc phase

lc ed [LN8R7]: Undorstood. Thank vou

Commented [jgri10]: Drafting Instruction: To be completed
by the FHWA Officc of Acquisition and Grants M

|
|




RECIPIENT
15. Signature of Person Authorized to Sign|

Signature Date
Name: Larry Lallo, MBA, CEcD
Title: MIRA Executive Director

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
16. Signature of Agreement Officer

Signature Date
Name:
Title: Agreement Officer

2 0f27

89



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

GRANT AGREEMENT UNDER THE
FISCAL YEAR 2023 SAFE STREETS AND ROADS FOR ALL GRANT PROGRAM

This agreement is between the United States Department of Transportation’s (the “USDOT”) Federal Highway
Administration (the “FHWA™) and the Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (the “Recipient™).

This agreement reflects the selection of the Recipient to receive a Safe Streets and Roads for All (“SS4A”) Grant for
the SS4A Merritt Island Action Plan.

The parties therefore agree to the following;:

ARTICLE 1
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.1 General Terms and Conditions.

(a) In this agreement, “General Terms and Conditions” means the content of the document titled “General
Terms and Conditions Under the Fiscal Year 2023 Safe Streets and Roads for All (“SS4A”) Grant Program,”,
which is available at hitps://www transportation gov/grants/ssda/grant-agreements under “Fiscal Year 2023.”
Articles 7-30 are in the General Terms and Conditions. The General Terms and Conditions are part of this
agreement,

(b) The Recipient acknowledges that it has knowledge of the General Terms and Conditions. Recipient also states
that it is required to comply with all applicable Federal laws and regulations, including, but not limited to, the
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR
part 200); National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) (42 U.S.C. § 4321 et seq.); and Build America, Buy
America Act (BIL, div. G §§ 70901-27).

(c) The Recipient acknowledges that the General Terms and Conditions impose obligations on the Recipient and
that the Recipient’s non-compliance with the General Terms and Conditions may result in remedial action,
termination of the SS4A Grant, disallowing costs incurred for the Project, requiring the Recipient to refund to
the FHWA the SS4A Grant, and reporting the non-compliance in the Federal-government-wide integrity and
performance system.

30f27

90



ARTICLE 2
APPLICATION, PROJECT, AND AWARD
2.1  Application,
Application Title: ~ SS4A Merritt Island Action Plan
Application Date: ~ 07/06/2023
22 Award Amount.
SS4A Grant Amount] $280,000
2.3 |Federal Obligation lnformation.|

Federal Obligation Type: Multiple

’ {Obligation Condition Tabld

! Phase the Project ‘ |Allocation of Obligation Condition
| | the SS4A Granf
Base Phase:
. $426.600 48.900
| Pre NEPA
4 0f27

91



[Obligation Condition Tabld

Phase the Project |Allocation of Obligation Condition
the SS4A Grani
Option Phase I: 570-006.71,100 | The Recipient shall not expend any funds (Federal

Design of
Demonstration
Activities (Post-
NEPA)

or non-Federal) for, seek reimbursement of
eligible costs, or otherwise begin any part of the
final design and construction of an
Implementation Project unless and until;

(1) The requirements of the National
Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. § 4321
et seq.) (“NEPA™), Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. § 470f)
(“NHPA”), and any other applicable
environmental laws and regulations have been
met; and

(2) FHWA, or a State with applicable NEPA
Assignment authority, has approved the NEPA
document for the Project and provided the
Recipient with a written notice that the
environmental review process is complete; and

(3) FHWA has obligated additional funds for this
phase and notified the Recipient in writing that
the Recipient may proceed to the next activity
after NEPA approval, and the Recipient has
acknowledged receipt in writing of FHWA’s
notification. Recipient shall not proceed with
any such advance activities until (2) and (3) as
described in this section are met. Costs that are
incurred before (2) and (3) as described in this
section are met are not allowable costs under
this agreement.

Extent of activities that are permissible before
NEPA is complete are those activities constituting
“preliminary design” as specified in FHWA Order
6640.1A.

Commented [NX(21]: Per new HQ guidance. design efforts for
demonstration activitics must be a separate phase. Please rovisit the
allocation of SS4A grant

50f27

92



lObligation Condition Table

Phase the Project |Allocation of Obligation Condition
the SS4A Grant

Option Phase II: $160,000 The Recipient shall not expend any funds (Federal
Construction of or non-Federal) for, seek reimbursement of
Demonstration eligible costs, or otherwise begin any part of the
Activities construction or final design and construction of an

Implementation Project unless and until:

1) The requirements of the National

Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. § 4321 et
[ seq.) (“NEPA™), Section 106 of the National

| Historic Preservation Act (16 U.S.C. § 470f)
(“NHPA™), and any other applicable
environmental laws and regulations have been
met; and

! i (2) FHWA, or a State with applicable NEPA

| | Assignment authority, has approved the NEPA
document for the Project and provided the

| Recipient with a written notice that the

environmental review process is complete; and

(3) FHWA has obligated additional funds for this
phase and notified the Recipient in writing that
the Recipient may proceed to the next activity

| after NEPA approval, and the Recipient has

acknowledged receipt in writing of FHWA’s

‘ notification, Recipient shall not proceed with

any such activities until (2) and (3) as

described in this section are met. Costs that are
incurred before (2) and (3) as described in this
section are met are not allowable costs under
this agreement.

Extent of activities that are permissible before

| NEPA is complete are those activities constituting
“preliminary design” as specified in FHWA Order
6640.1A.

2.4  Budget Period.
Base Phase Budget Period: Effective date of award — 30 months
Option Phase [ Budget Period: [reserved]

Option Phase II Budget Period: [reserved]

2.5  Grant Designation.

Designation: Planning and Demonstration

6 of 27

93




ARTICLE 3
SUMMARY PROJECT INFORMATION

3.1 Summary of Project’s Statement of Work.

The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency will use this award to develop a comprehensive safety action plan;

conduct supplemental planning activities such as a vulnerable road users  study, a lighting study, and an ITS
study; and pilot demonstration activities using quick build strategies to reallocate space for pedestrians and

bicyclists, pilot programs related to rideshare and safety behaviors, and trial changes to test how EMS respond

to crashes
The project will be completed in three phases as follows::
Base Phase: Pre-NEPA

Development of an action plan

A study to identify vulnerable road users within our areas
A lighting study

Safety focused intelligent transportation system

Progress reporting

Completing NEPA for Demonstration activities

Option Phase [: Design of Demonstration Activities (Post-NEPA)

:‘.!l'.::'f. ip | Woneiioos it v HIZe Guis 'l‘--.'l" stratepies |Or re location o

methodeloay thay ¢in be utilized Tor o Pilyl Progem focusing on ndeshare or simiti

Option Phase 11: Construction of Demonstration Activities (Post-NEPA)

etk Hattitas-ake whion
bicyclists

e Pilot program for behavioral and operational activity

o Pilot testing rideshare or other programs

e Trial changes to test how emergency medical services respond to crashes

quick-build strategies to reallocate space for pedestrians and

3.2 Project’s Estimated Schedule.

Action Plan Schedule

Milestone Schedule Date

Planned NEPA Completion Date 03/312025 |
Planned Draft Plan Completion Date ‘ i
Planned Final Plan Completion Date
Planned Final Plan Adoption Date | H302020
Planncd SS4A Final Report Date 1 01/31/2027 -

7 of 27

94

ney Medical Services 151 personnel the ¢ument Wavs they respond o erishes

Commented [NX(28]: New guidance from FHWA HQ requires
separation of design activitics into its own phase. We can discuss
further if nceded

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 075" + Indent
at: 1"

Commented [NX(33]: This may happen sooncr The draft CE
submitted is under review by the Divisions' Eny ironmental
Specialist.

| Commented [NX(34]: Demonstration activitics must inforin the

action plan. The evaluation period end date is currently projected to
be lcted bey ond the pletion of the draft plan. The diaft plan

completion should occur after the evaluation period end datc

Commented [NX(35]: Same u?nlncnt_ns_abu\'c_



Demonstration Activity ﬂchedulqi

"Milestone Schedule Date
Planned NEPA Completion Date 09/30/2025
Planned Construction Start Date 03/31/2026
Planned Evaluation Period End Date 09/30/2026
Planned SS4A Final Report Date 01/31/2027

Supplemental Planning Schedulé

Planned SS4A Final Report Date

33 Project’s Estimated Costs)

(a) Eligible Project Costs

Milestone Schedule Date
Planned NEPA Completion Date 103/31/2025]
| Planned Draft Plan Completion Date 06/30/2027 2026 -]
Planned Final Plan Completion Date 10/31/2026
Planned Final Plan Adoption Date 11/30/2026
01/31/2027

Eligible Project Costs

SS4A Grant Amount: $280,000
[Other Federal Funds; $0
State Funds: $0
Local Funds: $70,000
In-Kind Match: $0
Other Funds: $0
Total Eligible Project Cost: $350,000

(b) Cost Classification Table — Planning and Demonstration Grants with demonstration activities and

{mplementation Grants Only

Non-SS4A
Total Previously
ICost Classification ) Costs | Incurred Costs |  Eligible Costs
Administrative and legal expense $25,000 $0 $25,000
Architectural and engineering fees $150,000 $0 $150,000
Other architectural and engineering fees $130,000 $0 $130,000
Marketing. outreachadvertisingand $25,000 %0 $25,000
piblic-engagement-meetings Construction
Contingency $20,000 $0 $20,000
Project Total $350,000 $0 $350,000

8 of 27

95

l

Commented [NX(42]: Samc comment as above for NEPA
completion date

1

Commented [NX(49]: Tablc was updated based on revised
information provided with the most recent draft grant agrecment
shared by Meritt [sland. However. the total costs must be revisited
to equal lhe same amount as the total project cost ($330,000) and the
next two columns should be revisited as necessary. IF there are no
costs associated with the second column then $0 should be noted

Commented [TH50R49]: Table has been revised accordingly

J

) [ Commented [NX(51R49]: Plcase provide clarification on the

cost classification that applics to the demonstration activates. Also,
please provide information on the &y pe of activitics that would fall
under miscellancous

{

Commented [NX(52R49]: Plcase provide clarification on the
cost classification that applics to the demonstration activates




(c) Indirect Costs

Indirect costs are allowable under this Agreement in accordance with 2 CFR part 200 and the Recipient’s
approved Budget Application. In the event the Recipient’s indirect cost rate changes, the Recipient will notify
FHWA of the planned adjustment and provide supporting documentation for such adjustment. This Indirect
Cost provision does not operate to waive the limitations on Federal funding provided in this document. The
Recipient’s indirect costs are allowable only insofar as they do not cause the Recipient to exceed the total
obligated funding.

ARTICLE 4

RECIPIENT INFORMATION

4.1  Recipient Contact(s).

Larry Lallo, Executive Director
Merritt [sland Redevelopment Agency
2575 N Courtenay Pkwy, Suite 214
Merritt Island, FL. 32953-4126

(321) 454-6610

Larry Lallo@brevardfl.gov

Lisa Nicholas, Community Redevelopment Manager
Merritt [sland Redevelopment Agency

2575 N Courtenay Pkwy, Suite 214

Merritt Island, FL. 32953-4126

(321) 454-6610

lisa.nicholas@brevardfl.gov

4.2 Recipient Key Personnel.

Name Title or Position
Larry Lallo Executive Director
Lisa Nicholas Community Redevelopment Manager

43  USDOT Project Contact(s).

Safe Streets and Roads for All Program Manager
Federal Highway Administration

Office of Safety

HSSA-1, Mail Stop: E71-117

1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E.

Washington, DC 20590

202-366-2822

SS4A.FHWA@dot.gov

and

90f27

96



Agreement Officer (AQ)

Federal Highway Administration

Office of Acquisition and Grants Management
HCFA-33, Mail Stop E62-310

1200 New Jersey Avenue, S.E.

Washington, DC 20590

202-493-2402

HCFASS4A@dot.gov

and

Division Administrator — Florida
Agreement Officer’s Representative (AOR)
Tallahassee, FL 32312
850-553-2229

florida. fhwa@dot.gov

e i - T R

Kevin Burgess

Florida Division Office Lead Point of Contact
Safety Engineer

3500 Financial Plaza, Suite 400

Tallahassee, FL 32312

850-553-2229

Kevin.Burgess@dot.gov

ARTICLE 5
USDOT ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

5.1 Office for Subaward and Contract Authorization.

USDOT Office for Subaward and Contract Authorization: FHWA Office of Acquisition and Grants
Management

SUBAWARDS AND CONTRACTS APPROVAL

Note: See 2 CFR § 200.331, Subrecipient and contractor determinations, for definitions of subrecipient (who is
awarded a subaward) versus contractor (who is awarded a contract).

Note: Recipients with a procurement system deemed approved and accepted by the Government or by the
Agreement Officer (the “AO”) are exempt from the requirements of this clause. See 2 CFR 200.317 through
200.327. Note: This clause is only applicable to grants that do not include construction.

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.308(c)(6), unless described in the application and funded in the approved award,
the Recipient must obtain prior written approval from the AO for the subaward, transfer, or contracting out of
any work under this award above the Simplified Acquisition Threshold. This provision does not apply to the
acquisition of supplies, material, equipment, or general support services. Approval will be issued through
written notification from the AO or a formal amendment to the Agreement,

10 of 27

97

;'- Formatted: Font: Not Italic, Font color: Text 1

[ Fo

L

rmatted: Font color: Text 1,_Eng|ish {United States)

)



The following subawards and contracts are currently approved under the Agreement by the AO. This list does
not include supplies, material, equipment, or general support services which are exempt from the pre-approval
requirements of this clause.

5.2 Reimbursement Requests

(a) The Recipient may request reimbursement of costs incurred within the budget period of this agreement if
those costs do not exceed the amount of funds obligated and are allowable under the applicable cost
provisions of 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart E. The Recipient shall not request reimbursement more frequently
than monthly

(b) The Recipient shall use the DELPHI iSupplier System to submit requests for reimbursement to the payment
office. When requesting reimbursement of costs incurred or credit for cost share incurred, the Recipient
shall electronically submit supporting cost detail with the SF-270 (Request for Advance or Reimbursement)
or SF-271 (Outlay Report and Request for Reimbursement for Construction Programs) to clearly document
all costs incurred.

(c) The Recipient’s supporting cost detail shall include a detaited breakout of all costs incurred, including direct
labor, indirect costs, other direct costs, travel, etc., and the Recipient shall identify the Federal share and the
Recipient’s share of costs. If the Recipient does not provide sufficient detail in a request for reimbursement,
the Agreement Officer’s Representative (the “AOR”) may withhold processing that request until the
Recipient provides sufficient detail

(d) The USDOT shall not reimburse costs unless the AOR reviews and approves the costs to ensure that progress
on this agreement is sufficient to substantiate payment

(e) In the rare instance the Recipient is unable to receive electronic funds transfers (EFT), payment by EFT
would impose a hardship on the Recipient because of their inability to manage an account at a financial
institution, and/or the Recipient is unable to use the DELPHI iSupplier System to submit their requests for
disbursement, the FHWA may waive the requirement that the Recipient use the DELPHI iSupplier System
The Recipient shall contact the Division Office Lead Point of Contact for instructions on and requirements
related to pursuing a waiver.

(f) The requirements set forth in these terms and conditions supersede previous financial invoicing
requirements for Recipients.

ARTICLE 6
SPECIAL GRANT TERMS|

6.1 SS4A funds must be expended within five years after the grant agreement is executed and DOT
obligates the funds, which is the budget period end date in section 10.3 of the Terms and Conditions
and section 2.4 in this agreement.

6.2. The Recipient demonstrates compliance with civil rights obligations and nondiscrimination laws,
including Titles VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and Section
504 of the Rehabilitation Act, and accompanying regulations. Recipients of Federal transportation funding
will also be required to comply fully with regulations and guidance for the ADA, Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and all other civil rights requirements

6.3  SS4A Funds will be allocated to the Recipient and made available to the Recipient in accordance with
FHWA procedures.

11 0f27

98



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

{The Recipient of a Planning and Demonstration Grant acknowledges that the Action Plan and
Supplemental Planning Deliverable(s) will be made publicly available and agrees that it will publish the
final Action Plan and Supplemental Planning Deliverable(s) on a publicly available websilcf

Irl"he Recipient of a Planning and Demonstration Grant that involves a demonstration activity agrees to
provide an assessment of each demonstration activity and update the existing Action Plan, which will
incorporate the information gathered in the Action Plan’s list of projects or strategies and/or inform
another part of the existing Action Plan. The Recipient also agrees that demonstration activities are
temporary in nature and must be removed and/or ended following the conclusion of the project if the
assessment of the demonstration activities does not affirm that the activities provide safety benefits)|

{The Recipient acknowledges that it is required to conduct certain environmental analyses and to prepare
and submit to FHWA, or State with applicable NEPA Assignment authority, documents required under
NEPA, and other applicable environmental statutes and regulations before the Government will obligate
funds for Option Phase | under this agreement and provide the Recipient with a written notice to proceed
with Option Phase 1.

The Government’s execution of this agreement does not in any way constitute pre-approval or waiver
of any of the regulations imposed upon Recipient under the applicable Federal rules, regulations and
laws regarding SS4A projects undertaken in accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement
The Recipient shall coraply with all applicable Federal requirements before incurring any costs under
this agreement. |

{There are no other special grant requirements|

12 of 27

99

'.Forn;aFe-d: Left, Indent: Left: 0", First tine: 0", Space After: -

L apt



13 0f 27

100



ATTACHMENT A
[PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT INFORMATION|

Study Area: Merritt Island Redevelopment Area

[Baseline Report Date: 02/29/2026

Table 1: Performance Measure iTablq‘

Measure

Category and Description

Measurement
Frequency and
Reporting
Deadline

Safety Performance

Fatalities: Total annual fatalities in the
project location(s)

Annually and
within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Safety Performance

Serious Injuries; Total annual serious
injuries in the project location(s) [if
available}

Annually and
within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Safety Performance

Crashes by Road User Category: Total
annual crashes in the project location(s)
broken out by types of roadway users
involved (e.g., pedestrians, bicyclists,
motorcyclist, passenger vehicle occupant,
commercial vehicle occupant)

Percent of Funds to Underserved

Annually and
within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Within 120 days

Equity Communities: Funding amount (of total | after the end of the
project amount) benefitting underserved period of
communities, as defined by USDOT performance
|
o |
. . . Within 120 d
Costs Project C(?stls: Quat.ltlﬁcatlc?n of the c‘ost : ﬁelr ﬂllr; end o?‘)t,lsle
of each eligible project carried out using .
period of
the grant
performance
i
14 of 27

101

Commented [NX(66]: Entcr a date instcad of using tle months
format

| Commented [TH67R661: Spccific date cntered

[Commented [NX(68RE6]: includc a day in this section

f Formatted: Left

)
)



Measure

Category and Description

Measurement
Frequency and
Reporting
Deadline

Outcomes and Benefits

Outcomes and Benefits

Quantitative Project Benefits:
Quantification of evidence-based projects
or strategies implemented (e.g., miles of
sidewalks installed, number of pedestrian
crossings upgraded, etc.)

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Qualitative Project Benefits: Qualitative
description of evidence-based projects or
strategies implemented (e.g., narrative
descriptions, testimonials, high-quality
before and after photos, etc.)

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Outcomes and Benefits

Project Location(s): GIS/geo coordinate
information identifying specific project
location(s)

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

Lessons Learned and
Recommendations

Lessons Leamned and Recommendations:
Description of lessons leared and any
recommendations relating to future
projects or strategies to prevent death and
serious injury on roads and streets.

Within 120 days
after the end of the
period of
performance

15 of 27

102




Describe all material differences between the scope, schedule, and budget described in the application and the scope

ATTACHMENT B

CHANGES FROM APPLICATION

]

schedule, and budget described in Article 3. The purpose of Attachment B is to clearly and accurately document any
differences in scope, schedule, and budget to establish the parties” knowledge and acceptance of those differences.
See Article 11 for the Statement of Work, Schedule, and Budget Changes. [fthere are no changes, please insert

“N/A” in Section 3.3 of the table.

Scope: N/A

Schedule: N/A

Budget: Redistribution of funds within the activities awarded (Action Plan, Supplemental Planning, and

Demonstration Activities) as follows:

Activities i Original Federal Revised Federal Original Match | Revised Match
Funds Funds
Action Plan $168,000 $48,900 $42,000 $12,300
Supplemental Planning $52,800 $71,100 $13,200 $17,700
Demonstration Activities | $59,200 $160,000 $14,800 $40,000
Total | $280,000 $280,000 $70,000 | $70,000
The table below provides a summary comparison of the project budget.
Application Section 3.3
Fund Source $ % $ %

Federal Funds

Previously Incurred Costs
(Non-Eligible Project Costs)

Future Eligible Project Costs

N/A N/A
Non-Federal Funds N/A N/A
| Total Previously Incurred Costs | [ . N/A N/A

SS4AFunds N/A N/A
Other Federal Funds N/A N/A
Non-Federal Funds N/A N/A
Total Future Eligible Project
Costs N/A N/A
Total Project Costs N/A N/A

16 of27

103




ATTACHMENT C

IRAICIAL EQUITY AND BARRIERS TO/OPPORTUNITY! Commented [NX(74]: Text for Atachment C, D, and E wore
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 brought over from draft shared by Morritt Island

Efforts to Improve Racial Equity and Reduce Barriers to Opportunity.

The Recipient states that rows marked with “X” in the following table align with the application

A racial equity impact analysis has been completed for the Project. (Identify a
report on that analysis or, if no report was produced, describe the analysis and
its results in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner has adopted an equity and inclusion
program/plan or has otherwise instituted equity-focused policies related to
X | project procurement, material sourcing, construction, inspection, hiring, or
other activities designed to ensure racial equity in the overall delivery and
implementation of the Project. (Identify the relevant programs, plans, or
policies in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes physical-barrier-mitigating land bridges, caps, lids, linear
parks, and rultimodal mobility investments that either redress past barriers to
opportunity or that proactively create new connections and opportunities for
underserved communities that are underserved by transportation. (Identify the
relevant investments in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes new or improved walking, biking, and rolling access for

individuals with disabilities, especially access that reverses the disproportional
impacts of crashes on people of color and mitigates neighborhood bifurcation.
(Identify the new or improved access in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes new or improved freight access to underserved
communities to increase access to goods and job opportunities for those
underserved communities. (Identify the new or improved access in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient has taken other actions related to the Project to improve racial
X equity and reduce barriers to opportunity, as described in the supporting
narrative below.

The Recipient has not yet taken actions related to the_Project to improve racial
equity and reduce barriers to opportunity but intends to take relevant actions
described in the supporting narrative below|

The Recipient has not taken actions related to the Project to improve racial
equity and reduce barriers to opportunity and will not take those actions under
this award.

Supporting Narrative.

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER HAS ADOPTED AN EQUITY AND INCLUSION PROGRAM/PLAN OR HAS
OTHERWISE INSTITUTED EQUITY-FOCUSED POLICIES RELATED TO PROJECT PROCUREMENT, MATERIAL
SOURCING, ETC., DESIGNED TO ENSURE RACIAL EQUITY

a. Brevard County Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy & Plan

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 prohibits discrimination based on race, color, or national origin in
programs and activities receiving Federal financial assistance. Specifically, Title VI provides that "no person
in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from

17 of 27

104



participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance” (42 U.S.C. § 2000d).

to comply with all County directives, one of which is the Brevard County Board of County Commissioners
(BOCC) Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy and Plan. The overarching goal of this policy is to value diversity
and welcome input from all interested parties, regardless of cultural identity, race, background, or income
level. Moreover, the County believes that the greatest public policy and most effective governmental services
result from careful consideration of the needs of all of its communities, and the County employs its best
efforts to include and involve those communities in the public policy and governmental services decision-
making process. Furthermore, Brevard County does not tolerate discrimination in any of its programs,
services, or activities,

BOCC’s Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy and Plan set forth a variety of actions to ensure that diversity and
inclusion initiatives are implemented to their fullest extent. Certain examples include:

o Complaint Procedures
The County has established a discrimination complaint procedure and will take prompt and reasonable
action to investigate and eliminate discrimination when discovered. Any person who believes that he or
she has been subjected to discrimination based upon race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability,
religion, income, or family status in any of the County's programs, services or activities is urged to file a
complaint with the County’s Title VI/Nondiscrimination Coordinator

o Americans with Disabilities Act/504 Statement
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,
and associated federal and state laws and regulations forbid discrimination against those who have
disabilities. Government entities receiving federal funds are required to take affirmative steps to
reasonably accommodate the disabled and ensure that their needs are equitably represented in County
programs, service, and activities. This responsibility is taken very seriously, and the County makes every

effort to ensure that its facilities, programs, services, and activities are accessible to those with disabilities.

The County urges the public to report any facility, program, service, or activity that appears inaccessible
to the disabled, and the County will provide reasonable accommeodation to disabled individuals who wish
to participate in public events, meetings, hearings, or activities

18 of 27

105

|

C d [SC(79]: [s 'dcpendent special' a term of art? Or 1

docs this mean an arm. unit. or office of Brevard County?

Commented [LNBOR79]: It is an arm of Brovard Counts
(dependent = the agency could not function without the County), the
creation of which is provided for in Florida Statute

|



b

o

o Limited English Proficiency Guidance
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and other directives from federal agencies require federal aid
recipients to take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to programs, services, and activities by
those who do not speak English proficiently. Because the County believes that the services that it provides
are of critical importance to all citizens of Brevard County, the Counly has a variety of documents for
each department translated into Spanish, and its policies regarding this matter are posted in Spanish and
English on its website so that every member of the public is aware of its nondiscrimination and public
involvement polices

o Data Collection for Transportation Programs
The Federal Highway Administration (FHIWA) requires federal aid recipients to collect racial, ethnic, and
other similar demographic data on individuals affected by transportation programs, services, and activities.
The County accomplishes this by using census data, American Community Survey (ACS) reports, and
other methods. Information gathered assists the County with improving outreach and measures
effectiveness of regional transportation programs and their impact on disadvantaged individuals. Self-
identification of personal data is always voluntary and remains anonymous

Inclusionary Housing — Article XVI1. Brevard County Land Development Regulations

Article XVI1 (Affordable and Workforce Housing Incentives) of the Brevard County Land Development
Regulations (Sec. 62-6300, et seq.) provides for incentives for the voluntary provision of affordable and
workforce housing. At least 30 percent of units are sct aside for households at or below 120 percent of area
median income (AMTI), with minimum required percentages for very low-, low-, and moderate-income
households; it defines workforce housing developments (WHDs) as those in which at least |5 percent of unils
are available to households at or below 140 percent of AMI. Incentives include technical assistance with
permitting, fee rebates, housing trust fund grants, and density bonuses. The language also provides for (ransfer
of development rights (TDRs) to affordable developments, with some units being eligible for additional
alternative and flexible design requirements and criterta.

Brevard County Policy and Administrative Orders Concerning Nondiscrimination

The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (MIRA) is a component unit of Brevard County, Florida, and is
required to adhere to all Florida Statutes and Brevard County ordinances. In Brevard County, discriminatory
harassment based on disability, impairment, or any other characteristic set forth in the Americans with
Disabilities Act, including race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, and national origin is
prohibited and will not be tolerated. [f an accommodation for a physical or emotional condition is requested
by an employee, the request is evaluated, and the accommodation is granted when deemed necessary.
Moreover, Brevard Counly mandates training on this topic, as well as training for recognizing sexual
harassment and anger management in the workplace for new employees and has adopted four Administrative
Orders (AO-02, AO-11, AO-15, and AO-50) to ensure compliance with the policy

Elorida-Statstes Addressing Nondiserimination -t Proeurement ind-urehasmg

hr Hovida—aswelhas-in-Brevard County-—the practice-of non-discrimination extendswelb-bevond-the
emplovees-and-potentiabnew-hires-for Brevard-County—Title N1 \’é&P&bHeBH%iHM ). Chapter 287
tProcurement-o FPersonal-Property-and Services)—Horida Statutes—is-the-pertion-of Florida-law-that-pertains-to
procurement-and-purchasing—Hhestatute-is-exphicitwith-regard-to-mandating the hiring-ofprirerib—vomen-
ovwned-and-disadvantuged-businesses-whenever pessible-and-sueh-references-aremfused-hronphou-the T

Hmhemwh—mda—ﬂk—pmvf&mﬂ%\mm» 257 nxLqu L-crtsttH it 4 LHH?‘;{—H—}—\—&N%G-Q—H—&H(—)H—A&[—@{

CEMAHus-provistonestends-to-contraeel

19 0f27

106

Commented [SC(81]: Recommend removing this section It's
coyered n 1llachmuﬂ E \»rb'mn\

Commented [LN82R81]: | felt Ih'\t itwas n,h,\ ant in both
places and fortified the State’s commitment 1o its procurcment
pohows and procedures. T will remove ifdesired




Sugtion 2800 of the - Ackestablishod-the |

deye BP neht '1 aie ‘*\BF{ -

e—ResﬁfelFam%aHhvmlveﬁsmﬂH—&&émﬂw%bﬂemﬁqe% - thvtﬁdt&rte@ﬂemfr

s—Smeh—H}eammﬁ—eﬁhﬁdﬂeral—mdﬂwwﬂd—m«P
W%%W%mmemﬁﬁmﬂ—m
Assess-the-ongomg-mplomentatvio S echion 8720 H2 - whichequires-ustite-econenne
development-comprehenstve plan-relative to-smalland-minorit-businesses:

o—Evahiate the-eflectiveness-ofactivities-bystate-agencies-to-assistminorin- businessenterprises

o—Advise the-Governor-and-the Legishiture-on-matters-relating-to smath-and-minorit-business-development
which-are-oFmportance-to-strategic-plannirgactivities:

On-orbetoretanuan—-otfeach-vear-the-couneiHsrequired-to-presentan-annualrepertto-the-Seeretar—of
%#&Hﬂaemem—%wrtwﬂhﬂ—pmwde» --detnkthe-busmesstransucted-by-the Council-during the vear—as-well-as
ap—recontnendations o the-see vspeetieaththosethatsecltotmproy o husiness-oppormrtes-tor-smatl
ard-rHROFH-BUSHHesS-eRterprises:

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER HAS TAKEN OTHER ACTIONS RELATED TO THE PROJECT TO IMPROVE
RACIAL EQUITY AND REDUCE BARRIERS TO OPPORTUNITY

Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board (1DLCB)

Spearheaded by the local mass-transit authority, Space Coast Area Transit (SCAT), and authorized by Florida
Statutes Chapter 427 (Special Transportation and Communications Services), the Space Coast Transportation
Planning Organization (SCTPO) participates in the Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board
(TDLCB). The primary function of the TDLCB is to ensure that transportation opportunities are available for
all residents, regardless of age, race, ability, or economic status. The Board also provides direction and advice
to SCAT concemning the provision of transportation services.

The TDLCB conducts periodic meetings and is responsible for documenting a Transportation Disadvantaged
Service Plan. The Local Coordinating Board (LCB) for Transportation Disadvantaged Services meets
quarterly to oversee the Transportation Disadvantaged (D) program at a local level, by providing input on
various issues, plans, and programs. The essential focus is directed to the needs of the transportation
disadvantaged population, specifically older adults, persons with disabilities, persons of low income, children
at risk, and those without convenient access to mass transit services, The TDLCB reviews price and service
levels, safety concerns, eligibility, and other pertinent issues,

Furthermore, within Chapter 427, Florida Statutes, Section 427.012 established the Commission for the
Transportation Disadvantaged, a seven-member Board appointed by the Governor to review and offer
recommendations on numerous functions associated with the transportation disadvantaged, including but not
limited to:

o Establishing statewide objectives for providing transportation services for the transportation
disadvantaged

o Developing policies and procedures for the coordination of local government, federal, and state funding
for the transportation disadvantaged.

o ldentifying barriers prohibiting the coordination and accessibility of transportation services to the
transportation disadvantaged and aggressively pursuing the elimination of these barriers.

o Serving as a clearinghouse for information about transportation disadvantaged services, training,
funding sources, innovations, and coordination efforts.

20 of 27

107



o Assisting communities in developing transportation systems designed to serve the transportation
disadvantaged.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

“Equity — According to the USDOT Equitable Transportation Community (ETC) Explorer tool, 25% of the
24,600 residents within the MIRA jurisdiction are disadvantaged. Annualized Disaster Losses are 83%
compared to 74% for Florida, High Volume Road Proximity is 70% compared to 52% for Florida, Uninsured
is 74% compared to 66% for Florida, 65 and older is 73% compared to 60% for Florida and those with a
disability is 67% compared to 54% for Florida. Transportation Safety is 66% compared to 56% for Florida.”
(Grant Narrative)

“The supplemental activities selected will be used to inform and enhance the Action Plan. The demonstration
activities will be used to inform future permanent development projects. The scope of work will include an
investigation into which road users are the most vulnerable, Merriit Island has a significant elderly population,
but daily drivers include those travelling to work at the Kennedy Space Center, tourists bound for the KSC
Visitors Complex space museum, the largest cruise port in the world at Cape Canaveral, and Cocoa Beach, as
well as students and parents traveling to schools. Understanding exactly who is the most vulnerable will help
us guide our efforts towards projects that maximize opportunities for safety improvements.” (Budget
Narrative)

The Supplemental Planning and Demonstration Activities will include an equity screening/analysis and
provide safety countermeasures/sotutions to reduce barriers and provide safer facilities for vulnerable
populations.

21 0f 27

108



IATTACHMENT D
ICLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE IMPACTS)

Consideration of Climate Change and Environmental Justice Impacts.

The Recipient states that rows marked with “X” in the following table align with the application|

The Project directly supports a Local/Regional/State Climate Action Plan that
results in lower greenhouse gas emissions. (Identify the plan in the supporting
narrative below.)

The Project directly supports a Local/Regional/State Equitable Development
Plan that results in lower greenhouse gas emissions. (Identify the plan in the
supporting narrative below.)

‘The Project directly supports a Local/Regional/State Ene_rg_y EaseTine_Study
that results in lower greenhouse gas emissions. (Identify the plan in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Recip_ient ora p.roject ;;artne_r used environmental justice tools, such as the
X EJScreen, to minimize adverse impacts of the Project on environmental justice
communities. (Identify the tool(s) in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project supports a modal shift in freight or passenger movement to reduce
emissions or reduce induced travel demand. (Describe that shifl in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Project utilizes demand management strategies to reduce congestion,
induced travel demand, and greenhouse gas emissions. (Describe those
strategies in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project incorporates electrification infrastructure, zero-emission vehicle
infrastructure, or both. (Describe the incorporated infrastructure in the
supporting narrative below.)

X | The Project supports the installation of electric vehicle charging stations.
(Describe that support in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project promotes energy efficiency. (Describe how in the supporting
narrative below.)

The Project serves the renewable energy supply chain. (Describe how in the
supporting narrative below.)

X _Thﬁroject improves disaster preparedness and resiliency (Describe how in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Project avoids adverse environmental impacts to air or water quality,
wetlands, and endangered species, such as through reduction in Clean Air Act
criteria pollutants and greenhouse gases, improved stormwater management, or
improved habitat connectivity. (Describe how in the supporting narrative
below.)

The Project repairs existing dilapidated or idle infrastructure that is currently
causing environmental harm. (Describe that infrastructure in the supporting
narrative below.)

The Project supports or incorporates the construction of energy- and location-
efficient buildings. (Describe how in the supporting narrative below.)

The Project includes recycling of materials, use of materials known to reduce
or reverse carbon emissions, or both. (Describe the materials in the supporting
narrative below.)

22 0f27

109



2.

The Recipient has taken other actions to consider climate change and
environmental justice impacts of the Project, as described in the supporting
narrative below.

The Recipient has not yet taken actions to consider climate change and
environmental justice impacts of the Project but will take relevant actions
described in the supporting narrative below,|

"The Eecipi_ent has not taken actions to consider cliﬁlégcﬁmge and
environmental justice impacts of the Project and will not take those actions
under this award.

Supporting Narrative.

The USDOT Equitable Transportation Community Explorer and the Climate and Economic Justice Screening
Tool were used for application data and will be used for program analysis.

THE PROJECT IMPROVES DISASTER PREPAREDNESS AND RESILIENCY

In collaboration with the Space Coast Transportation Planning Organization (SCTPQO), the Merritt Istand
Redevelopment Agency (MIRA) is participating in activities to enhance preparedness for disasters, as well as
resiliency efforts throughout MIRA’s service area, As set forth in the SCTPO’s Advance 2050: Public
Engagement Plan, interaction with the public regarding preparation for disasters is critical; and, in an effort to
bolster heightened engagement, the SCTPO and MIRA will focus on outreach to underserved communities, the
utilization of technology and innovation whenever possible, and a convenient and accessible schedule for
meetings and other activities.

MIRA has ensured its inclusion and representation in the wide-ranging database of SCTPO stakeholders, which
includes, but is not limited to, Brevard County and its municipalities, Brevard Public Schools and area institutions
of higher learning, human-services organizations and coalitions, businesses and regional chambers of commerce,
and environmental agencies.

Realizing the importance of equitable communication, MIRA will assist the SCTPO with its outreach efforts on
disaster preparedness education by focusing on available demographic and socioeconomic data. This approach
will assist in reaching residents throughout Merritt Island, including those in underserved portions of the service
area.

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER USED ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE TOOLS, SUCH AS THE EJSCREEN

In various areas of Brevard County that include Titusville, Cocoa, Metritt [sland, Melbourne, and Palm Bay, there
are 30 census tracts that are identified as being disadvantaged. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s
(EPA) Environmental Justice Screen (EJScreen) Environmental Justice and Mapping Tool is consistent with the
Biden Administration’s Justice40 Executive Order. For MIRA, the EJScreen has already proven to be a valuable
screening tool for identifying opportunities for equitable and impartial engagement throughout the public
participation process. In addition, the EJScreen has also been beneficial in identifying properties within MIRA’s
service area that may contain contaminates, which could lead to their remediation using other grant opportunities,

THE PROJECT SUPPORTS THE INSTALLATION OF ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS

In accordance with the National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure (NEVI) program, which is a component of the
[nfrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (ILJA), the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) established the
FDOT Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Program. As part of this effort, two funding sources were created
—a formula program with $5 billion, along with a discretionary program containing $2.5 billion. FDOT’s EV
Charging I[nfrastructure Program contains key principles that align with the NEVI Program and set forth the
following criteria regarding electric vehicle charging stations and infrastructure:

23 of 27

110



Must be public or authorized for commercial motor vehicle operators from more than one company.
Must be located along a designated altemative fuel corridor (AFC).

Must prioritize placement along the Interstate Highway System.

Should be spaced at a maximum of 50 miles apart.

Must meet certain power capabilities.

Should give preference to rural, underserved, and disadvantaged communities.

Should consider locations with publicly available restrooms, appropriate lighting, and sheltered seating
areas.

OO0 0 00 O0O0

The FDOT program will be implemented in phases, with the first phase emphasizing interstates in alignment with
the national NEVTI program priorities.

24 of 27

111



ATTACHMENTE |
LABOR AND WORK|FORCE

1. Efforts to Support Good-Paying Jobs and Strong Labor Standards

The Recipient states that rows marked with “X” in the following table align with the application]

The Recipient demonstrate, to the full extent possible consistent with the law, an
effort to create good-paying jobs with the free and fair choice to join a union and
incorporation of high labor standards. (/dentify the relevant agreements and

describe the scope of activities they cover in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner has adopted the usc of local and cconomic
X hiring preferences in the overall delivery and implementation of the Project.
(Describe the relevant provisions in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner has adopted the use of registered
apprenticeships in the overall delivery and implementation of the Project.
(Describe the use of registered apprenticeship in the supporting narrative
below.)

The Recipient or a project partner will provide training and placement
programs for underrepresented workers in the overall delivery and
implementation of the Project. (Describe the training programs in the
supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner will support free and fair choice to join a
union in the overall delivery and implementation of the Project by investing in
workforce development services offered by labor-management training
partnerships or setting expectations for contractors to develop labor-management
training programs. (Describe the workforce development services offered by
labor-management training partnerships in the supporting narrative below.)
The Recipient or a project partner will provide supportive services and cash
assistance to address systemic barriers to employment to be able to participate
and thrive in training and employment, including childcare, emergency cash
assistance for items such as tools, work clothing, application fees and other
costs of apprenticeship or required pre-employment training, transportation and
travel to training and work sites, and services aimed at helping to retain
underrepresented groups like mentoring, support groups, and peer networking,
(Describe the supportive services and/or cash assistance provided to trainees
and employees in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient or a project partner has documented agreements or ordinances in
place to hire from certain workforce programs that serve underrepresented
groups. (Identify the relevant agreements and describe the scope of activities
they cover in the supporting narrative below.)

25 of 27

112



The Recipient or a project partner participates in a State/Regional/Local
comprehensive plan to promote equal opportunity, including removing barriers
to hire and preventing harassment on work sites, and that plan demonstrates
action to create an inclusive environment with a commitment to equal
opportunity, including:

a. affirmative efforts to remove barriers to equal employment
opportunity above and beyond complying with Federal law;

b. proactive partnerships with the U.S. Department of Labor’s Office
of Federal Contract Compliance Programs to promote compliance
with EO 11246 Equal Employment Opportunity requirements and
meet the requirements as outlined in the Notice of Funding
Opportunity to make good faith efforts to meet the goals of 6.9

X percent of construction project hours being performed by women
and for work being performed by people of color;

c¢. no discriminatory use of criminal background screens and
affirmative steps to recruit and include those with former justice
involvement, {n accordance with the Fair Chance Act and equal
opportunity requirements;

d. efforts to prevent harassment based on race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, and national origin,;

e. training on anti-harassment and third-party reporting procedures
covering employees and contractors; and

f. maintaining robust anti-retaliation measures covering employees
and contractors,

(Describe the equal opportunity plan in the supporting narrative below.)

The Recipient has taken other actions related to the Project to create good-
paying jobs with the free and fair choice to join a union and incorporate strong
labor standards. (Describe those actions in the supporting narrative below.)

paying jobs with the free and fair choice to join a union and incorporate strong
labor standards but, before beginning construction of the project, will take
relevant actions described in the supporting narrative below |

The Recipient has not taken actions related to the Project to improving good-
paying jobs and strong labor standards and will not take those actions under
this award.

Supporting Narrative.

THE RECIPIENT OR PROJECT PARTNER PARTICIPATES IN A STATE/REGIONAL/LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
70 PROMOTE EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

The Merritt Island Redevelopment Agency (MIRA) is a component unit of Brevard County, Florida, and is
required to adhere to all Florida Statutes and Brevard County ordinances. In Brevard County, discriminatory
harassment based on disability, impairment, or any other characteristic set forth in the Americans with
Disabilities Act, including race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, and national origin is
prohibited and will not be tolerated. If an accommodation for a physical or emotional condition is requested
by an employee, the request is evaluated, and the accommodation is granted when deemed necessary
Moreover, Brevard County mandates training on this topic, as well as training for recognizing sexual
harassment and anger management in the workplace, for new employees and has adopted four Administrative
Orders (AO-02, AO-11, AO-15, and AO-50) to ensure compliance with the policy.

26 of 27

113

[Commented [NX(94]: Should this sclection bc removed*? ]

Commented [SC(95RI4]: No strong feclings cither way. It
doesn't add much value. given that most of these builets are

qui of federal i But it docs serve as a
restatement of commitment to EEQ

Commented [TH98]: Lamy to help write supporting narrative
based on sclection in table above |



Still, the practice of non-discrimination extends well beyond the employees and potential hires for Brevard
County. Title XIX (Public Business), Chapter 287 (Procurement of Personal Property and Services), Florida
Statutes, is the portion of Florida law that pertains to procurement and purchasing. The statute is explicit with
regard to mandating the hiring of minority, women-owned, and disadvantaged businesses whenever possible,
and such references are infused throughout the law. Furthermore, under the provisions of Section 287.055, the
Consultants” Competitive Negotiation Act, or CCNA, this provision extends to contractors that are hiring
subcontractors to assist on a particular project.

Section 287.0947 of the Act established the Florida Advisory Council on Small and Minority Business
Development in an effort to:

o Research and review the role of small and minority businesses in the state’s economy.

Analyze emerging topics related to small and minority business economic development.

o Study the ability of financial markets and institutions to meet small business credit needs and determine
the impact of government demands on credit for small businesses.

o Assess the ongoing implementation of Section 187.201(21), which requires a state economic
development comprehensive plan relative to small and minority businesses.

o Evaluate the effectiveness of activities by state agencies to assist minority business enterprises

o Advise the Governor and the Legislature on maiters relating to small and minority business
development which are of importance to strategic planning activities.

[e]

On or before January 1 of each year, the council is required to present an annual report to the Secretary of
Management Services that provides in detail the business transacted by the Council during the year, as well as
any recommendations to the secretary, specifically those that seek to improve business opportunities for small
and minority business enterprises.

In addition, MIRA will adhere to the requirements of 2 CFR 200.321when contracting with small businesses,
minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, veteran-owned businesses, and labor surplus area firms, if
applicable. While federal law prohibits establishing goals or contracting preferences, MIRA will:

o Include these businesses on solicitation lists;
e Ensure these businesses are solicited whenever they are deemed eligible as potential sources;

e Divide procurement transactions into separate procurements to permit maximum participation by these
business types;

e Establish performance schedules that encourage participation by these business types;

e Engage small and minority business development agencies to assist with locating and soliciting
participation by these business types;

e Require its consultants to apply these requirements to all subcontracts, if any.

27 of 27

114

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, Font_color: Auto

Formatted: Normal

| Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: 3.28", Left



MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Board of Directors Meeting

October 31, 2024

ITEM V.C.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Ongoing/ Old Business

PROJECT: 258 N. Grove Street Commercial Fagade Improvements

Requested Action: Progress Presentation & Payment Approval

Summary Explanation & Background:

Location: 258 N. Grove

Application Date: July 29, 2021

Applicant: John and Joan Sinatra

Site End Use: Offices for Tradewind Builders
Original Estimated Project Cost: $142,000

Project Description:

Construct a new Front Entry with Hardie board siding, paint, and trim out, adding cedar gables and
a new roof. Redesign parking area to comply with Brevard County Code utilizing pavers, concrete,
required landscaping, French drainage, and eight new parking spaces.

Tradewind Builders is now in its 27th year of operations, designing and building custom, unique
homes and renovation projects. A tour of their new offices demonstrates their innovation and
approach. Every [project they work on is different. They excel in bringing unique ideas and dreams
to reality, completing hundreds of room additions and interior, exterior, bath, and kitchen remodels
all over Brevard County.

This project is nearing completion. The MIRA Board has been invited to tour the facility. Cheryl
Hurren is reviewing an invoice for payment, and the project has substantially met or exceeded
expenditure thresholds.

Fiscal Impact $25,000

Exhibits Attached: Supporting Documentation

115




D[ FeJ NIIA] 19911 9A0I0) "N 86T

SUHATING ANIXA HAVIL /2UT GA\L JO s1UM0
e1eulS uyo[ 29 ueo|[

INE

HAVOV:

HAOYUdINI

| IVIOHH

ININOO




£oay oudep J3FIoyQ Jo syaazoddns pnorg

AOOMHOAH PUe VN ‘SHIW 703 s10su0dg

/66T 92UTS PUE[S] NIIIAJA] O3 [eAO] pUE [8D07]

SOSSOUISN] PUE SIWOY PUE[S] 1IMIIIA] 918A0UI pue dopasp 01 dpp

soA01dwo [220] PIIEdTPAp SWN-[[NJ C

010¢ 23UIs gA\.I, JO sioum()
SYIATINA

A_Eh
A AU OU AN JOM 2TB O A\

LA




f139doid a1 jo

anyeA 93 9A03dwWr SE [[om st A[[eonewerp apede] o3 240IdWI I STOOP 29
SMOPUIA 913 ue[dar pue SOIMIONIIS YIOq JO JOTINXI ) 01 YUB[J AIPILH
SUIppy 'SOQ, Y IDUIS SIIMIDNIIS 9SIYI 0 SUOP sIUdWA0TdUIT d1ISIE
AU® J9A9U 2ToM 23911 ‘000NIS UL FAUL() STOOP 29 SMOpUIm Juerdurod

. QUEDIIINY-UOU IIA SIINIDNTS D0 JISeq ¢ SUIP[ING SUNSIXD Y T, "SHKX —u .
_ "P2301893 ApuaurwiIad oq [ ALAIATIP PIUTEIUTEW-UOTU PUE
17TP JO [BAOWRI-UOU 91 pue wasAs ondas 101059p € woIy 14sNq oY [, *SHA —u

¢f110doad o soueyuo AJ[eonoyisae 1 [T\ (redaIsip 01 onp JIoMm UODEBI[IqRYI
3O 3[Ns3aT B Se IYSIq JO [BAOWIRT O3 2lexsuowap A[ensia 102{oxd pasodoxd mof sso(g

LHOI'Td 4O "TVAOINHY 'V



suersopad JOJ S9INSEIW £19JES OU - UIQIND ON]

peY ondoas pauopueqe vo Surred Juaiin’



"PUTW UT ATJTUD JO 9SED PUE £39JES JOWOISND PIA
UOTEDO] PIUSISIP-ToM € 791U2 01 97doad o8ernodus osfe [im Jurred oy T,
J[NOTIFIP SSIDDE ITEYD[IIYM SIYeW
PUE [2A3[UN ST JBY3 [[9YS PIYSNLID PUE PUES SSIOX 93 JEUTWI[ OSTE 1A 9\
‘Surppmq a1 SurIIud

uoyMm £19JBS PUE IDUITUIATOD FOJ SUTMO[e ‘Anuo 1aTel yponw € asodord ax .

'STOAIIP AJOAT[OP JOJ JDOUBIIPUIY E SE [[oA St SUIPTING 9 91U
7o[[e3 278 oym a[doad Aem ot sITTUT] SIY T, [[E} .47/ ST ATIUD JUIIND O T, "SHA —u

Amunuyod o) ur Judwdopasp Jrouods unoword SNl JUIWUOIAUD JUSTUIATOD
‘93es © $98vIN0dUd 1e) JudwAordwT opede] [[B19A0 Uk ensuowap L13adord mof sao(]

LOVANT ALINOININOOD



IPEIOT] MIN] 2 ©oJP wggmﬁm@ HSOJdO¥Ad




'SS900® UTES

01 I[NDTJIP 3T SULEW “BdTe [QISSIOIE JTEYDI[IIYM
O1UT UMO[( 9F¢ PUES PUE [[9Ys Paysni’) ' L.ON
2|

T 1Y O STENPIATPUT I9[[] 1ISOW JOJ YSNou?
MOT TAOP SoWO0d JOOI JO 2dO[§ ‘T L.ON

ALLNH LNHIUD

s




p[mq 01Ul PauSISap 2q 01 2oeds u2213 pue puod dFeuTeI(]
vore Sunjred 21mu9 303 syaaed snorazad Surs)

rorrd e st |
Surdeospue] pue 2oeds vo038 vo stseydwry -109foxd oy 303 WaIshs aSeureIp .
pue eoge Surjred o) USISOP 01 F99UTSUD JOFNEI], UII PIITY I\ "SHA —u

"PIsSN UI3Q ALY SIINSEIWS USISIP 1By UTe[dXD SB[ JSPIBPUELIS
Ansnpur 19918 1ULIIND PUEL UONPAIISTOD [EIUIWUOIAUD JO $9ATD(QO ) 199w 183 s20moexd
prmq was18 pue udisap [eruawuonaud aterrdordde s1ensuowsp 199(01d pasodoid ok saoq

NOLLVIHAISNOD TV.INANNOYIANA



QWIOD SUTET UIUM 10] JO d3eureIp 19139g
suomned paddeorpuey 103 AIqrssaooe 19139g
Burpmq o 01 uonua431d d8ewrEp QULITIINY PIPPVY

PopN[oUT 2q 01 SunYSJI L11IND3S PIPPY

feme (G1 ooeds Sunyred
orqnd 3[qE[IeA® 1X2U 01 9DUEBISIP 20NPY] "BaFe U0} 01 sadeds pased orow ppy .
vore dunjred IN0 [9AYT *SHA —u

'STUQUID[D 9SO AJUIPT 98BI ]
¢sa24o[dwo pUE SIOUWIOISND FOF JUIWUOIAUD SSIUIST] JUITUIATOD
puUE 9Fes & 98eIn0dUd 1e) SITIWRR Ureluod 199foxd pasodord mof sso(y

HONHINHANOD 22 ALINDAS ALHAVS



VYN woiy djoyg yam ‘os op 01 s1oyao axdsur 01 Surdop] 19
QuEATIIEIM ‘Bjodnd ‘BUIPTS ‘STUIWID[D [eI3IdAPIE pasidsur A[[edo] Sutppe
938 9/\ "TOTEDO[ ST} 01 syuamoA0IduWI JO ()0)()‘0S 1§ FOAO SUTPPE 278 9\

. ‘poroxdurr 3049U ‘patepdn 70N "sdoys [1191 JO Feq pIxIw .

€ Uyl Ammwgﬂmﬁﬂ 1Un Mopuim ® oyl n®m$OQ B SEA 2J1110NA1S SIYI NﬁwSOfVuHmH

'SIUIUII[S SO} AJIUIPT ISLI (]
if139do1d a3 Jo s1uowve 98EIIOY [BINIDNIYDITE FO
[EDTIOISTY JO TONEIOISAT JO UONLAIRsAId o) arensuowap 103loxd pasodord mok sao(

NOLLVALASHYd "TVOTIOLSIH 0 "TVINLOHLIHOYV



sueld Jo
Arqera axnsur 01 sTerrolews adedSpUE] PUE S9971 JANEU BPIIO[,] SUI[LISUT

JO1EA JO MO 102FTP O3 SWIdISAS uTeIp youaI,] pue sioaed snorarad Sursn)

Jjo-uni fue urelnod Js 01 A1xadoid
OU1 JOJ WAISAS UONUDIIT IO WITOIS € PIUSISIP Sey 198nes], UL "SHA — —

O1J199ds 9q 9SEIJ FSIATIEUIIN[E UONEILLIT PUE
[eEa1ew A[PUSII} BPLO],] TUIWSEUL JAIBATIIOIS “USISIp 10edwt MO St yons
S9INSELIW UONEAIISUOD [EIUDWTOIATD UTEIT0D 109/01d pasodord moL sao(y

ONIAVOSAUNVT HAONVHNH



e ] 7 RO TS SR i

gt g










i S e e







MERRITT ISLAND REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Board of Directors Meeting
October 31, 2024

ITEM V.D.

AGENDA REPORT ITEM: Ongoing/ Old Business

PROIJECT: MIRA Holiday Meeting Schedule

Requested Action: Discuss November and December Holiday Meeting Calendar

Summary Explanation & Background:

Fiscal Impact: None

Exhibits Attached: None
132




